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Johnston Press is a leading multimedia
business with a vibrant mix of news
brands that reach national, regional
and local audiences. We provide news,
information and marketing services

to local and regional communities

and businesses through our extensive
portfolio of hundreds of publications

and websites.

Award-winning photographer Simon Hulme
captures the vibrancy of the Leeds West
indian Camnbval. Yorkshire Evening Post

22.5m

Unique Users (average monthly
audience) 15.4% year-on-year
increase’

15.5m

Average total monthly print
audience {including the i from
acquisition in April 2016)3

60%

Growth in followers on Facebook
through 2016, to two million
followers?

91.1Im

Page views (average monthly
audience} 4.6% year-on-year
increase’

191.om

Print copies distributed*

The Brarnley Mermald - Lucy Meredith
celebrates Yorkshire Aquatic Life at Bramley
Baths in Leeds. Simon Hulme, Yorkshire
Evening Post

' Source: IBM analytics [Digital) Internal Johnston Press analytics tools,
*  Source: Crowdtangle Analytics, Facebook Leaderboard, growth reported for period 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016,
1 Source: Matrix (Print). Internal Johnston Press analytics tools. Includes the | newspaper average monthly sales for period

10 April 2016 to 31 Decermber 2016,

*  Nationally we sold 161rm paid for coples (including the i) and distributed 30.6m free copies,
a 10.0% year-on-year decrease. Includes | newspaper circulation frorm April to December 2016.




Strategic Report

2016 Statutory and Adjusted Results

The statutory results are for the continuing Group, which exclude the disposed of Isle of Man business.

The prior year statutory results have been restated to exclude discontinued operations. Continuing
statutory results include the i from acquisition date. closed titles and businesses. exceptional items and
mark-to-market gains on the Group's bond. The adjusted figures reflect the ‘'underlying’ business. and are

presented after removing the financial impact of 8 number of significant accounting and operational

iterns. A reconciliation of the statutory to adjusted figures is provided below. within the Financial Review
and within the statutory to adjusted reconciliation on page 133.

KEY

[ statutory ] Adjusted

Print advertising revenue

Total revenue Adjusted EBITDA
£222.7m 49.1m
2015: £242.1m 2015: £56.0m

Statutory operating [loss)/profit

Adjusted operating profit

£95.7m

2015: £117.6m

Newspaper sales revenue

£(323.1)m

2015; £0.3m

Pension deficit

£42.1m

2015: £49.3m

Adjusted operating margin

£79.9m

2015: £72.0m

Digital advertising revenue

£67.7m

2015: £27.0m

Digital % of total revenue

19.0%

2015: 20.9%

Net debt {excluding mark-to-market)

£27.0m

12.1%

£203.9m

2015: £31.4m 2015:13.0% 2015: £174.4m

Full year 2016 Full year 2015
Reconciliatlon of statutory to adjusted results’ £m Em
Statutory aperating (loss)/profit (323.) 03
Adjustments
Closure of titles/digital products 0.2 (0.6}
Restructuring costs 2.3 9.4
Impairment on publishing titles, print presses and property assets 344.3 352
Other 10.2 3.3
Acceterated depreciation 0.5 1.7
Adjusted operating profit 42) 493
Depreciation and amortisation 7.0 6.7
Adjusted EBITDA 59 56.0

' Areconciliation of the statutory to adjusted figures is provided within the Financial Review on page 24 and the statutory to adjusted reconciliation on page 133.
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Strategic Report

At a Glance

Excellent circulation performance of the i has
helped to partially offset challenging trading
conditions while The Scotsman, The Yorkshire
Post and News Letter have shown improving
trends for our national portfolio.

Investment in our digital platforms and ongoing focus on costs has helped to ensure strong margins
and solid progress against strategic priorities.

QUR INTEGRATED PCRTFOLIO

Print

The Group's print portfolio consists of 204 titles'
{including editions), 173 paid for newspapers (including
14 daily titles). 21 free newspapers
and 10 magazines,

As part of a planned rationalisation of its portfolio,
the Group sold 16 titles 2 and discontinued a further
15 titles through ceasing production or merging
with a stronger title.

Newspaper circulation audience

Digital
The Group has 161 news brand websites?, 17 other
websites and 40 apps. Many of our news brands also
have both Twitter and Faceboolk sites.

inews.co.uk was launched following
the acquisition of the i.

Digital audience

o om =

191.6m

Nationally we sold 161m paid for copies
(including the i} and distributed
30.6m free copies*

-10.0% year-on-year

Excludes 13 titles sold to lliffe Media Lirmited in January 2017,

22.5m

Unique users {average monthly audience)
+15.4% year-on-year i

13 titles were sold to lliffe Media Limited in January 2017 and three titles were sold to Tindle Newspaper Limited in August 2016,

Excludes 12 nows brand wabsites sold to lliffie Media Limited in January 2017.

In¢ludes the | newspaper circulation from April to December 2016,

Johnston Press ple annual Report and Accounts 2006
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Case Study

PRINT DIVISION

We rermain one of the leading
newspaper printers in the UK, with
presses in Dinnington, Portsmiouth
and Carn, servicing many of our own
titles and other national and regional
publishers.

Our printing services division is now
printing around 7.4 million newspapers
every week Contract printing now makes
up 58% of the work carried out across the
sites and despite a rise of up t010% in
paper costs because of currency changes
following the EU Referendum, the
business delivered a 13% increase in
revenues in 2016.

The business secured two significant new
contracts in 2016. The first. in October, was
a1Z2-month rolling contract to print copies
of the Metro at the Portsmouth Web. The
contract with Associated Newspaper
Limited (ANL) sees us print 85000 copies

of the 56-page Metro newspapert, five
nights a week from Monday to Friday.

We were also delighted to announce that
we have entered an agreement with ANL
to print the Monday to Saturday issues

of the Daily Mail newspaper, also at our
Partsmouth Web facility in Hampshire
and serving the South West.

The multi-million pound contract spans
a five-year period and ANL will have the
option to exterid the term after those
five years,

The contract wins are testament to
the efforts of the 160-strong workforce
across the three sites, who are able to
deliver such prestigious titles against
strong competition.

The Dinnington [Sheffield) site prints
the national titles the Daily Express and
Sunday Express, the Daily Star and Daily
Star Sunday as well as the Metro. In

addition, they print a number of
commercial weeklies and niche
publications, such as Motor Sports News,
Racing Ahead, alongside our own titles
The Yorkshire Post, Yorkshire Evening
Press, Sheffield Star, Sunderland Echo,
Shields Gazette. Hartlepool Mail and a
number of our weeklies.

In Portsmouth, the Daily Mail rolls off our
presses six days a week alongside a large
number of Trinity Mirror {Local World) and
Tindle Newspapers titles.

And in Carn {(Northern Ireland), we print
Irish edlitions of the Guardian. Observer,
Ulster Times and The Tirmes (RO! editions),
plus lconic Newspaper-owned weeklies
and some niche publications alongside
the News Letter and Johnston Press-
owned weeklies.

Johnston Press ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Chairman’s Statement

Profound change
IN our business

2016 saw further profound change in our business
and we have again faced the combined
headwinds of further structural change in our
industry and significant economic and market
setbacks - not least the impact of the run up to
and aftermath of June’s referendum on the UK's
membership of the European Union.

I Johnsten Press ple Annual Report and Accounts 20016

The management tearm remained focused
on improving the performance of the
business within its control, but in particular
the third quarter saw a significant downturn
in advertising activity. especially in the
recruitment and property market, and

a distinct improvement in quarter four.

The Group reported a statutory operating
loss of £323.1 million in the period, which
included a £3443 million impairment
charge on certain assets, £223.9 million of
the impairment charge was taken at the
interim. with a further write-down of £120.4
million taken at the year-end. The write-
down on publishing titles and print assets
reflects the current trading performance
of the Group and further explanation

is provided in the Financial Review.
Excluding the impairment charge in

the peried and other adjusting items

{as discussed in the statutory to adjusted
reconciliation on page 133), the Group
reported an adjusted operating profit

of £421 million, and adjusted EBITDA

of £49.1 million, in the period.

During the year we have undertaken

a number of initiatives in order to enable
the business to adjust to the continued
downward pressure on print advertising
revenues. Our sales teams have been
reorganised and retrained to better equip
them for the commercial environment in
which we now operate and we have
sought to reset our digital offering across
a range of fields (including, for instance.
discontinuing lower margin digital
offerings). We have made important
changes to the Group's portfolio of titles
and our newspapetr printing business has
also had a successful year with several
significant contract tender wins.

Strategy

The management team has been focused
on pursuing its key strategic aims: growing
the overall audience, executing on an ever
mare efficient editorial and sales operation.
maintaining liquidity and managing our
obligations to our stakeholders including
bondholders and pensioners, and since its
acquisitton, driving the success of the i
newspaper.

Growth of audiences and revenues in our
digital business rematn a key longer-term
objective, Following four years of double-
digit growth in digital revenues, 2016
enjoyed some successes, but saw a dip in
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revenues in the year, driven by a downturn
in some of our larger digital revenue
categories (particularly employment
revenues from small & medium sized
businesses {SMEs) reflecting economic
uncertainty around the EU referendum).
Encouragingly. the digital revenue trend
improved in the fourth quarter ang, thus
far, digital audience figures in 2017 have
improved year-on-year growth.

On 12 February 2016, we announced the
proposed acquisition of the i newspaper,
which was completed in April {the
consideration represents a 4.6x multiple
of the i's 2015 full year "carve out™ operating
profit for 2015 of £5.2 million), The
acquisition has provided the Group with
significantly increased scale, a national
footprint and added a major brand to its
portfolio. The | newspaper has grown both
its circulation and market share in the
period since acquisition which has also
seen the launch of its dedicated website,
The paper presents us with a significant
opportunity to grow our national
advertising revenues. Further details of the
success of the | newspaper and the
collaboration between it and our other
titles are explained in the Chief Executive
Officer's Report.

The drive for a more efficient sales
operation in 2016 saw the sales team
restructured and a consistent sales
approach applied across the Group. The
team is using Salesforce.com to support
the sale of creative, native and targeted
digital and print advertising solutions.

The relentless cost cutting programme
saved over £26 million during 2016, and
now totals some £100 million since 2012,
ensuring we maintained strong margins
despite severe revenue pressures.

Finally, to strengthen the balance sheet.
we sold three titles on the Isle of Man to
Tindle Newspapers Limited last August.
and in December we announced the
disposal of 13 titles in the East Midlands
and East Anglia to lliffe Media Limited,
That sale was completed in January 2017,
on a multiple of 4.6x EBITDA, reducing net
debt and increasing our liquidity. It also
enabled the Group to cancel its revolving
credit facility. Although we have no current
plans for further significant disposals we
will continue to monitor opportunities
presented by the market.

We have recently commenced a strategic
review of our financing options in relation
to the £220 million 8.625% senior secured
notes which becomes due on 1 June 2019.
The Board is being advised by Rathschild

& Co. and Ashurst LLP.

As part of this review process. the Board
is engaging with its major stakeholders
whose views will be taken into consideration.

Dividend

The provisions of our bonds restrict the
Company’s ability to pay ordinary
dividends until certain conditions are met,
No ordinary dividend is proposed for the
year. Preference dividends have been
accrued but due to the lack of
distributable reserves within the Company
are unable to be paid.

Industry issues

As members of the Independent Press
Standards Qrganisation {IPSQO). we are at
the forefront of our industry’s oppaosition
to the proposed introduction of 840 of
the Crime and Courts Act 2013. If enabled,
this could operate to make newspaper
publishers who are not members of a
statutorily approved body liable for the
costs of dealing with complaints against
them - even where those complaints are
dismissed or shown to have no merit.

It is no exaggeration to say that such a
measure would threaten the very existence
of many titles, and the requirement to sign
up to a state-approved regulator to avoid
that risk serves to undermine the very
nature of the free press in the United
Kingdom. With Ashley Highfield as
Chairman of the News Media Association
{NMA), Johnston Press has also played a
leading role in the negotiations between
the NMA and the BBC in working though
the details of a ground-breaking
agreerment that will see 150 journalists
employed to cover Jocal democracy
reporting. Recruitment will start mid-2017,
with the process due to be completed

in early 2Z018. The agreemenit between
the NMA and BBC will also see the
establishrment of a new data journalism
unit serving the local news industry and
the release of BBC videos on local news
provider websites.

Board

2016 saw significant change in the
make-up. not only of the Group, but also

of our Board and | would like to thank my
Board colleagues for their work throughout
the year. We announced early last year that
Stephen van Rooyen would step down at
the 2016 AGM, Mark Pain subsequently
also stepped down at the end of August.

Iwould like to record my thanks to lan
Russell, our previous Chairman. lan
stepped down at the end of the year as
a result of an acute illness in his famity.
His wise advice and tireless hard work on
behalf of the Company since becoming
Chairman in 2009 {(having joined the
Board in 2007} have been invaluabie to
the Board. We wish him and his family
well for the future.

In addition to the Board's gratitude to lan
and Stephen, | would like to thank Mark
for his service since 2009 on our Board
and. in particular, for his Chairmanship

of the Audit Committee from 2010.

We were very pleased to welcome Mike
Butterworth to the Board in June. Mike,

a Non-Executive Directer and Chairman
of the audit committees at St Ives plc,
Cambian Group plc and Stock Spirits
Group plc, is a former Chief Financial
Officer of several listed companies and has
succeeded Mark Pain as Chairman of our
Audit Committee. Mike is also undertaking
the role of Senior Independent Director
on an interim basis until a new Chairman
is recruited.

Ralph Marshall will step down from the
Board at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting. Ralph was appointed to the
Board as a representative of Usaha Tegas
which owns 10.63% of the Company's
ordinary share capital and has served on
the Board since 2008. The terms of the
shareholder’s agreement under which
Ralph was appointed to the Board allow
for a successor to be appeinted. We are in
discussions with Usaha Tegas regarding
the identity of their new nomines and
expect to make an announcement shortly
in respect of this. | would like to take the
opportunity to thank Ralph for his work on
our behalf over the past nine years,

In considering candidates to fill Board
vacancies, the Nomination Cormmittee has
regard to the benefits of, and the need to
encourage, diversity (including gender)
within the Board's membership and this is
a specific consideration of the recruitment
process and is included in the Committee’s
terms of reference. The Board has adopted
a written diversity policy for this purpose,

The Board regularly reviews both the
balance of its membership and the issues
it considers when it meets. The agenda for
the Board's meetings continue to be
structured in such a way as to scrutinise
both strategic and operational matters and
the meetings are held in an atmosphere
of constructive challenge and debate. | am
satisfied that the Board remains effective.

Employees

The valued and tireless work of our
management and employees in 2016 was
again an enormous factor in the progress
we made, During a period of significant
and ongoing change our staff have
repeatedly adapted to the evolving industry
and market we are experiencing. Their
professionalism has been outstanding and.,
on behalf of the Beard. | wish to thank
thern for their efforts and their contribution.

Outlook

Overall. current trading. including both the
i and the regional portfolio, is in line with
management expectations.

CM\WV\ W)

Camilla Rhodes
Interim Chairman

Achnston Press plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016 5



Strategic Report

Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Significant progress against

strategic objectives

We made significant progress against our
strategic objectives in 2016, despite the challenges
we faced in our industry, particularly in the wake
of the EU Referendum in June.

[ Johnston Press plc Annual Report and Accounts 2016

Qur primary focus throughout the year
continued to be progress towards
returning the business to revenue growth
and we believe the strides made during
2016 have put us on a much firmer
footing to achieve this, evidenced through
improving average order value in our
advertising business, and our media sales
centre (MSC) transactional (telesales)
revenue now in growth, following the
transferring of 21,000 accounts from

the field. Qur contract print division also
returned to year-on-year growth.

The acquisition of the i has been a success
in both audience and revenue nurmbers.
Overall audience numbers have improved,
driven by both digital and improving trends
in print circulation. Its success has helped
it to garner a number of nominations in
prestigious industry awards. The acquisition
of the i has helped our overall print
circulation revenue return to growth.

Revenue trends deteriorated during

2016 and remained challenging for
much of the year, particularly around the
EU referendum, the resulting uncertainty
affecting business confidence within the
small and medium enterprise (SME)
community. our primary advertising base,
Despite a subsequent improvement in
economic confidence, further structural
changes to advertisers’ behaviovr,
especially the shift to Facebook, has led
to a slow recovery for print advertising,
Nevertheless the Company has again
successfully taken action to address its cost
base and to protect profit margins.

The uncentainty advertisers faced in 2016
is reflected in our results for the year.
Statutory total revenues were down

8% from £242.] million in 2016. to £2227
million, Total statutory advertising revenue
(combined print and digital) declined

by 17.79%6 to £122.6 million. Statutory

print advertising was down 18.6% from
£117.6 rnillion to £95.7 million. Statutory
newspaper sales revenue, grew by

11% from £72.0 million to £79.9 million,
including the i from the date of acquisition,
while adjusted digital revenues {excluding
classified) improved fractionally by 1.196.
Moare information on the Adjusted items
can be found in the Financial Review
section of this report and the
Reconciliation of Statutory to Adjusted
iterms on page 133.
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The Group once more successfully
delivered a further significant cost
rmanagement prograrmme with adjusted
operating costs (including depreciation
and amortisation) reducing to £179.4
million from £186.4 million in 2015,
Adjusting for the impact of the i
acquisition, cost savings of £26 million were
made during the year. This was achieved
while stilf effecting targeted investments

in key strategic areas and including the

i acquisition costs of some £1.8 million.
Adjusted operating costs exclude the
impairment charge of £344 million that
was written-off the carrying value of certain
assets including the publishing titles and
print assets {refer to the Financial Review
on page 24 for further detail).

Adjusted operating profit was £42) million,
a £7.2 million decrease on the prior year,
and adjusted EBITDA of £49.1 million was
achieved in 2016, compared to £56.0 million
in 2015. As a result of the cost management
programme noted above, the Group
maintained a strong operating margin,
decreasing slightly frorn 20.9% t0 19.0%
year-on-year.

Adjusted basic earnings per share, was

16.7 pence, compared to 22.9 pence in 2015
{refer to the Financial Review on page 24
for further detail).

Net debt, excluding bond mark-to-market.
was £203.9 million, compared to £179.4
million at the end of 2015, largely reflecting
the cost of acquiring the i. Subsequent to
the year-end we received £17.0m from the

- sale of publishing titles and websites to
lliffe Media Limited. A reconciliation of
statutory net debt to net debt excluding
mark-to-market is provided in the
Financial Review.

Highlights in 2016

Acquisition of the i newspaper
The acquisition of the i newspaper in
April has been transformational for the
business, significantly strengthening the
Johnston Press portfolio. It has been,

as anticipated. earnings enhancing,
boosting both circulation revenues and
advertising revenues.

The i has increased its newspaper sales
volurmes by 5% (ABC figures excluding
bulks) year-on-year, which, coupled with
210p [25%) week-day cover price rise,

has seen Q& circulation revenues up 20%
compared to the equivalent quarter in
2015, The Saturday edition of the i has
performed éspecially well, with circulation
volurmes up 139 year-on-year (cumulative
Saturday sales April to Decernber 2016 vs
2015). Five nominations, in various
categories, at this year's Society of Editors’
Press Awards, as well as a number of
nominations in the British Media Awards
and News Awards, are testarment to the
regard with which the i newspaper is now
held by industry peers.

These strong sales are attributed to
a combination of the closure of the

" Independent newspaper, the investment

in creating a dedicated | newspaper
editorial team, strong and independent
editorial leadership, improved distribution
and the reintroduction of the title into
Northern lreland.

Being part of the wider Johnston Press
Group has aiso brought a number of
benefits: content sharing, improved
distribution efficiency taking advantage
of the Group's infrastructure and the use
of the weekly newspaper portfolio of
regional brands to provide a low-cost
approach to increasing public awareness
of thei,

We afso invested in the (aunch of a new
website - inews.couk - which, in its first
ning months, went from zero to achieving
an average of 1.4 million unique users a
month during the fourth quarter and
surpassing 1.9 million unique users'in
November. Its clean, modern interface and
unique content is resonating clearly with
readers. The inews.co.uk website was
nominated for website of the year at the
British Press awards, and news website

of the year at the 2017 News Awards.

The numbser of advertising brands in the
i increased from 68 t0 128 from July 2016

. to February 20172 the highest since

acquisition and we have been delighted to
see brands including Porsche, FedEx and
Debenhams advertise in the title for the
first time.

Since the acquisition. a number of inherited
contracts have been renegotiated, reducing
costs by over £] millicn per annum. Further
cost reductions are expected as contracts
come up for renewal.

Having acquired the i for £24 million

{a 4.6x historic operating profit multiple)
the Group expects to see the full year
benefits of circulation improvement,
improved advertising trends since the
transition period post-acquisition and

cost reduction actions taken, to deliver

a continuing improverment in performance
from theiin2017.

Focusing the portfolio

A key part of our ongoing business
transformation is to focus on and invest in
titles which afford us the best opportunity
for growth through audiences and/or
geography and we realised two divestment
opportunities during 2016. The cash from
disposals reduced net debt whilst also
providing the business with liquidity,
enabling the Group to cancel its revolving
credit facility.

First, we sold three titles {and associated
assets) in the Isle of Man to Tindle
Newspapers Ltd for £4.25 million and,

in December, we announced the proposed
sale of 13 publishing titles and associated
websites in the East Anglia and East
Midlands for £17 million to lliffe Media
Limited, with the deal concluding in
January 2017,

Second. we introduced a new publishing
strategy as we increased our focus on
rnarkets that can offer the greatest growth
potential, such as those in our ‘Big Cities’
initiative (Leeds, Sheffield and Edinburgh)
and digital growth towns, The aim of
introducing one consistent and relevant
content plan across the key city titles,
increasing story count, sharpening focus
on social media and campaigning with
passion is to drive audience growth and we
are seeing some signs of improving
circulations trends across these titles,

Johnsten Press plc Annua! Report and Accounts 2016 7
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report continues

A particular editorial highlight of 2016 was
the successful launch of our investigations
unit, a team of journalists from across

the portiolio tasked with carrying out
investigations into stories that are
important nationally but which have local
relevance. The first investigation, which
uncovered the scandal of low sentences
for dangerous drivers, hasled to a
Government review, This is addressed

in the case study on page 23.

Quir printing services delivered a13%
increase in revenues in 2016. The business
secured two significant new contracts in
2016, The first, in October. was a12-month
rolling contract to print copies of the Metro
in Portsrmouth. We were also delighted

to announce that we have entered an
agreement with Associated Newspapers
Limited (ANL) to print the Monday to
Saturday issues of the Daily Mail
newspaper. The multi-million pound
contract spans a five-year period and ANL
will have the option to extend the term
after those five years. Refer to case study
on page 3.

Advertising

Advertising revenues were dealt a blow
following the Referendum vote in June,
Whilst we did see improving growth
momentum towards the end of the year,
it was not enocugh to return local display
advertising to growth in 2016, In particular,
the employment and property markets
were under significant pressure.

Our digital business grew in the fourth
quarter and both Media Sales Centre
transactional revenues {telesales) and
contract printing were each up 2%

in 2016, The decline in circulation revenues
in the existing portfolio has been offset
by the strong i circulation revenues,
resulting in growth in total statutory
circulation revenues of 11% year-on-year.
These categories make up over 50% of
our total revenue.

We previously set out our ambition
to completely restructure the sales
tearns and in July - after thorough
testing - we fully launched our sales
transformation programme - called
Salesforce of the Future.

' Source: Internal metrics - iBM Digital Analytics.
?  Source: AdDyrmamics.

We transferred 21,000 of our lower value,
highly infrequent transactional customers
into a new team in the Media Sales Centre
to allow our field-based sales teams to
fully focus on the higher yield customers.
A new customer acquisition team was
launched. hundreds of our sales teams
were trained to use Salesforce.com, fully
equipped with new technology and
provided with new sales material.

Digital

Unique visitors were up year-on-yaar by
159 and we are getting more visits than
ever due to the redesign of our 173 sites,
despite industry-wide shift to mobile
and Facebook.

However. due largely to the EU Referendumn
impacting SME marketing and recruitment
decisions, digital revenue (including
classifieds) was down for the year. Digital
revenue was significantly impacted by

a very difficult market for classifieds,
particularly for jobs, Excluding classifieds,
digital revenue was marginally higher

in 2016. The fourth quarter improved
significantly over quarter three, returning
the business to digital revenue growth

as we exited 2016.

The launch of the We Are Digital initiative
{see case study on page 22) helped to drive
a huge shift towards readers finding us
through Facebook and we've enjoyed

a 60% growth? in Facebook followers in
2016 to two million.

Commercially, we now have a modernised
digital commercial product set, with new
audience targeting options, We have also
seen a shift of national advertising towards
algorithric, programmatic purchasing.
which we have responded to with new
technology to raise our yields in real time.
Dropping older digital products with lower
margins also depressed revenue growth

in 2016.

We launched a native advertising/
sponsored content solution, creating
content for customers to help them reach
their customers in an integrated way

on our sites. We also have continued to
improve our marketing solutions products,
adding a Facebook solution to help

SMEs with targeted marketing to local,
social users.

Current trading statement

At the time of writing in late March 2017,
we have seen a continuation of the
impraving advertising and circulation
trends we witnessed during the fourth
quarter of 2016, enabling our digital
business to return to revenue growth.

Refinancing

The Directors, along with the Group's
advisors, are currently exploring the
strategic options available to the Group

in relation to its £220 million 8.625% senior
secured notes which become due on
1June 2019. This is discussed in detail

in the Viability Staterment on page 46.

Summary

Despite the challenging market for

news publishers, including a very
difficult summer, we have seen some
improvement in our markets. Whilst we
expect the overall market environment
to remain challenging for both the Group
and the industry as a whole, we remain
focused on delivering on our strategic
priorities of growing our overall audience.
driving further success of the i, delivering
a more efficient editorial and sales
operation and strengthening the
Company’s balance sheet

Qur number one priority for 2017 s for our
local display advertising revenue category
{combined print and digital} to join
transactional advertising via tele-sales
{serviced through our media sales centre)
in achieving growth,

Qur continued drive to maximise
operational efficiencies, which includes
a relentless focus on cost management,
gives us flexibility in the face of a
challenging market and gives the
management confidence that we can
rmake further progress.

Finally, I want to extend my sincere thanks
and appreciation to our former Chairman,
tan Russell, who stepped down from the
Board at the end of December.

oA

Ashley Highfield
Chief Executive Officer

! Source: Crowdtangla Analytics, Facebook Leaderboard, growth reported for period 1 January 2016 to 31 Decernber 2016,
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Market Trends

Diversifying our business

Market trends

In 2016 the Group moved from having

a singular focus within the regional
publishing sector to diversifying the
business into the national publishing
arena, following the acquisition of the

i newspaper in April 2016, This change
means that forward looking trends need to
be viewed on a regional and national basis,
especially in light of the structural changes
seen over the last decade, which has seen
regional publishers lose a total of £1.1bn
{5696)' of total classified print revenues,
over the past five years, to companies such
as Rightmove, Autotrader and Linkedin,
Natlonal newspapers revenues have been
more stable over the peried..

UK digital advertising spend grew 12.7%?

in 2016 and is forecast to grow 10.9%2

in 2017, though this masks intra-category
movements in spend. Desktop display
advertising is forecast to decline in rea)
terms, putting into question the race for
scale at all costs. Google and Facebook
continue to accelerate and are taking an
ever increasing share of the SME marketing
wallet through their automated self-serve
platforms. The rise of concerns over “fake
news’, guestion marks over programmatic
value, advertising placement context and
the accuracy of measurement could help
to affirm the value of our journalism and
trusted place in our markets in the face of
strong growth by Facebook and Google,
though generally the industry will need to
find ways to collaborate, rather than expect
to take digital share.

The Group is now made-up of five key?
revenue areas: Newspaper Sales [36%).
Contract Printing {696), Print advertising
excluding classified (28%), Digital
advertising excluding classified (896),
Classified and other advertising (1996).
Following the acquisition of the

i newspaper, the Group has moved to

a more diversified revenue mix with both
newspaper sales and contract printing
{42%) showing growth on prior year in
absolute terms, The change of revenue
mix meets a strategic objective * outlined
by the company to help mitigate against
on-going uncertainty in the advertising
sector as a whole.

National (The | newspaper)

it is expected that national print display
advertising across the industry will have
contracted by a further 12.596 in 20165,
off-set by 2196 increase in digital display,
leading to a total decline of 9.8%. due to

less exposure from classified print declines.

1t is anticipated that the overall industry
display advertising decline profile will
continue through into 2017. The Group did
not benefit from the digital revenue off-set
in 2016, as the national title was acquired
absent of a website, which the Group
launched in April 2016, Website traffic for
inews.couk grew to an average of 1.4m
unique users®in Q4 2016,

Within the national sector of the Group's
overall business, cover price revenues
represent a significantly larger percentage
of total revenues {c.809%), allowing the
sector to insulate itself to some degree
against the declines experienced from
display advertising. Total circulation
volumes across the national quality

newspaper sector declined by 996 in 20167,

with the i newspaper showing a strong
performance against this trend, reporting
a 5% year-on-year growth ® (excluding
bulks), having additionally absorbed a
25% price increase in Septernber 2016,
The pricing of the | newspaper, relative to
the rest of the qualities national market
sector, will altow for a higher degree of
price elasticity, at least over the short-term.

The on-going challenge faced by naticnal
publishers is one of bafancing investment
in lower margin digital revenues over
sustaining the higher margin print income.
A number of our competitor titles, such as
the Guardian and Mail-on-Line, have taken
a very aggressive digital first approach,
with the former seeing a much higher
than average decline in newspaper
circulation revenue and volume. With
national display print advertising declining.
and digital revenues experiencing
downward pressure on yield, the overall
revenue mix is shifting towards circulation
revenue. It is expected that national
newspaper circulation as a percentage

of print revenue will rise to 5196° by 2020,

Regional

Revenues derivied from the regional part
of the business will continue to face
top-line revenue challenges. driven by
downward pressure on print advertising
volumes, digital yield erosion and
contracting volumes in newspaper sales
and resulting revenues through a
combination of changing behaviour and
less pricing elasticity on average copy sale,
restricting the ability to off-set volumes
declines through cover price increases.

The top-line revenue profile of the regional
newsbirands will continue to shift te more
predictable circulation revenues, rising?

to 74% of total revenues by 2020, largely
because of the on-going decline in
classified advertising post 2007 and
continued movement to lower yielding
digital display away from print advertising.

SOURCES

' UK news media: less advertising, new models.
Enders analysis. June 2016,

! UK digital ad forecast 2016-18, Enders Analysis,
Novarnber 2015,

3 2016 Annual report statutory revenue,

Sharehelder circular covering the acquisition

of the | newspaper. March 2016.

Source WARC/AA

Source: IBM Digital Analytics (Explorg),

ABC,

ABC,

Enders Analysis, ABC. June 2016.

-
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Feature: i

The announcement in February that
Johnston Press was to acquire its
first national newspaper took many
industry commentators by surprise.

The acquisition - which coincided with previous owners ES| Media
confirming stablemate the Independent was to stop its print
editions, preferring instead to focus on its online offering - was
seen as potentially transformational for Johnston Press and an
important step towards delivering the long-term strategy.

Its enhanced reach also represented

a significant growth opportunity for
Johnston Press in terms of national print
and digital advertising revenue.

The acquisition - for £24 million - was
completed in April 2016, A new editorial
team was hired - turning the existing
dozen i staff into 62 - along with a new
commercial team to maximise the i's
new standalone status, The team moved
into new offices and adapted to new
systems and. just a few days after
completion of the deal, the new website
inewsco.uk was launched.

The i's consistent excellence during a
year of world-changing headlines was
rewarded at the newsstand, with strong
growth in circulation and revenues
throughout the rest of 2016.

The i's bold and uniguely impartial
Brexit coverage powered a 30k sustained
sales lift and attracted two million

new readers online {July 2016 ABC).
Circulation was +2.796 year-on-year (281k,
Monday - Friday ABC circulation for
Jull6 - Dec16). despite a price rise and
cutting ten thousand bulk copies. Cover
price revenues grew +20%, quality
muarket share by +2.59 to 20.59%. and
daily readership by +4% after the
referendum in June to 5341k (National
Readership Survey (NRS)).

By marketing to Independent readers
before closure we managed to transfer
some 10.000 of themn (roughly 30%) to
thei. .

The subscriber base grew by 419%
through new payment options. Driving
reader loyalty, we closed the weekday-
vs-Saturday sales gap from 28.000 to
6.000. with record Saturday circulation
(283.000 in June 2016) up 15% year-
on-year,

Qur advertising sales team used the
paper's ownership to build market
influence and brand credibility with

a standalone message. The number

of advertisers has increased by 88%
(Feb17 compared to Jul16) and new
clients include Fed Ex and Debenhams
{Source: AdDynamix, page volume).

Against a turbulent backdrop, as readers
sought trusted volces in a ‘post-truth’
age, the i newspaper often led coverage
of this noteworthy year, persuading
more people than ever before to turn

to Britain's first and only concise, quality
news brand.
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YEAR-ON-YEAR SALES UP

5%

AVERAGE APR-DEC 2016 VS 2015
- BUCKING INDUSTRY TREND

SATURDAY SALES UP

15%

YEAR-ON-YEAR
AVERAGE APR-DEC 2016 VS 2015

DAILY MARKET SHARE
GREW BY 2.5% TO

20.5%

DAILY READERSHIP NOW

541,000

{SOURCE: NRS OCT 2015-5EP 2016}

DAILY ABC OF

281,000

MONDAY TO FRIDAY ABC
CIRCULATION FOR JUL16-DEC6

ADVERTISERS COUNTUP

88%

(FEB 2017 VS JULY 2016}

SUBSCRIBERS UP

41%

REINTRODUCED INTO NORTHERN
IRELAND AND IMPROVED
DISTRIBUTION IN THE UK

Johnston Press ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016
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Business Model

Our strategy Is focused on

developing a sustainable
business model

12

MARKETS

Digital audience
growth

Increased mobile
consumption

Social media

OUR CUSTOMER PROPOSITION

To be the best. most engaging platform for local news and information,
in our markets, to be the best advertising and marketing partner for small and
medium enterprises (SMEs} and to enable ‘Mass Localisation’ across all our

communities for national brands.

How we achieve this

Audience strategy
Grow digital engagement and
slow print decline through:

Insight
Audience-centric proposition
for each priority brand.

Content

Better multl-platform content strategy

for each brand. Focus on local. Focus on -
quality. Focus on sharing ldeas and content.

Products
Sirpler, flexible, device responsive,
real-time web and mobile.

Commercial strategy

To develop new products and services or
leverage third party product and services
that meet the needs of the markets we
serve through:

Insight

Develop ever greater understanding of our
markets, customer needs and oppottunities
and align our sales force to customer needs.

Service
Reduce customer churn through improved
end to end customer service.

Scale

Grow national business through acquisition.
partnership and by leveraging our mass
localisation capability and design solutions
for major brands.

Digital

Offer digital and mobile solutions that meet
the changing needs of cur customers.

Local fecus

Advertisers

Multimedia
platform

Audience

National
coverage

Transforming Local Media

Johnston Press ple Annual Report and Accounts 20016
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Strategic Report ‘ |

In an environment of rapid digital and societal change and the
growing role of ‘local’ in people’s lives, our purpose and mission
remain constant: To be the fabric that binds people to their

communities and to businesses, both local and national.

I

Qur audiences continue to consume our content through either our daily
or weekly printed products. the majority of which are actively purchased.

Local and national businesses who want to reach our local

HOW WE GENERATE REVENUE

Circulation revenues

Advertising revenues
audiences buy advertising space in print and online.

SME marketing services revenues

We are levaraging our existing SME relationships to deliver

Circulation reverue & ad revenue

new digital products and services to our customers,
SME marketing services are a growing revenue stream.

Audience

Ad revenue & digital revenue

Revenue

PRIORITIES

1 Grow overall
audience

2 Make a success
of the acquisition
of thei

3 Executeonan
ever-more efficient
editorial and sales

operation

4 Strengthening
the balance sheet

See overleaf for more on priorities

Johnston Press ple Annual Repart and Accounts 2016
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Strategy

PRIORITY 1

Grow aoverall audience

. Increase digital audience
- Reduce print decline rates

Our news brands continue to see strong audience
performance via social networks, with 1796 of page
views coming through Facebook. Total page views
were 85.8 million in December 2016, compared to
83.7 million in the prior year.

Impressive newspaper sales results following our
strategic focus on the large quality titles operating
in growth markets.

Monetisation of traffic throt-.lgh 1XL enabled digital
revenue to increase marginally year-on-year, following

an exceptional 99% year-on-year performance in 2015,

1%L was launched in late 2014, bringing together the
digital inventory of 30 of the UK’s established
news publishers,

Digital audience

22.5m

2015:19.5m

Newspaper circulation audience

15.3m

2015:16.2m

Total audience

37.8m

2015: 35.7m

PRIORITY 2

Make a success of the
acquisition of the i

- The i circulation audience growth

- Website launch - providing
immediate digital audience growth

. Increase market share

The i has increased its newspaper volume sales
by 596 (ABC excluding bulks) year-on-year, which,
coupled with a 10p (25%) week-day cover price
rise, has seen Q4 circulation revenues up 20%
compared to the equivalent quarter last year. The
Saturday edition of the i has performed especially
well, with circulation volume up 13% year-on-year.

Full copy sales of the i have increased its market share
from 1796 on acquisition to some 20% despite the 10p,
259% cover price rise (Monday-Friday edition).

The Group has also invested in the launch of a new
website, inews.co.uk, which in its first nine months has
gone from zero to achieving an average of

1.4 millien unique users a month during Q4 2016.

The number of advertising brands in the i increased to
128 during February 2017, the highest since acquisition,
Brands including Porsche, FedEx and Debenhams have
advertised with the i for the first time,

Adjusted newspaper sales revenue
{Group performance includes the i}

£79.7m

2015: £71.6m

Digital audience
{Group performance includes the i)

22.5m

2015:19.5m

14
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PRIORITY 3

Execute on an ever-more
efficient editorial and
sales operation

Qur Editorial transformation programme ‘Newsroom
of the Future’ was bedded in during H1 2016, with

encouraging audience results across print and digital.

2016 saw a restructured sales team removing layers
of management and reforming the isolated, regional
structure with a more modern consistent approach
using Salesforce.com to suppeort the sale of creative,
native and targeted digital and print

advertising soiutions.

Digital audience

22.5m

2015:19.5m

Newspaper circulation audience

15.3m

2015:16.2m

Adjusted advertising revenue

£121.6m

2015: £143.7m

Adjusted newspaper sales revenue

£79.7m

2015: £71.6m

PRICRITY 4

Strengthening the
balance sheet

- Rationalise titles
- Pursue further disposais

The Group closed or merged 15 titles during 2016,
as part of its portfolio review.

During 2016, the Croup acquired the i newspaper
for £24 million, The acquisition has strengthened the
JP portfolio and is earnings enhancing to the Group.

In 2016 the Isle of Man business was sold for
£4.25 million.

The Group had £16.1 million of cash on the balance
sheet at 31 December 2016 to provide liquidity.

in January 2017 the Group sold its East Angtia portfolio

for £17 million. The Group’s revolving credit facility was
cancelled following the disposal in January 2017.

Net debt

£203.9m

2015: £174.4m
+13.7%

Johnston Press ple Annual Report ard Accounts 2016
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Key Performance Indicators

To measure performance against our strategic objectives, we monitor key performance indicators
(KPIs). Unless otherwise stated all figures and growth rates presented are adjusted, as this is the
internal measure that management use to measure the Group's performance. A reconciliation of
the statutory to adjusted figures is provided on page 133 and basis of preparation commentary

is provided in the Financial Review section. Our adjusted performance in 2016, includes the i from
date of acquisition in April 2016, and is measured against 2015 is shown below:

Financial KPIs

Total adjusted
revenue

£221.5m

-6.0%

Adjusted print
advertising revenue

£95.0m

1719

Adjusted
digital revenue

£26.6m

-8.5%

Adjusted
circulation revenue

£79.7m

+11.3%

Adjusted operating
costs including i

£179.4m

-3.8%

saving excluding i

£26.0m

16

Reason for choice:;
This metric is an output measure of our three key revenues lines, namely print advertising. digital
and newspaper sales revenues.

Performance:
Total adjusted revenue of £111.7 million was delivered in the first half of 2016 compared to £109.8 million
in the second half. (H1 2015 £123.6 million, H2 2015: £0121 million).

- After a period of difficult trading in the summer prompted by Brexit-related uncertainty. trading
improved in the fourth quarter as a result of both strategic initiatives implemented during H1 2016
and signs of improving business confidence.

« Total revenues were up 1% in Q4 compared to the equivalent quarter in the previous year. including
the revenues from the | as well as strong performance from other key titles such as The Yorkshire Post.
This compares to a 5% decline in Q3. in the immediate aftermath of the referendum outcome.

Reason for choice:
Sternming the decline in print advertising. which represents 43% of revenues. remains a focus for
the business.

Performance:
2016 saw continued downward pressure on print advertising revenue. as part of continuing structural
change exacerbated by Quarter 3. The sales transformation programme was completed in mid-2016.
with some Internal disruption and the migration of customers to the Media Sales Centre (MSC) during
the period,

- The news publishing market continues to suffer from the severe headwinds of falling advertising
revenues (particularly classified advertising).

Reason for choice:
Growing the digital revenues strearm is a key focus for the business as it invests in new digital products
and creates growth in revenue to replace declining print revenues.

Performance
- Statutory Digital revenues declined by 85% in 2016, as a result of steep decline in digital jobs market
+ The linkage between print and digital advertising revenues remains strong so the decline in print
- advertising had a negative Impact. Digital revenues have also been impacted by the challenging
econcmic conditions.
- During 2016, management made the decision to close sorme lower margin digital products,
» Training of the digital sales team will continue in 2017 as new products are rolled out.

Reason for choice:
This measure reflects the net effect of our pricing, sales volumes and customer offer for printed newspapers,

Performance:
The decline in circulation revenue in the existing portfolio has been offset by strong i circulation revenues,
resulting in 1.3% year-on-year growth.

- The j cover price rise in August 2016. has seen Q4 circulation revenues up 209 compared to the
equivalent quarter last year. These strong 1 circulation revenues are attributed to a combination
of the closure of the Independent newspaper. the Investment in creating a dedicated i newspaper
editorial team, strong and independent editorial leadership and the reintroduction of the title into
Northern Ireland and improved distribution.

Reason for chaoice:
This measure brings together the combined effects of cost saving initiatives, identification and
implementation of best practice across the Group.

Performance
- Operating costs (including depreciation and amortisation} adjusted for the acquisition of the i, were
reduced by £26 million in 2016. The cost reduction was achieved after continued investment in the
digital business and increased marketing support for new preducts.
The i was acquired in April 2016, incurring costs of £i5.2 million in the pericd ending 31 December 2016,

+ The Group continues to seek efficiency opportunities throughout the business. including further
portfolio rationalisation enabling fixed cost reductions in establishment and other costs.
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Adjusted
operating profit

£42.1m

-14.5%

Adjusted EBITDA

£49.1m

-12.4%

Net debt excluding
mark-to-market

£203.9m

+137%

Non-Financial KPIs

Employee health and
safety — accidents

0.7%

-0.2pp

Year-on-year
December print

and digital audience
(million unique users)

Total audience

37.8m

+6.0%

Print audience

15.3m
-5.9%

Digital audience

22.5m

+15.4%

Reason for choice:

Measuring operating profit growth ensures our continuing focus on returning to top line growth and
ensuring strong cost disciplines as the business is managed to the right size during our transformation
from a print to a predorninately digital business.

Performance:
In 2016 the Group reported an adjusted operating profit of £42.1 million, a decline of £7.2 million
on the prior year.

+ Whilst operating profit has fallen, operating margins remain strong at 19.09% (2015: 20.996),

Reason for choice:
Adjusted EBITDA is a key internal performance measure and is often used externally as a measure
of cash generation.

Performance:

- Adjusted EBITDA of £49.4 million was achieved in 2016, including the newly acquired i.
Management's continued focus on costs has enabled It to maintain an adjusted EBITDA margin
of sorme 2296, believed to be amongst the highest in our industry.

Reason for choice:
Managing obligations and strengthening the balance sheet remains a strategic priority.

Performance
Debt increased by £24.5 million over the period, primarily as a resuit of acquiring the i.
Having previously indicated that the Group would seek to sefl assets in non-strategic markets and.
subsequent to the acquisition of the i. the Group indicated that it would continue to seek to sell assats
with a view to replacing the cash invested.
In 2016 the Isle of Man business was sold for £4.25 million, and in January 2017 the Group completed
the sale of a portfolio of titles in the East Anglia and East Midlands for £17 million {Refer post balance
sheet events Note 32).

Reason for choice:

This KPI measures the number of employees Invelved in accidents within our printing and publishing
operation. This statistic measures the effectiveness of our health and safety procedure and is a key part
of our control enwvironment.

Performance:

- For the sixth year in succession, we have reduced the number of total accidents.

+ There were no accldents requiring notification under the Reporting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous
Occurrences Regulations (RIDDOR).

' The number of emplayees involved in accidents in the Group's printing and publishing operations in 2016 was 0.7%
compared to 0.9% in 2015,

Reason for choice:
Growing overall audience remains a key strategic priority as it rmeasures our ability to deliver high quality
content that resonates with our audiences.

Derforrnance
Our overall audience growth was driven by our digital platforrms. with average digital audience growing
from 19.5 million to 22.5 million unlgue users. During 2016. a significant programme of improvernents
was completed ensuring all 173 of our websites have now been refreshed and offer a greatly-enhanced
user experience.
Page views also increased year-on-year with 85.8 million page views in Decernber 2016 compared to
83.7 millkion in the prior year.
For the traditional Johnston Press titles, print circulation declined by 13.39% year-on-year. partly
mitigated by 33% growth in the i print audience (average readership ApriDecember).
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

There are a number of potential risks and uncertainties which have
been identified by the Company that could have a material impact
on the Group’'s long-term performance.

) Mitigating

Risk rating Change Risk ratlng
Risk Description {inherent) In 2016 " activitles . . [residual)
1. Refinancing June 2019 In order to refinance on High Increased The Company has instigated High
Failure to repay. refinance, commetrcial acceptable various initiatives to improve
satisfy or otherwise retire terms, the Company will . revenue performance and
the bonds at their maturity  need to meet prevailing reduce net debt.
would give rise to a default  market requirements,
under the indenture and including acceptable debt/ The Compary is exploring
could have a material impact  EBITDA leverage ratios. strategic options available
on the Group's operations {refer to the Viability -
and its ability to continue Statement on page 46).
as a going concern,
2, Print-based revenues There are continued threats High Increased The Group continues - High
Print advertising and to print-based revenues, to develop its digital
circulation revenues inciuding from competition advertising offering through
continue to decline threats in many markets partnerships, mobile apps and
at current levels, or and frorn changing new, digital-based products
accelerate further. technology and consurner and new websites. It has
habits, business change, invested in and reorganised its
reducing customer sales function to ensure a
numbers, circulations and more proactive and effective
paginations, Increased approach and that the sales
uncertainty following the offering is fully understood
referendum result to leave by sales staff and appropriate
the European Union. for customer needs,
3. New revenue streams The impact of dominant High Increased Search engine marketing High
Digita! revenues decline, market players (particularly (SEM) solutions which
or do not grow at the rate Facebook and Google) have include a Facebook element
needed to offset Print contributed to a slowdown are being developed. Mobite
decline over the short to in the growth of digital first sales teams are in place
medium term. display advertising. and all local digital sales
Increased mobile usage seek to include a mobile
has eroded margins. element. The Group has
There is a need to respond made considerable
quickly to evolving investment in Its customer
consumer dermands, database and improving
. customer relationship
New entrants in the rnanagement.
Property and Employment
digital markets has
increased pressure
an market share,
4. Cost reduction The need to further reduce  High Unchanged This is an area of ongoing Medium

The Group is required to
invest in cost reduction
and is constrained in its
ability to invest in
development.

costs limits the ability to
invest in the business and
requires that the Company
streamline its management
and reporting structure.

management attention.
The Group has continued
to find operaticnal
efficiencies as total revenue
has declined. Clear
organisational and
reporting responsibilities
are in place.
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Risk rating Change Mitigating Risk rating
Risk Description {inherent) in 20i6 activities {residual)
5. Liquidity The Group has interest High Increased Cash at bank was Medium
The Group is not able to costs of £19.4m and pension ! £16.1 million for the period
generate sufficient cash contributions of £10.3m. ended 31 Decembaer 2016,
from trading. Further downward pressure The East Anglia and East
on revenues could reduce Midlands title disposal
operating cashflow below completed in January 2017,
the level required to service generating £17 million of
interest and pension cash proceeds.
commitments,
6. Econamy The Company is subject Medium  Unchanged The Company seeks to Medium
The impact of changes in to prevailing economic forecast forthcoming
the economy and United conditions and the impact economic conditions
Kingdom economic of emergent and through its budgeting
performance. including unexpected events. It is process and monitoring
from Brexit. may have an also subject to conditions of prevailing conditions.
impact on the Group’'s in particular sectors, eg.
operations. property and employment.
7. Pension scheme The Company is engaged High Increased Expert advice is being taken. Medium
in negotiations with the Constructive engagement
trustees of its final salary with trustees is ongoing
pension scheme as part to explain the Company's
of the scheme’s triennial position. Ongoing dialogue
review. An affordable revised with the Pensions Regulator
schedule of contributions to ensure they are fully
dealing effectively with the informed, A revised pension
scheme's deficit requires contributions pltan will be
agreement. confirmed following the
companies strategic
options review.
8. Investment in growth The Company’s ability Medium  Increased The Company seeks to Medium
to invest in new digital limit the impact of these
product development constraints through a focus
and technology is limited. on the areas of highest
This hinders its ability to impact to support and
stay competitive and invest promote growth of its
in the digital products local display. features and
necessary in a rapidly entertainments products.
changing environment.
9. Data security The Company’s systems High Unchanged The Group has inbuilt Medium

and data integrity could

be vulnerable to disruption
and/or loss of. or loss of
access to, data. Poor quality
data could limit the
realisation of marketing and
business opportunities.

‘strength in depth’ for data
systerns and collaborates
with third party suppliers

to protect systems and data.
Data quality is the subject
of ongoing management
focus, monitoring and
reporting with training

for staff concerned.
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Operational Review

Delivering our strategy
Throughout a turbulent year of global
change we remained a leading source
of news and information in the
United Kingdem.

Whilst 2016 was challenging both for the
industry and Johnston Press, the business
continued to evolve, adapt and innovate.

The addition of the i national newspaper
to the portfolio - and subsequent launch
of inews.co.uk - has helped to accelerate
delivery of our strategy and we are able

to deliver national and regional advertisers
a highly successful platform to link them
directly with local audiences.

Audience development

The acquisition of the national newspaper
the i, coupled with the planned divestment
of sorme titles and the merging/closure

of others, resulted in a streamlined print
portfolio, which has aliowed for sharper
focus on growing audiences in markets
and across groups of titles that offer

the best digital and economic growth
and/or prospects.

The relaunch of all of our websites ensured
a better digital experience for users as we
continued to focus on better audience
engagement on our digital platforms.

A number of editorial initiatives to grow
both print and digital audiences through
improved content were implemented,
including We Are Digital (see case study
on page 22) and the Big Cities Strategy -
which encouraged one consistent and
relevant content plan across all city titles.

Digital product and

market development

It is increasingly vital to offer an optimised
mix of advertising solutions and Johnston
Press is uniquely positioned to deliver
these solutions. Throughout 2016 Johnston
Press put in place a fiexible organisational
design, smarter solutions and the right
tools to reach readers and serve customers
better than ever, giving them the right
preduct on the right device, at the

right time.

QOur sales force is now data-driven and
allows us to serve customers in a profitable
way with specialised teams.

We have a new understanding of the most
advanced algorithmic/programmatic
sources and are leveraging our expertise
in locally-relevant content, offering cur
advertisers a native advertising service to
generate content to connect with readers,

Qur newsrooms have sophisticated new
tools and skills to publish onto social
channels such as Facebook, and are
‘going live' to broadcast from anywhere

- providing truly local content that reaches
far beyond our borders.

Operations and production

The printing services division secured two
further significant contracts in 2018, further
strengthening its position as one of the
best print providers in the country, (see
case study on page 3) a testament to the
highly-skilled tearns based at the Sheffield,
Portsmouth and Carn sites.
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Commercial development

Qur sector continues to be impacted by
challenging print revenue trends but we
are now better placed than ever to serve
the advertising needs of our customers,

During 2016 we focused on restructuring
our sales teams and adopted a modern
and consistent approach to selling creative,
native and targeted digital and print
advertising solutions. Our raft of products
and multi-platform approach to
advertising means we are now better
positioned to meet the individual needs

of our advertisers.

Around 21.000 of our smaller, infrequent
clients have been transferred to our Media
Sales Centres, high and mid-spend sales
teams have consolidated and a new
acquisitions team created to help attract
new business or revive lapsed customers.

A new commercial platform was launched
tosupport |LDFE (Local Cisplay. Features
and Entertainment} and new Go To Market
coltateral created as part of the sales
transformation.

Monetisation of increased digital traffic
thraugh our national sates platform 1XL
enabled digital revenue to increase by

10% in Q4 year-on-year, and with a
comScore unique total audience reach
now exceeding 22.7 million (Total Audience
January 2017}, 1XL can match the national
unigue coverage offered by the portals
through display media hosted exclusively
on sought-out, unigue-content filled and

_impficitly trusted branded news sites.

Information technology

The IT department was restructured around
three pillars in 2016 - Agile. Core and Finance
IT to improve delivery time on key projects.

As always, IT was at the core of the
business playing a significant role in most
major projects during 2016, including
delivering a full end-to-end technical
solution for the i in six weeks. which
included Editorial, Advertising and
Newspaper Sales, alongside the
commissioning of a new office and
associated computer systems.

The team has also completely re-
engineered the Group's financial systems
in order to support the move to a vertical
structure and heavily supported the
Salesforce project team through its

pilot to successful launch.
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Management structure

A number of changes to the management
structure have been made to ensure the
business is as agile and effective

as possible. .

In earty March 2017, Jeff Moriarty, our
Chief Digital & Product Officer, took
on the additionaf responsibility for the
multi-platform publishing strategy to
ensure our portfolio offered a truly
integrated digital and print offering.

The commercial teams have undergone
significant changes as part of the Sales
transformation and a single. collaborative
function has enabled us to focus on
growing revenue through providing an
even better customer experience.

A new LDFE and Sales Operations
leadership team has helped to accelerate
the sales strategy. as we continued to
equip and develop our teams to provide
a consistent, quality service to customers.

The team continue to provide quality data
50 we can approach how we target and
serve custormers in the right way. This will
help us secure longer-term bookings and
take action on the back of revenue trends
to ensure we are focusing our

efforts accordingly.

Property and estate

We have continued to review our property
portfolio to identify markets and centres
that have an accommodation which no
longer meets the requirements of the
business. During 2016 we disposed of ten
freehold properties and exited nine leases
{net of relocations). Overall we reduced the
total number of operating properties
within the portfolic from 125 at the end of
2015 to 107 by the end of 2016, with nearly
half of all staff either having relocated or
having seen investment in their work
envirenment in recent years. The Group
expects to take advantage of additional
opportunities to rationalise the property
portfolio across 2017, including 8 feases
that will be reassigned or sublet as part
of the East Midlands and East Anglia title
disposal to lliffe Media Ltd,
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Case Studies

“WE ARE DIGITAL INITIATIVE

2016 signalled a huge step change
in the Company's evolution as we
became ever-more digitally
focused,

We Are Digital launched in May to
support editorial colleagues in the
constantly changing media landscape
and ensure that our compelling content
reached a growing multimedia audience,

Building on the 'Newsroom of the Future'
initiative, the aim of We Are Digital was to
set universal standards and best practice
for digital content and behaviour and
ensure the speedy deployment of
successful campaigns to our newsrooms.

Through collaboration. better sharing

of expertise and nurturing digital talent,
We Are Digital aimed to deliver stronger
content and better social media, an
improved digital newsroom structure,
increased video content and a new
digital hub.

The ambition was to see significant
increases in page views, unique users and
greater social engagement across the
portfolio. It was hoped that monetisation
of this traffic through 1XL would alsc,
therefore. increase,

The team launched a digital academy ~
with 12 areas of best practice. New Social
Media Editor roles were created with 11
appointrnents in place by the end of the

year and test centres for new tools and
technology set up in Sunderland and
Northampton,

Weekly conference call meetings, digital
tutorials, social media initiatives and
Croup-wide sharing of successes, led by
a 40-strong deployment team, started
to have an effect with new tools, such

as Playbuzz which creates content in
interactive formats including polls and
quizzes - enjoying high levels of uptake.

The initiative is now fully emnbedded into
the Company culture and will continue
to adapt and evolve according to
changing technology. consumer habits

. and strategic priorities of the business.

In 2016 We Are Digital helped to deliver:

15%

increase in unique users year-on-year
(2016 vs 2015)

5%

increase in page views {2016 vs 2015)'
despite the industry-wide shift of consumers’
consumption to mobile and social networks

60%

increase in Facebook followers, now 2 million
followers (growth from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2016)2

b Source: IBM Digital Analytics 2015vs 2016,
*  Source: Crowdtangle Analytics Facebook Leaderboard.
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SPECIAL INVESTIGATIONS
UNIT LAUNCHED

In November Johnston Press
launched a new Investigations Unit
with its first project. a hard-hitting
report revealing the truth behind
Britain's deadly road crimes and
the scandal of lenient sentencing.

The unit allows titles to share the output
from our team of investigative reporters,
giving all of them access to expert and
well-researched reporting. Led by
multi-award-winning investigative
reporter Aasma Day, of the Lancashire
Past, the Unit is made up of reporters
fromn each of our regions and together
they unveiled the shocking findings of
its Drive for Justice investigation. The
report exposed that. despite hundreds
of convictions for causing death by
dangerous driving. no-one in the UK has
ever received the maximum sentence
of 14 years' imprisonment.

The report also revealed that drivers
who kill have been sentenced to an
average of just four years in prison with
dozens of convicted drivers escaping jail
altogether. Despite a trail of shattered
lives and family tragedies across the UK
culpable drivers have often walked
away from court either with'light
sentences or no sentence at all.

nationally on launch day.

The launch piece was used across our
14 daily titles - including the i - and tailored  to re-work sentencing guidelines and train
with local case studies. Many weeklies
followed suit and carried the content in
print in the days and weeks following and handed out to the worst offenders.
online from day one, The Twitter hashtag
#DriveForlusticeCampaign gained
thousands of impressions and trended

The campaign called on the Covernment

Jjudges so they use the full powers available
to them and ensure tougher sentences are

So far, questions have been asked in the
House of Commons and the Scottish
Parliament and the UK Government

has launched a major consultation over
sentencing. More than 3,000 readers
signed an online petition calling for stiffer
punishments.
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Financial Review

Strong circulation performance from the acquisition of the i newspaper
and improving volume trends across regional titles helped partially offset
challenging advertising trading conditions which saw adjusted operating

profit decline in 2016,

Introduction _
This Financial Review provides commentary on the Group's statutory and
adjusted performance during the 52-week period ended 31 December 2016
(2015: 52 weeks). .

Basis of presentation of results

The statutory results are for the continuing Group, which exclude the
disposed of Isle of Man business. The prior year statutory results have been
restated to exclude discontinued operations.

in preparing commentary on performance, the financial impact ofa
nurnber of significant accounting and operational items has been removed
to determine the adjusted results discussed in this Financial Review. The
adjusted results are considered a more meaningful presentation of the
‘underlying’ results of the Group, excluding the effect of closed titles and
businesses and the significant impairrnent charged in the period.

The i newspaper is included in results from the date of acquisition. in April
2016, and therefore is not included in the 2015 comparatives.

A reconciliation of statutory to adjusted figures is provided on page 30.
and further disclosure is provided on page 133

Statutory Adjusted
2016 2015 Change Change 2016 2015 Change Change
im £m £m 9% £m £m fm %
Newspaper sales 79.9 720 79 11.0% 79.7 7.6 81 1.3%
Contract printing 12.8 126 0.2 1.3% 128 12.6 0.2 1.4%
Print advertising excluding classified 61.3 67.8 (6.5} (9.59) 61.0 66.9 (5.9) {8.9%)
Digital advertising excluding classified 18.6 18.6 0.0 (0.296) 185 183 02 119%
Print and Digital advertising excluding

classified 79.9 86.4 (6.5) (7.596) 79.5 8s5.2 (5.7) (6.796)
Classified and other advertising 427 62.6 {19.9) {31.896}) 421 585 (16.4)  (28.09)
Total advertising revenue 122.6 149.0 {26.4) (17.7%6} 121.6 1437 (22.1) {15.496)
Leaflet, syndication and other revenue 7.4 85 (1.1 {12.296) 7.4 78 (0.4) (5.096)
Total continuing revenues 222.7 2421 (19.4) (8.096) 221.5 2357 (14.2) {6.090)
Operating costs’ (538.4) {233.4) {305.0)  131.0% 172.4) (179.7) 7.3 (4.196)
EBITDA? nfa nfa 491 56.0 6.9) {12.496)
Depreciation and amortisation (7.4} (8.4) 1.0 M.496} (7.0) ©6.7) (0.3) 32%
Operating (loss)/profit (323.1) 03 (323.4} nfa 421 493 {7.2) (14.5%)

Operating (loss)/profit margin n/a nfa 19.0% 20.9%

' Opemting costs include cost of sales and are stated before depreciation and amortisation.
?  EBITDA is eamings before interest. tax. depreciation and armortisation.
3 The i newspaper is included in results from the date of acquisition, in April 2016,
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Revenue

Total adjusted revenues were down 6.0% for the year, and down 13.6% excluding the . Tough trading conditions in 2015 continued into
2016 and were exacerbated in Q3 prompted by Brexit-related uncertainty. Trading improved in Q4 as a result of both strategic initiatives
implemented during H1 2016 and signs of improving business confidence.

Total revenues in Q4 were up 1% compared to the equivalent quarter last year compared to a 5% decline in Q3 in the immediate
aftermath of the Brexit vote.

Digital advertising was impacted by tough trading conditions, but also impacted by a significant decline in digital employment
revenues, down £2.2 million. 27.2% year-on-year. .

Newspaper sales revenue

A mix of cover price increases, continued rationalisation and content irmprovement initiatives across the portfolio and the sale of the
titles has contributed to adjusted newspaper sales revenues of £79.7 million in the year (including the i). This compares to newspaper
sales revenue of £71.6 million in 2015, year-on-year growth of 11.3%. Total circulation revenues have increased overall due to the inclusion
of the | newspaper which has mitigated the overall deciine in the remaining title portfolio.

Adjusted newspaper sales revenues excluding the | were £65.0 million for 2016 (2015: £71.6 million). & decline of 9.3%.

Contract printing

Contract printing revenue of £12.8 million was marginally up year-on-year by 1.3%. Printing revenue grew year-on-year 5.2% to £10.2
miillion while revenues from paper supply fell by 11.496 to £2.6 million as a result of circulation volume reduction of customer titles.

Two major contracts were announced in 2016 and the first quarter of 2017 [refer to case study on page 3) which has helped mitigate
the decline in intermal Group printing. The Group has three high-quality print presses that are well positioned to service both its external
custorners and the Group's own portfolio.

Advertising revenue
The news publishing market continues to suffer from the severe headwinds of both falling advertising revenues [particularly classified
advertising} and the decline in print circulation.

Total advertising revenue (excluding classified) was down 6.7% year-on-year. Total advertising revenue {excluding classifieds) fell 796 in Q3
compared to the equivalent quarter last year, imprdving to down 2.5% in Q4. Classified revenue performance was down 28,0% year-on-
year. The employment category was particularly heavily hit. down 26.59% in print and 2729 in digital.

Excluding the i, total advertising revenue (excluding classifieds) declined 10% for the year, having declined 129 in Q3, while improving
to a 79 decline in Q4. Classifieds also showed a marginal improvement in run rate in Q4 compared to Q3.

Quarterly adjusted advertising revenue performance, including i. is presented in the table below.

Adjusted
H12016 H2 2016 2016
Q12016 Q2 2016 Total Q3 2016 Q4 2016 Total Total
2016 Quarterly adjusted revenue performaonce, including i £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Print and Digita! advertising excluding classified 202 19.8 40.0 19.4 20. 39.5 79.5
Classified and other advertising 12.4 n.2 236 10.0 8.5 18.5 42)
Total advertising revenue 326 310 63.6 294 286 58.0 121.6
H12015 HZ 2015 2015
Q12015 Q22015 Total Q32015 Q4 2015 Total Total
2015 Quartarly adjusted revenue performance, excluding | Em Em Em £m Em Em £m
Print and Digital advertising excluding classified 23.0 208 43.8 208 206 4.4 85.2
Classified and other advertising 16.7 15.8 325 14.5 n.s 26.0 58.5
Total advertising revenue 397 366 76.3 353 323 67.4 143.7
Quarterly performance trend
Print and Digital advertising excluding classified {12.0%) {5.09) {8.79%) (7.096) (2.5%) {4.7%) (6.7%)
Classified and other advertising (25.596) (29.296) (27.4%) (31.396) (25.9%) (28.9%) (28.0%)
Total advertising revenue (17.796) (15.49) (16.6%) (16.9%) (10.9%) (13.9%) (15.4%)
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Financial Review continued

Print and digital publishing advertising adjusted revenue analysis

Full year First half Sacond half
2016 2015 9% 2016 2015 % 2016 2005 9%
Adjusted revenue including | £m £m change £m Em change £&m £m change
Display -~ local and national 491 53.9 (9.09%) 24.4 275 {11.396) 24.7 264 {6.596)
Transaction revenues 26.5 279 [4.99%) 13.7 14.8 (7.496) 12.8 131 (2.196)
Digital marketing services®
& Enterprise 39 3.4 13.7% 19° 1.5 26.7% 2.0 1.9 57%
Print and digital publishing '
advertising 79.5 85.2 {6.796) 40.0 438 (8.796) 95 4.4 (4.796)
Classifieds and other advertising 421 585 {28.0%) 236 325 (27496} 18.5 26.0 {28.9%)
Total advertising revenue 1216 %37 (15.496) 63.6 76.3 (16.696) 58.0 67.4 {13.99)
Print publishing advertising 61.0 66.9 (8.8%) 30.9 348 (11.39¢) 301 321 {6.39%)
Digital publishing advertising 18.5 183 1.2% 8% 9.0 1.4% 9.4 9.3 1.0%
Print and digital publishing ’
advertising 79.5 85.2 (6.79%) 40.0 438 (8.796) 395 4.4 {4.796)
Full year First half Second half
2016 2015 % 2006 2015 9% 2006 2015 %
Adjusted revenue excluding i £m £m change £m £m change £m £m change
Display - local and national 46.4 539 (13.796) 238 275 (13.5%} 226 26.4 {14.0%6)
Transaction revenues 26.5 279 (4.9%6) 13.7 14.8 {7.496} 12.8 131 (2.396)
Digital marketing services'
& Enterprise 39 34 . 129% 1.9 1.5 26.7% 2.0 19 5.3%
Print and digital publishing
" advertising 76.8 852" (9.8%) 39.4 43.8 (10.09%) 37.4 4.4 (9.496)
Classifieds and other advertising 41.5 58.5 (28.89%) 235 325 {27796} 18.0 260 (30.496)
Total advertising revenue 8.3 1437 (17.59%) 629 76.3 (17.696} 55.4 67.4 {17.596)
Print publishing advertising S8.4 66.9 (12.6%6) 303 348 (12.8%) 281 321 {12.496)
Digital publishing advertising 18.4 183 0.6% A 9.0 0.9% 93 9.3 0.4%
Print and digital publishing
advertising 76.8 85.2 (9.79¢) 39.4 43.8 (10.09¢6} 374 4.4 (2.59¢}

! Digital marketing services, formerly Digital Kitbag (OK8]

Leaflets, syndication and other revenues
Leaflets, syndication and other revenues (which-include events, reader offers and waste sales) declined £0.4 miillion period-on-peried.
which can be attributed to a reduction in the number of events and outsourcing of leaflet business to Mediaforce.

The table below presents the historic adjusted revenue presentation, for the purpose of reconciling to the Group’s previous revenue
reporting and statutory breakdowns in the note to the financial statements.

Full yaar (including i}

Full year (excluding i}

2016 2015 2016 2015

£m £&m 9% change £m £€m % change
Advertising revenue
Print 95.0 14.6 (17.190) 92.0 4.6 (19.7%)
Digital 26.6 291 {8.59%) 26.5 291 {8.896)
Total advertising revenue 1216 1437 (15.496) nsa.5 143.7 (17.596)
Non-advertising revenue
Newspaper sales 79.7 ne 1.3% 65.0 7.6 {9.396)
Contract printing 12.8 126 1.49% 12.8 12,6 1.4%
Other 7.4 78 (5.09) 6.9 7.8 (11.5%)
Total other revenue 99.9 92.0 8.5% 84.7 920 {7.596)
Total continuing revenue 2215 2357 {6.09) 203.2 2357 {12.6%)
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Operating costs
Operating costs (including depreciation and amortisation) were reduced to £179.4 rnillion in 2016 from £186.4 million in 2015,
representing, on an adjusted basis, a £7.0 million year-on-year reduction, including the costs of the i, acquired in April 2016.

Excluding the i, adjusted operating cost savings of £26 million were achieved by the Group. Cost savings were made across alfl areas
of the business including production, distribution, editorial, sales, marketing. establishment, administration and head office costs.

The depreciation charge rose by £03 million to £7.0 million in 2016 as a result of the digital investment in 2013 and onwards.

The weakness of sterling post the Brexit vote has increased the cost of imported paper and ink. However. management’s continued
focus on costs has enabled it to maintain an adjusted EBITDA margin of some 22% (compared to 24% in the prior year). believed to
be armongst the highest in our industry.

Operating profit

In 2016 the Group's adjusted operating profit was £42.) million, a 14.5% decline on the prior year, Adjusted Total Group revenues were
down £14.2 million to £221.5 million, a decline of 6.09. This decline was partially mitigated by cost reductions of £26.0 million, excluding
the cost incurred following the acquisition of the i. Operating margin declined slightly from 20.996 to 19.0% in the pericd.

Finance income and costs

Adjusted total net finance costs were £19.5 million. an increase of £0.5 million year-on-year. Adjusted total operating finance costs
reduced by £0.3 million year-on-year, as the Group had the full-year benefit of the August 2015 bond buy-back Investment income
includes dividends received from the Press Association in 2015, No similar dividends were received in 2016, The fair value gain on the
beond for the period to 31 December amounted to £43.6 million {period t¢ 2 January 2016: £23.9 rillion gain). Refer to Note 21
Borrowings for further information.

Net financing income/(costs)

Statutory Adjusted’®

2016 2015 £m 2016 2015 Em

£m £m change Em £m change

Interest oh bond (19.0) 19.3) 03 (19.0) 19.3) 03
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans : {0.4) (04) C.0 0.49) {0.4) 0.0
Amortisation of term delst issue costs (0.2} {0.2) 00 {0.2} {0.2) 00
Financing fees - (0.1} ol - - -
Total operating finance costs (19.6) (20.0} 0.4 19.6) (12.9) 0.3
Investment income . 0.1 0.9 (0.8) al 09 (0.8)
Net finance expense on pension liabilities/assets {0.8) (2.9) 2] - - -
Change in fair value of borrowings 43.6 239 19.7 - - -
Exceptional financing costs (0.5) - {0.5) - - -
Total net financing income/{costs) . 228 19 20.9 19.5) (19.0) [0.5)

' Adjusted net financing costs excludes the mark-to-market fair value gain on the bond of £43.6 million [2015: £23.9 million gain). pension finance expense and
exceptional financing costs.

Reconciliation of net debt to net debt excluding mark-to-market

Full year Full year
2006 2015
£m £m
Gross bond debt (at inception) 2250 2250
Bond repurchase {5.0) (5.0)
Cash and cash equivalents . {16.1) (40.8)
Net debt excluding mark-to-market 203.9 179.4
Mark-to-market on bond {from inception} (72.6) {29.0)
Beond discount {net) {4.4) (4.4)
Net debt 126.9 1461

Profit before tax
The Group's adjusted profit before tax was £22.9 million (2015: £30.7 million). The year-on-year decline of £7.8 million is due to the
reduction in revenues being only partly mitigated by operating cost savings.
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Tax rate

The Income Statement includes a tax credit of £563.4 million (2015: £8.5 million tax credit) which comprises a current tax charge
of £0.7m (2015: £0.4m tax credit) and a deferred tax credit of £54.1 million {2015: £8.1 million tax credit). The Staterment of Other
Comprehensive Income includes a £1.1m current tax credit in refation to the current tax benefit of pension contributions in excess
of net pension financial charges.

The deferred tax credit of £54.) million arises primarily as a result of the impairment of publishing titles, which resulted in a £623 million
release of deferred tax fiability. A deferred tax charge of £8.4 million arose in the period in relation to the bond.

The Group's effective tax rate was 17.796 for the 2016 financial year {2015: 391.29%). The effective tax rate was reduced from the prevailing
UK corporation tax rate of 20.0% largely due to the difference between the current and deferred tax rates applied, with the difference
arising primarily on the Group's publishing titles,

Refer to Note 9 and 23 in the financial statements for further detail.

{Loss)/earnings per share and dividends

Statutory Adjusted

Baslc EPS Basic EPS
{Loss)fearnings per share for continulng operations 2016 2015 2016 2015
{Loss)/earnings (Em) less preference dividend {247.0) 10.6 17.6 24.]
Number of ordinary shares {m) ' 1053 1053 105.3 105.3
EPS (pence} (234.6) 10.0 16.7 229

A reconciliation of statutory to adjusted earnings per share is detailed within the detailed reconciliation of the statutory to adjusted
shown on page 133.

The provisions of the Group's bond restrict the Company's ability to pay dividends on the Company's ordinary shares until certain
conditions, including that net leverage is below 2.25x EBITDA, are met. Although the Board wishes to resume dividend payments as
soon as is appropriate, no ordinary dividend is declared for the period.

Preference share dividends of £0. million were approved on 18 May 2016 and paid on 30 June 2016 based on the Directors consideration
of distributable reserves available at the time. Following continued difficult trading conditions and Brexit impacting discount rates,

a further review of the valuation of intangibles was undertaken resulting in a significant impairment at the interim and the extinguishment
of distributabte reserves, As a result, preference share dividends were not paid at the year-end but have been accrued.

Acquisition of the i ‘
©On 10 April 2016, Johnston Publications Limited, a 100% owned subsidiary of the Group, acquired the principal assets of “the i, part of
the Independent Group for a consideration of £24.1 million (including working capital).

Since acquisition, the i has generated £18.5 millien of revenue and incurred £15.2 million of operating costs, generating EBITDA of £33
million {H116 £0.4 million, H216 £2.9 million). Cashflows in relation to the i acquisition in the period are summarised in the table below:

2016

£m
Cash consideration paid in period 22.0
Fees incurred and paid in period 1.8

Further cash consideration of £2.0 million is due to be paid in April 2017.

The level of fees incurred reflected the acquisition being classified as a Class One transaction requiring a prospectus and the
involverment of Reporting Accountants.

Cashflow and net debt

The Group's net debt increased to £203.9 million at 31 December 2016 reflecting the acquisition of the | on 10 April 2016, and excludes
mark-to-market on the bond and bond discounts totalling £77.0 miillion. In the period, a £43.6 million fair value movement gain has
been recognised. The net debt after mark-to-market adjustments was £126.9 million. Refer to the table above for a reconciliation
between statutory net debt and net debt excluding mark-to-market on page 27 and Note 21.

Cash generated from operations of £16.5 million is after payment of a £2.9 million LTIP payment relating to the 2014 refinancing that was
payable in early 2016, the cash for which was raised in 2014, £1.8 million for | acquisition costs. and pension contributions of £9.7 million.

Cash interest paid in the period was £19.4 million (2 January 2016; £19.7 million).
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Cash held at 31 Decernber 2016 was £16.) million. with the reduction from the prior period largely due to the acquisition of the i and the
impact of underlying trading performance and payrent of restructuring accruals (E2.4 million] and a one-off LTIP accruals (£3.9 million]
set-up in 2014, being paid out in 2016. Capital expenditure was reduced to £6.] million (2 January 2016: £7.8 million) offset by £2.3 million
received from non-core asset sales (2 January 2016: £23 million} (Note 14). During the period, the Group disposed of assets in the Isle of
Man, for proceeds of £4.25 million.

In January 2017. the Group announced that it had successfully divested 13 East Anglian and East Midlands titles to lliffe Media Limited.
receiving cash proceeds of £17.0 million. The Croup’s revolving credit facility (RCF) was renegotiated in 2016 but was cancelled on
completion of the disposal. Refer to post-balance sheet event Note 32.

2019 bond refinancing

The Group’'s borrowings consist of £220.0m of bonds due for repayment on 1 June 2019. The Directors, along with the Group’s advisors,
are currently exploring the strategic options available to the Group in relation to its £220 million 8.625% senior secured notes which
become due on 1 June 2019, This is fully discussed in the Viability Statement.

Net liabilities position

At the period end, the Group had a net deficit of £24.7 million, a reduction in assets of £283.7 million on the prior year, The moverment in
the net asset position from the prior year includes: an impairment write-down of £344.3 million {discussed further below). a £40.8 million
increase in the pension deficit, partially offset by £43.6 million reduction in borrowings {which is due to the fair value gain of £43.6 million
recorded in the period) and a reduction of £60.5 million in the net deferred tax liabilities {arising primarily from the movement in
intangibles and pensions).

Asset impairment

The carrying value of assets is reviewed for impairment at least annually or more frequently if there are indications that they might be
impaired. In light of the difficult trading conditions that continued in 2016, and the resulting decline in adjusted operating profit. the
Group has written down the carrying value of certain assets by £344 million. The impairment charge on publishing titles and print assets
reflects the current trading performance, and reduced long term growth rates, The write-down reduces the assets carrying value of
publishing titles to £120 million {excluding the i) and print assets to £20 million. [Refer t¢ Note 13 and 14 in the financial statements).

As a consequence of the impairment of publishing titles. the Company has net assets which are less than half of its called-up share
capital. Pursuant to section 656 of the Companies Act 2006, the directors will call a general meeting of the company within 28 days to
consider whether any. and if so what, steps shouid be taken to deal with the situation. As part of its strategic review the Company is
working with its advisers to address the issues which result from this.

Pensions . :

As at 31 December 2016, the net pension deficit has increased to £67.7 million from £27.0 million at 2 January 2016, The increase in
deficit is largely a result of a significant rise in pension liabilities due to falling corporate bond yields and increasing inflation expectations
together with a small adjustrment on mortality assurmnptions.

Each of the financial assurnptions were reviewed in light of market conditions resulting in the application of a discount rate of 2.7%
{down from 3.75% at 2 January 2016). and an increase in inflation assurnption by 0.4% to 3.4%. The increase in liabilities has been
substantially offset by positive asset returns over the year.

The 'health study completed in 2015 has continued to be used to inform the mortality assumptions and the application of the historic
spousal age differences. Allowing for most recent scheme experience, the mortality assumption has decreased from + three to + two
years. The revised mortality assumption has resulted in a revision of the future life expectancy of males and females aged 65 frorm 19.7
and 213 respectively to 201 and 21.7 respectively. Refer to Note 22 for more detailed disclosure surrounding the Johnston Press
Pension Plan,

During the course of 2016, the Group completed the legal process concerning the equalisation of scherme benefits for “Affected
members in the Portsmouth & Sunderland section of the Pian. The outcome of the aforementioned consultation has the effect of
changing the scheme rules and this has been recognised as a Past Service Cost in the Group Income Staterment. A charge of £3.5
million has been reflected against a possible risk of £8 miltion identified in the 2015 Annual Report contingent liabilities disclosure.

The results of the triennial valuation were due at the end of March 2017. Agreement with the Trustees will be deferred until the Group
has completed its review of its strategic options relating to the refinancing of the bonds in June 2019. The Annual Report includes
disclosure of the current position and the Company will provide an update when it is in a position to do so. Pension contributions will
continue to be made by the Company at the leve! previously agreed (£10.3 million for 2017).
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Financial Review coninued

Pension scheme deficit - 2 year history of
managed and market driven movements

Capital expenditure

The Group capitalised £6.1 million of assets in the period (2015: £7.8 million), Of this. £4.6 million was spent on developing the digital
platforms (2015: £5.0 million} and £1.6 million spend on other infrastructure (2015: £3.8 miillion). including £0.4 rillion on leasehold
improvements and £1.2 million on other plant and machinery.

Reconciliation of statutory and adjusted results

Adjusted operating profit of £42.1 million (2015: £49.3 million) includes the results of the i from the acquisition date and has been
calculated after adjusting for revenue and cost of sales for closed titles and digital brands. Adjustments made to operating costs include
restructuring. impairment and other non-trading related costs.

Continuing statutory revenue has been adjusted for closed titles and digital products. The adjustment to revenue is a £1.2 million
reduction in 2016. and £6.4 million in 2015. A detailed reconciliation of the statutory to adjusted revenue adjustrments is shown on
page 133,

A recongciliation of statutory to adjusted operating (loss)/profit and to EBITDA. is provided below:

Reconciliation of statutory and adjusted results Operating lossyprofi

Full year Fult year

2016 2015

£m Em

Statutory Operating (loss)/profit (323.) 03

Adjustments

Closure of titles/digital products : 0.2 {0.4)
Accelerated depreciation T 0.5 16
Pensions equalisation {including professional fees)? 4 ‘ -
Pension costs 1.0 1.5
Restructuring 9.3 9.4
Impairment! 344.3 35.2
i acquisition costs 1.8 -
Other costs 4.0 26
Other exceptional credits/gains on disposal - 0.0}
Adjusted Operating {loss)/profit 421 493
Depreciation and amortisation 7.0 6.7
EBITDA 49 56.0

' Impairment includes publishing titles, print presses and property assets. Refer to impairment commentary in the Financial Review.
?  pension equalisation includes £35 million of pension equalisation cost (Note 22) and £0.6m of associated legal and professional fees.
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Financial reporting
The effect of IFRS standard changes that are applicable to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 are further described
in Note 2,

Factors affecting future group performance
The performance of the Group will continue to be affected by the economic conditions in our markets, cyclical conditions, structural
ang business-specific circumstances and economic trends including employment, property transactions, new car sales and the levels
of consumer and SME confidence. Howaver, the outlook for the Group will also depend on a number of other factors, including:
. growing new digital revenues in the Group’s existing market segments to offset print revenue decline;
- ability to adapt to customer requirements through new sales propositions and digital advertising channels;
the impact of new entrants and competitors to the market;
continually improving existing efficient operations through technology infrastructure and improved processes;
- further re-engineering of the cost base of the business:
- the level of investrment required to support digital growth, and restructuring, and its impact on cash genetation;
impact on the sterling following Brexit impacting paper prices; and
- conclusion of negotiations with pension Trustees regarding annual pension contnbutlons.

Five year summary
The Group's current leve! of debt reflects the residual debt left in the business following a period of acquisitions in the early 2000s.

The Group has continued to seek to reduce the level of debt despite experiencing revenue contraction, consistent with the wider
newspaper publishing industry,

Action has been taken to offset a (arge part of the revenue decline experienced during the period through both growth of its digitai
business over the period and through cost reductions of over £100 million before investment in Digital of £28 million {representing over
one-third of total costs at the beginning of the period).

Most recently the Group acquired the i as part of its strategy to create new revenue streams.

Performance history charts’
Revenues {Em) Operating costs (including depreciation)? (Em)

EBITDA* (Em) Net debt (Em)

' Financial information is presented on an adjusted basis

* 2012 presented on an underlying basis after adjustment for the termination of News Intemational print contract and daily to weekly/closed titles but not adjusted
for subsequent disposals or closures.

3 Depreciation 2012: £12.7m reducing to ¢ £67m in 2015 and £7.0m in 2016

¢ Qperating profit margin increasad from 179% to 199,
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Corporate Social Responsibility

Ensuring the sustainability
of the business

As a major participant in the local media world. we continue to ensure that our business activities meet with key sustainability and
efficiency principles. We look to promote corporate social responsibility throughout the Group. The interests of the environment as well
as the future sustainability of the business also have an influence upon the Group.

Business ethics
We are ever-conscious of the importance of ensuring the developrnent and implementation of ethical and non-discriminatory policies
and strategies when dealing with employees, suppliers, subscribers, customers and shareholders.

We strive to operate our business in accordance with a code of ethics and have a range of policies for dealing with a number of key legal
and compliance issues, such as anti-bribery requirements, corruption and confiicts of interest. This year we have also developed our
Anti-Slavery Staternent in line with the new requirements and which we will look to evolve and adapt in line with emergent best
practice, Qur Anti-Slavery Staterment Is set out on our website at wwwjohnstonpress.co.ukfinvestorsfanti-slavery-statement.

The Group operates an Internal Editorial Governance Committee with the remit of ensuring effective compliance with the Independent
Press Standards Organisation (IPSO} guidance and adjudications as well as all other relevant legislation and editorial guidance, The
Committee regularly reviews relevant policies and procedures: it also feeds back to IPSO on behalf of the Group following reguiar
consultation with the Group's Editorial Board. The editorial policies and procedures help to ensure that the business as a whole is able
to effectively and consistently deal with relevant editorial issues. This continues to be an important cbjective for the business in
addressing its commitment to responsible and ethical journalism. We believe that the relatively low numbers of adjudications upheld
by IPSO in relation to the Group's publications help to demonstrate the effectiveness of our pelicies and procedures.

\We are also focused on prioritising our digital rights and responsibilities, ethical conduct, as well as data sacurity and privacy: and we
strive to tackle challenging issues proactively by seeking to make our communications and-processes simple, open and transparent.

Board responsibility . .

The Executive Directors hold responsibility for ensuring that the business addresses all issues relating to corporate social responsibility.
They set the tone of the ethical strategy and measures adopted by the business and are assisted and guided by the Company Secretary.
In particular. the Directors review the Corporate Social Responsibility Statement for the business and monitor key developments in
corporate erwironmental. socia! and governance issues with a view to responding to changes in legislation, regulation and best industry
practices. Moreover, relevant risks are also regularly assessed by the Board when conducting their engoing risk analysis of the business.

Responsibility for the drafting. reviewing and compliance with the Group's human resou r.ces policies sits with the Group HR Director
who reports directly to the Chief Executive Officer.

Diversity

Wa believe in equal opportunity, fairness and respect for all employees and our Diversity Policy promotes this culture. We recognise and
appreciate the differences of age, gender, gender reassignment, marital or family status, race, nationality. ethnic origin. disability. religion
and betlief and sexual orientation. Our approach to diversity benefits our employees, our business, our customers. our suppliers, our
shareholders and the communities we operate in. We are proud to have a diverse workforce that ensures we remain relevant and
engaging within the communities we serve. )

The age and gender profiles for our workforce are shown in the table below:

016 20i5
Gender . 2006 2015 % %
Female ’ 1170 1434 46.9 505
Mate 1,325 1406 531 48,5
Total full time employees . 2,495 2,840 100.0 100.0
Age aroup
Under 30 - 487 542 19.5 19.1
30to 39 696 798 279 281
40 to 49 641 738 . 25.7 26.0
50 to 59 521 605 209 213
Over 60 150 156 6.0 55
Total full time employees 2,495 2,840 100.0 100.0
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2016 2005
Grade level 2006 2015 9% %
1 7 8 0.3 03
2 8 n 0.3 0.4
3 17 15 0.7 06
4 55 64 2.2 22
5 248 234 9.9 83
6 574 593 230 209
7 758 928 203 327
8 an 986 333 346
Total full time employees 2,495 2,840 100.0 100.0
Car fleet

Cur car fleet is partly owned (6%} and partly leased {8496 and we continue with the transition towards a fully-leased fleet. The leased
cars are newer and more efficient in terms of fuel emissions and the transition to a leased fleet has a role to play in improving our
environmental performance,

We have continued to implement our policy of utilising, where possible, vehicles with lower fuel emissions.

We are also keen to pursue our strategy of providing trining initiatives for our car drivers and aim to work with our car fleet insurers in
order to support future training needs and objectives.

Community involvement
We work hard to nurture the trust and loyalty our customers place in us and are proud of the role our titles continue to play in
our communities,

Through fund-raising and awareness initiatives. sponsorship. hard-hitting campaigns, awards ceremonies to recognise and support local
businesses and an unfailing dedication to providing the latest news, features. sport and entertainment, our newspapers and websites
remain at the heart of the communities we serve,

As always, our brands supported dozens of causes and championed numerous campaigns throughout 2016, from the Save Our Red
Phone Boxes campaign across our tittes in Sussex to the Giving The Gift Of Life initiative run by the Lancashire Post. The formeris a
campaign being run in conjunction with Sussex Heritage to save the iconic and much-ioved red public telephone boxes, increasingly
under threat from the development of mobile technology, neglect and vandalism. The campaign, which launched in December, has
already garnered the support of local councils across the region with our titles being praised for the role they are playing in saving these
very British booths. :

The Lancashire Post campaign launched in January 2016 with the aim of spurring on an extra 2,016 people to sign up as organ donors
during 2016, ’

The title ran inspirational stories of those who had received donated organs and highlighted that 55 people from Lancashire had died
in the past five years while waiting for an organ transplant.

Incredibly; more than 10 times that hoped-for number signed up to the NHS Organ Donor Register, with 28,861 people jeining from
Lancashire alone, Organ donor chiefs praised the Lancashire Post for the campaign. Ben Armistrong, a speciafist nurse in organ donation
at NHS Blood and Transplant. says: The Lancashire Evening Post's campalgn to promote organ donation will have inspired many people
to join the NHS Organ Donor Register which is fantastic news.

The Yorkshire Post marked the second anniversary of the launch of the Lonefliness: The Hidden Epidemic campalgn with a new drive to
urge readers to donate a combined 2,016 hours of their time to the Royal Voluntary Service - which runs dozens of services to combat
loneliness and social isolation across Yorkshire. The Yorkshire Post has been campaigning to highlight the issue of loneliness and social
isolation since February 2014,

For the third year running the campaign made the shortlist of Local Newspaper Week's "Making a Difference’ award, which was won by
the carmpaign in 2014 and shortlisted again in 2015.

tn Scotland, The Falkirk Herald ran a campaign in the run-up to Christmas called 'Feed a Family', that asked people to support the local
food bank by buying extra food to donate to families in need over the festive season. The response was phenomenal with the food bank
overwhelmed by the support they received.

The Fife Free Press threw their weight behind a campaign to support a local charity bookshop after a reader’s letter was published

appealing for donations. The title turned it into a story and the appeal allowed the Fife Shopping and Support Service to fill their shelves
in just two weeks, The appeal was 50 successful that the shop was able to give some of the donated books to ather charity shops.
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Corporate Social Responsibility continued

Employee involvement
We employ nearly 2500 people in the UK and our aim is to attract, retain and engage the best people. The Company aims to be a great
place to work and continued activity to embed our values, mission and purpose throughout 2016,

The latest YourSay employee survey, which was originally launched in January 2013, was conducted in late 2016, Our senior leaders are
making tangible improvements within their teams on the back of the survey findings and we will build on this in 2017. We always aim to
take a transparent approach to Internal communications and engagement, including within our Editorial and Commercial
transformation programmes. Key pricrities included identifying and developing leadership talent at all levels and succession planning.

Our expectations in terms of managers and employees behaviour and standards are set out in our Value Statermnents, Personnel
Policies and Procedures, Employee Handbook Codes of Conduct and Contracts of Employment. Qur grievance and whistleblowing
procedures allow any employee to report behaviour that is contrary to our policies or is in any way of concern to them and we
communicated the support available around whistleblowing periodically throughout the year.

We recognise a number of trade unions at an operating company level and rernain committed to communication and consultation
with our employees during times of change.

A diverse workforce adds clear value for our employees, customers. sharenolders and the communities we serve and we fully support
the principle of equal opportunity for all. Cur Disability Access policy is included in our Personnel Policies and Procedures manual.
As part of our ongoing Health and Safety audits and property maintenance programmes, we seek to provide suitable access and
working environments to ensure that we do not discriminate against disabled employees or custormers.

Environmental policy

We aim to continue to review the Group’s operations with a view to minimising any impact upon the environment. In the year. our
Portsmouth print site’s environment management systerms were certified to the international 1SO 14001 standard, Our Dinnington site
achieved this certification in 2015 and had a successful recertification audit in 2016. The Croup's other print site, at Carn in Northern
Ireland, is looking to achieve similar accreditation in 2017.

Energy consumption and carbon footprint

Wwe encourage staff to adopt a number of key measures with the aim of driving down, where possible. the Group's overall energy
consumption levels. Such measures include discouraging non-essential travel by staff thereby helping to reduce our carbon footprint:
impraving our car fleet in order to strive towards greener transport as well as ensuring that waste levels are monitored and kept to
appropriate standards and in line with key performance indicators. R

In 2016, the Group reduced consumption of gas by 199 and electricity consumption by 12%. including consumption by the i. The i was
acquired in April 2016 and accordingly data has been incorporated from the date of acquisition. The reduction in gas and electricity
consumption is due to the Groups continued property estate rationalisation including downsizing and moving into more energy
efficient premises. In addition, a number of energy efficient projects have also been implemented in the year. resulting in significant
savings in consumption at the Group’s print sites.

The Group's indirect greenhouse gas emissions increased by 1,368 tonnes in the year {29.4%). due to increases in contracted printing and
tong haul fuel: which have increased following the acquisition of the i. The estimated increase due to the incorporation of ernissions
associated with the 1is 1,973 tonnes year-on-year.

The Cermpany has continued to participate in phase 2 of the Carbon Reduction Commitrment {CRC) Energy Efficiency Scherne, and also
operates Climate Change Agreements (CCA) for its two larger print sites.

A breakdown of the Group’s energy consumption and associated greenhouse gas emissions during 2016 is set out in the table on
page 35.

Supply chain ) . :
Paper sourcing and sustainable forestry -
Johnston Press is committed to maximising its use of newsprint from sustainable renewable sources, carrying the Forest Stewardship
Councll (FSC) certification. 70% of newsprint is supplied from the UK-based paper mills {up frorm 609 in 2015), reducing transportation
and associated carbon footprint. Virtually all of the remainder is sourced from the near continent Afl UK mills are supplying newspnnt
frorm 1005 recycled newsprint recovered from kerbside collection points and wholesaler returns.

As a member of the Newspaper Industry Materials Committee, which is part of the News Media Association (NMA), the Group also
participates in both enwvironmentat and energy saving initiatives in the manufacture and supply of materials needed for the production
of newspapers. It also supports the Two Sides campaign, a pan-Eurcpean body responsible for the prornotion and responsible use of
paper products. This promotes the use of sustainable and reusable products in the newspaper industry,

Contracted printing and product distribution services

Johnston Press contracts out the printing of magazine supplements and some newspapers and their distribution by road of printed
products. We require our key contractors to these areas to measure and report the ehergy consumption and carbon emissions
associated with the operations they undertake on our behalf. Wherever possible we prefer to work with suppliers that are
independently certified to a recognised environmental management systern standard.

34 Johnston Press ple Annual Report and Accounts 2016



Strategic Repon ‘ | | 1

Waste management and recycling

The Group always strives to ensure that its actual supply of recycled paper is higher than the government guidelines and the
industrywide statistics reported in this regard. The Group recycles all its paper and non-paper waste stream through audited
erwvironmental companies. These processes have been in place for several years and are in accordance with the Environmental
Protection Act and Hazardous Waste Regulations and are 1SO 14001 accredited. The Group also complies with the packaging waste
regulations in the disposal of non-hazardous materials used in the packaging of its products.

Redundant IT equipment is collected for recycling in line with the relevant regulations. This process is carried out by our partners who
are 1SO 27001 and 1SC 14001 compliant as well as being ADISA accredited. The ADISA (Asset Disposal and Information Security Alliance)
Industry standards have the prirmary objective of measuring a service providers’ capability for providing secure asset recovery and data
sanitisation services to businesses.

Energy consumption and associated greenhouse gas emisslon {CO: equivalent)

Consumption CHG emisslons (CO, equivalent tennes)
GHG conversion

2016 factor {2016)* 2016 20152 20148
SCOPEY!
GCas combustion {heating at Johnston Press premises) 2915251 kWh 018400 x10* 536 664 1,666
Qil combustion (heating at Johnston Press premises) 15800 litres 318058 x 103 50 58 92
Passenger vehicles {owned or controlled by Johnston Press) 5.147.240 krn 01774 X103 o3 933 1,235
Commercial vehicles (alt Johnston Press owned vehicles) 50879 km (Q.26578 xiQ3 1% 57 202 .
Total SCOPE 1,513 1m 396
Total SCOPE 1 - Per million pages printed 0.05 0.06 010
SCOPE 2%
Generation of grid electricity used/(kWh) 16,120,701 kWh 041205 X103 6,643 8.480 9.622
Total SCOPE 2 - Per million pages printed 0.45 0.51 0.58
SCOPE 3*
Transmission and distribution of grid electricity used 1620701 kWh 003727 x 103 601 700 84
Business travel (passenger vehicles not owned or controtled

by Johnston Press} - 1903684 km 017741 X102 338 482 854
Business travel {air) 753376 km 027867 X103 210 259 204
Business travel {rail) 1812025 km  0.04885 X103 89 152 120
Electricity for contracted printing .

{generation transmission and distribution) 4ITNT32 KWh 044932 X103 1,874 763 945
Vehicle fuel for contracted distribution - long haul 1,243 Litres 261163 X303 2,902 2,289 2,302
Total SCOPE 3 - Per million pages printed 6,013 4,646 5,267
Overall total SCOPE1, 2and 3 14,169 14,837 18,085
Overall total SCOPE 1, 2 and 3 per million pages printed 0.45 0.51 0.58

Notes:

' Scopel covers the annual quantity of emissions in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent from emission sources that ane under the operational control of
the Compary.

7 Seope 2 covers the annual quantity of emissions in tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent resulting from the purchase of electricity by Johnston Press for its own use.
In line with the latest guidance from Defra emissions from the generation of electricity used are included in Scope 2, whilst ernissions associated with the
transmission and distribution of etectricity used are included in Scope 3.

1 Seope 3 covers other indirect greenhouse gas emissions, ie. where the emissions are from sources that are not owned by Johnston Press and where the Company
does not have operational centrol.

¢ UK Government Conversion Factors for Company Reporting have been used throughout

5 Greenhouse gas emissions associated with electricity consumption have been restated for previous years to account for material changes to the ¢corversion factors
provided by the government far Company reporting purposes.
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Corporate Social Responsibility coninues

Health and safety
The Group is committed to providing safe working conditions for all our employees, visitors and contractors, and we are proud to report
that our safety performance continues to demonstrate one of the lowest reported accident figures in our industry.

In 2016, we achieved an accident rate of 0.7%, compared to 0.9% in the prior year - see table below,

Over the last five years we have significantly reduced our accident rate from 2.6% of all employees involved in accidents down to this
year's 0.7%. Likewise we have reduced our RIDDOR reportable accidents from 18, five years ago. to going the full year in 2016 without any
reportable accidents.

We believe that our focus on addressing the causes of accidents - and our insistence on adhering to best practice and procedures -

has ptayed a significant part in our improved performance in recent years. Although we are proud of this achievement our work will
continue to ensure every effort is made to maintain this record. The Company has Health and Safety Committee meetings throughout
key operational areas and these are chaired by each area's senior representative and the local health and safety managers, who ensures
all actions are effectively completed. This is monitored by the Group Health and Safety Manager.

The Board has overall responsibility for health and safety and receives regular reports in this regard with operational responsibility
delegated to the Chief Executive Officer. In addition, we have a Group Health and Safety Cornmittee made up of representatives from
key areas across the business and chaired by the Company Secretary.

The Comrnittee, in conjunction with the Group Health and Safety Manager. instructs and reviews audit visits, monitors compliance

with Group policies, ensures those policies are kept up-to date-and encourages best practice. The Group Health and Safety Manager
cocrdinates independent audits of all our main sites and works closely with the local health and safety managers and each of the site
Health and Safety Officers teo ensure effective performance. and this, once again, has helped all sites to improve their scores in our rolling
programme of internal audit inspections.

Our consisteént reporting processes have now been in place for more than 10 years allowing performance over tirme to be measured and
ensuring that every accident is reported and any identified actions are completed. This is a key part of ocur control erwvironment.

Accident statistics

2016 2015
Average full time employees 2,495 2.840
No. of employees involved in accidents 18 26
Publishing 0.3% 0.8%
Printing 0.4% 01%
Total 0.7% 0.9%
Employees involved in RIDDOR! reportable accidents zero 1
Publishing 0.00% 0.04%
Printing 0.00% 0.00%
Total 0.00% 0.04%
Total working days lost zero 7

! RIDDOR is the Reparting of Injuries, Diseases and Dangerous Occurrences Regulations.

Approval
This strategic report was approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

CVUM\‘AJ‘\ ﬂm

Camilla Rhodes
Interim Chairman
29 March 2017
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Chairman’s Introduction to Corporate Governance

In 2016 the Board continued to
maintain its focus on the Company’s
strategic priorities and the risks
associated with them

This report forms part of the Directors’ Report which can be found on pages 68 to 72 The Company has continued in lts commitment
to comply with the printciples of the 2014 United Kingdom Corporate Governance Code (the Code’) as published by the Financial
Reporting Council (https/Avww.fre.org.uk/Our-Work/Publications/Corporate-Governance/UK-Corporate-Governance-Code-2014.pdf).
The 2014 edition of the Code applies for financial years starting on or after 1 October 2014 and introduced further reporting requirements
for premium listed companies. It is the Board's view that throughout the period ending 31 December 2016 the Company has been

fully compliant with the relevant main and supporting principles set out in the Code. Due to the resignation of lan Russell. the former
Chairman, at the end of 2016 and my appointment as Interim Chairrnan since 1 January 2017 the Company has not complied with

the Code provision that at least half the Board {excluding the Chairman) should consist of independent Non-Executive Directors. The
steps we are taking to address this are laid out in the Corporate Governance Report starting on page 40. The Board and Executive
Management monitor compliance with the Code and detalls of the Group's internal controls can be found on page 44. The 2016 version
of the Code will apply to the Company for the year commencing 13anuary 2017.

During 2016 the Board has continued to maintain its focus on the Company's key strategic priorities and the risks associated with
thern during the current transformation of the Company and its provision of local media services during a period of ongoing structural
change within the media and advertising sectors. Throughout this pericd the Company has continued to consult with its largest
shareholders on a range of issues. The agreements governing the Group's debt structure include various information requirements

to holders of its bonds and lenders under its revolving credit facility which we complied with throughout the year. The revolving credit
facility was subsequently cancelled in January 2017 under an agreement with the relevant lenders. This report on corporate governance
is intended to give shareholders sorne detail of the structures which the Company has operated under in the past year. We remain
comrmitted to the principles of good governance and, as a Board. seek to regularly review not only the effectiveness of our Beard and
committees but also the wider corporate governance frarmework within which we operate. We do so with the aim of ensuring that
the Group as a whole is managed effectively and transparently. The repont which follows provides more detail of the workings of

the Board. including the ratters reserved to it and to the evaluation process which we use to review (and where necessary improve
its effectiveness.

Our Remuneration Policy was put to shareholders for the first time at the Annual General Meeting in 2014, receiving strong support
from our shareholders. A new policy will be presented to shareholders for approval at the Annual General Meeting in 2017. You can find
details of the proposed new remuneration policy. and our implementation of the current policy. in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
on pages 49 to 50.

The Audit Committee maintains its central role in monitoring the Group's systems of internal controls and risk framework and a separate
report on the work of the Audit Committee can be found on pages 47 to 48.

The views of both our shareholders and other providers of capital are welcorned on governance issues and play an important role in
shaping our structures and our reporting of them. We aim to reflect their feedback and advice in our reporting.

We will continue to seek to ensure that the Board has an appropriate mix of skills and experience. This will remain a paramount
consideration when recruiting new Directors to the Board at the appropriate time and Is a key measure in ensuring that our governance
structures remain appropriate for the Group. The Group continues to strive to reflect the communities in which we work and to have
regard to the benefits of a diverse workforce. We always seek to provide information on this. and details of many of our other community
and social initiatives can be found in the Corporate Social Respensibility Report on pages 32 to 36.

CM\\M\ &M

Camilla Rhodes
Interim Chairman
29 March 2017
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Board of Directors

Camilla Rhodes Ashley Highfield David King _ Mike Butterworth
Interim Chairman Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Non-Executive Director
Biography
Camilla was the former Ashiey was previously David is a Chartered Mike is a Chartered
Chief Executive Officer of Managing Director and Vice  Accountant Previously he Accountant and former
News Magazines Ltd and President of Microsoft, was CEQ of Time Qut Group  Group Finance Director of
Managing Director of Times  Director of New Media and and Chief Financial Officer Cookson Group plc, a FTSE
Newspapers and News Technology at the BBC at BBC Worldwide. 250 business, and cepta
Group Newspapers, News {where he oversaw the Group ple.
International. launch of the |Player) and
Managing Director of
Flextech {now Virgin Media}
Interactive. .
Term of office
Joined the Board in 2009, Joined the Board in Joined the Board in Joined the Board in
November 201. June 2015 ine 2016
Independent
Yes. Not applicable. Not applicable. Yes.
External appointments
No other appointrnents Non-Executive Director | MNeon-Executive Director Senior lﬁdependent
held. of William Hill ple and of the Regulatory Funding Director and Chairman

Committee membership
and other roles

Governor of the British Alm
{institute untit December
2015. Non-executive Chair of
The News Media Association
since Decernber 2015, ’

Company.

of the Audit Committee

of St lves plc, and is also

a Maon-Executive Director
and Chairman of the Audit
Committee of Stock Spirits
Croup plc and Cambian
Group plc,

Chair of the Remuneration
Committee. Mernber of
the Audit Committee

and Member {and Interim
Chair) of the Nomination
Committee.
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Not applicable.

Interim Senior Independent
Director and Chair of the
Audit Committee. Member
of the Nomination and
Remuneration Comrmittees.
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Ralph Marshall

Non-Executive Director

Kjell Aamot

Non-Executive Director

Peter MccCall
Company Secretary

Ralph is a former Executive

Kjell was formerly the

Peter joined Johnston Press

Director of Usaha Tegas Chief Executive Officer of pic as Comparny Secretary
Sdn. Bhd. Schibsted ASA, the largest and Corporate Counsel in
Scandinavian newspaper 2009, Previously Company
publisher. Secretary of Kenmore
Property Group Ltd and
Deputy Company Secretary
of British Energy Group plc.
Joined the Board in 2008, Joined the Board in 2010. Not applicable.
No, Yes. Not applicable.
Serves on the Board of Advisor to FSN Capital No external appointments

KLCC Property Holdings
Berhad and Astro Malaysia
Holdings Berhad.

and Cexense (both based
in Norway.

held,

Member of the
Nomination Committee.

Member of the Audit,
Momination and
Remuneration Committeses.

Secretary to the Audit,
Nomination and
Remunemtion Committees.
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Corporate Governance

The role of the board

The Board, in its commitment to effectively operate and lead the Company, held ten Board meetings in 2016, Where necessary, the
Chairman meets privately with the Non-Executive Directors before scheduled Board meetings. If unable to attend a meeting, Directors
are encouraged to give their views and comments on matters to be discussed to the Chairman in advance. Attendance at meetings
throughout the year by each of the Directors is shown on page 41. All Directors are encouraged to share the benefit of their knowledge
and experience and the Board's evaluation process assesses their contribution each year.

Throughout the year the Board has played a key role in monitoring and evaluating the development of the Group's strategy. The
Company's business model is described on pages 12 to 13. The Board reviews the performance of management in meeting the agreed
objectives and goals and monitors appropriate remuneration levels. The Group's management development and succession plans are
scrutinised by the Board to ensure that the skills and competencies of management correspond to the Group's requirements. At least
one Board meeting each year is wholly devoted to strategy and to the consideration of a plan for the long-term growth and
development of the Group. This is reviewed and discussed as appropriate at the other Board meetings held during the year.

The Board's primary task is to ensure that the Company {and its wider group of subsidiaries} have sufficient financial resources and
talent in order to meet its core objectives by:
. reviewing and approving the overall Group strategy and direction:
. approving the financial staternents. as well as revenue and capital budgets:
- setting. implementing and maintaining audit processes and risk management policies. to ensure the effective operation
of the Company: )
the approval of material agreements and projects; and
reviewing and approving of remuneration policies.

In addition to the norma!l agenda at Board meetings, which is described below, the Directors usually consider one or more operational
or special topics at each meeting. During the last 12 months such topics have included:
- business risks;
- regulatory trends and developments:
- significant acquisitions and disposals:
- sales transformation projects:
- strategy for paid for newspapers:
- business and website development:
- development plans for major titles:
- advertising revenues;
« display advertising;
property portfolio:
- strategy for information technology:
- digital revenues and publishing:
- talent and human resource requirements;
- the Company's final salary pension scheme;
new product offers:
Board Committee terms of reference;
. asset disposal plans and future industry developments;
acquisition and integration of the i newspaper.
planning for the future of the Group. including refinancing options for the bond repayrment in June 2019
- disaster recovery plans; and
- health and safety.

The authority of the Directors is specified in relevant legislation and in the Company’s Articles of Association which include powers
concerning the issue and buy back of the Company's shares, subject to the authority of its shareholders. At its Annual General Meeting
in 2016 the Company sought authority to make purchases of its own shares. Board members also have respective commitrments to the
Audit, Nomination and Rermuneration Committees. In 2016 there were four scheduled meetings of the Audit Committee, five
Nomination Committee meetings, and the Remuneration Committee held six meetings.
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Board attendance
The following table indicates Director's attendance during the year:

Audit Normination Remuneration

Board Coammittee Committee Committee

scheduled meetings o} {4} (5) (6)
{an Russell® 10 - 5 -
Ashley Highfield 10 - - -
David King 10 - - -
Mark Pain? 6 3 2 3
Ralph Marshall 2 9 - S -~
Camilla Rhodes 10 4 S )
Kjell Aamot* 10 4 4 3
Stephen van Rooyen? 4 - 1 1
Mike Butterworth® 4 1 2 2

Resigned on 31 December 2016. Attended all Board and Cormmittee meetings prior 1o his resignation.

Resigned on 31 August 2016, Attended all Board and Committee mestings prior to his resignation.

Missed one Boand megting due to a conflicting business commitment

Missed one Nomination Committee meeting due to a conflicting business commitment.

Resigned on 18 May 2016, Missed one Board meeting. and two meetings of the Remuneration Committee due to canflicting personal or busines: commitments.
Joined the Board on 1 June 2016. Missed one Board meeting and one Audit Comrmittee meeting which were held on the same day (prior to becoming chair of the
Audit Cornmittee) and one subsequent meeting of the Nomination Committee. all due to conflicting business commitments which pre-dated his appointrnent
to the Board.

L L

During the year, the Company kept the membership of the Board and Commnittees under review. Following Mr van Rooyen's departure
from the Boeard at the Annual General Meeting, Mr Aamot joined the Remuneration Committee. Mr Butterworth joined the Audit
Cormmittee in June 2016 and the Remuneration Committes in September 2016. The Company believe that the current mix of
individuals is appropriate and that the Committees work well.

Board responsibilities

The Board maintains a format schedule of matters specifically reserved to it for discussion and decision making, including future
strategy. acquisitions and disposals. dividend policy. approval of the Annual Report and Accounts, capital expenditure and contractual
commitments in excess of certain limits, trading and capita! budgets and Group borrowing facilities. The schedule was most recently
reviewed during 2015. At each of its scheduled meetings during the year, the Board considered and scrutinised management reports
from the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer which also feature contributions from their senior direct reports (the
“Executive Report’). Each Executive Report addresses perfermance against a number of key strategic objectives as well as providing
additional information regarding business perforrmance and market and other key issues. The minutes of the Board and Committiee
meetings are circulated to all Board members. The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for the timelines and quality of
information provided to it. Day-to-day management of the Group. including implementation of strategy and operational decisions
relating to digita! and print publishing, online products, printing and human resources, are delegated to management. The Executive
Management Committee, consisting of the Executive Directors and seven other senior managers (all of whom are men) from across
the Group. meet weekly to review performance and constder operational issues.

The Board acknowledges the division of responsibilities for running the Board and managing the Company's business. lan Russell
served as Non-Executive Chairman throughout the year and stepped down from the Board on 31 December 2016 due to an acute
ilimess in his farmily. Camilla Rhodes became Interim Chairman on 1 January 2017. The Compary is in the process of appointing a new
Chairman, The Chairman is responsible for the leadership of the Board, for setting the Board's agenda and ensuring that adequate tirne
is available for discussion of all agenda iterns, in particular strategic issues as well as ensuring effective communication with
shareholders. It is also primarily the Chairman's responsibility to promote a culture of openness and debate by facilitating the effective
contribution of Non-Executive Directors in particular and ensuring constructive relations between Executive and Noh-Executive
Directors. There were no significant changes to the external commitments of the Chairman during the year.

As part of their role, Non-Executive Directors constructively challenge and help develop proposals on strategy. In addition to at least one
Board meeting each year being dedicated to strategy. key strategic objectives are reported to the Board in the Executive Report and
they also receive regular reports and presentations on key strategic initiatives and issues. They satisfy themselves on the integrity of
financial information and that internal controls and systems of risk management are robust and defensible, The work and reports of
the Audit Committee are used to assist the Board in this process. Through the Remuneration Committee they are responsible for
deterrmining appropriate levels of remuneration of Executive Directors and, through the Nomination Committee, have a prime role

in appeinting and, where necessary. removing Executive Directors and in succession planning.
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Mark Pain served as Senior Independent Director until 31 August 2016 when he was succeeded by Mrs Rhodes. While she fuffils the

role of Interim Chairman, Mike Butterworth has undertaken the role of Senior Independent Director on an interim basis. The Senior
Independent Director is available to address any concerns that shareholders may have that have not been resolved through the normal
communication channels of the Chairman or Executive Directors. Ouring 2016, the Audit Committee was chaired by Mark Pain until

he left the Board on 3i August. He was succeeded as Chairman of the Committee by Mike Butterworth. Throughout the year the
Nomination Committee was chaired by lan Russell, and the Remuneration Committee by Camilla Rhodes. Since 1 January 2017 the
Nomination Committee has been chaired by Camilla Rhodes on an interim basis. The terms of reference of each of the Board’s
Committees were reviewed by the Board during 2016 and the terms are displayed on the Company's website. Membership of each
Committee is noted on pages 38 to 39.

Board balance and independence

Throughout the period ended 31 December 2016. the Company complied with the requirement of the Code that at least half of the
Board (excluding the Chairman) should consist of independent Non-Executive Directors. Of the Comipany’s current six Directors, two
are Executive and the remainder Non-Executive, of whorm bwo (Kjell Aarmot and Mike Butterworth) are regarded as independent.
Camilla Rhodes, although considered to be independent by the rest of the Board. is currently acting as Interim Chairman, Ralph
Marshall was appointed to the Board as the nominee Director of Usaha Tegas which owns 10.63% of the Company's issued ordinary
share capital. He is therefore not regarded as independent. Due to Mr Russell's resignation and Mrs Rhodes’ appointment as Interim
Chairman, the Company is currently not in compliance with the requirement of the Code that at least half of the Board (exciuding
the Chairman) should consist of independent Non-Executive Directors. The Company is undertaking a process (supervised by the
Nomination Committee) to appoint a new Chairman and will seek to return to a position of compliance with the Code, Details of each
Director are provided on pages 38 and 39. The terms and conditions of appointment of the Non-Executive Directors are available for
inspection at the Company's registered office during office hours and for at least 15 minutes prior to the Company's Annual General
Meeting at the place where that meeting is held.

Board Committees
The reperts of the Audit Commmittee and the Remuneration Committee can be found on pages 47 to 48 and 49 to 50 respectively,

Nomination Committee :

Reporting to the Board, the Nomination Committee’s duties include regularly reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, seeking suitably skilled and experienced candidates as Non-Executive Directors with sufficient time to devote to the role and
overseeing all Board appointments. In doing so the Committee also considers the Company's succession planning for Executive
Directors and senicr managers, to ensure that adequate plans are in place to protect against the loss of key staff. as well as reviewing
the composition of the Board and its committees. The Committee is satisfied with the effectiveness of the management succession
plans currently in place. The Board has now recommenced the process for renewal of its membership and. as explained above under
‘Board balance and independence’ anticipates the appointment of a new Chairman during 2017 following the decision of Mr Russell
to step down from the Board. Ralph Marshall will not seek re-election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. We are in
discussions with Usaha Tegas, the shareholder who appointed Mr Marshall regarding the identity of their new nominee and expect
to make an announcement shortly. In considering candidates to fill Board vacancies. the Nomination Committee has regard to the
benefits of and the need to encourage, diversity {including gender) within the Board's membership: this is a specific consideration

of the recruitment process and is included in the Committee’s terms of reference, The Company operates a diversity policy which
commits it to equal opportunity. fairness and respect for all and opposes discrimination on grounds of gender. gender reassignment,
age. marital or family status, race, nationality. ethnic origin, disability, religion or belief or sexual orientation, or other factors that are
immaterial to a person's ability to do their job, The Board has adopted a diversity policy which provides set measurable objectives for
diversity amongst Beard members {including a target for female Board membership of 25% by 2019). The Nomination Committee

is responsible for the implementation of this policy and monitering progress towards the achievernent of its objectives. Once the
requirements of a vacant role have been determined, the Committee may appoint external recruitment consultants to assist with the
search who will also consider diversity in identifying suitable candidates. External recruitment consultants engaged for this purpose
have no other connection with the Company. The Company Secretary acts as secretary to the Committee.

Disclosure Committee ]

Although not a Committee of the Board, the Company established a Disclosure Committee in 2016, The Disclosure Committee meets
on an ad hoc basis when required and its primary role s to evaluate whether information communicated to it by rmembers of staff of
the Company or the wider Croup or otherwise in the Company's possession constitutes inside information. The membership of the
Committee consists of the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Group Business
Development Director.

Induction and professional development

The Company has an induction prograrmme that it makes available to new Directors. This can be tailored to specific requirements and
includes visits to a range of the Group's operations where appropriate, and meetings and discussions with senior management

and advisers.

All Board members have access to independent advice on any matters relating to their responsibilities as Directors and as members of

the various Committees of the Board. The assistance of the Company Secretary is available to all Directors for all matters connected to
their duties. Directors receive regular reports from Executive Management, They are also sent regular updates on industry-related issues.
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Training

Training is undertaken by Directors during the year including on industry-specific governance and technical issues. The Company
encourages Non-Executive Directors to visit at least two of the Group's operational centres each year, During site visits they receive a
presentation and a tour of the relevant business. Individual Directors also make arrangerments to attend a range of seminars presented by
professionals throughout the year, When the Non-Executive Directors meet without the Executive Directors present, the balance of skills
on the Board (which includes training needs) is one of the standard topics for the Board to consider, both individually and collectively.

Board performance evaluation

Under the provisions of the Code, evaluation of the boards of FTSE 350 compantes (which does not include the Cormpany) should

be conducted externally every three years. The Board decided that it was appropriate to undertake an externally facilitated evaluation
during 2014 and engaged Armstrong Bonham Carter to undertake this. The findings of the evaluation were reported in 2015 and
formed the basis of an action plan conducted in 2015, During 2016 the Board conducted a rigorous evaluation of its own performance
and that of each of its Committees. This involved the completion of a self-assessment questionnaire by the Directors, covering the
performance of the Board, individual Directors, the Company Secretary and Board Committees. Other topics included the conduct

of meetings, the provision of information, relationships, strategy. training. progress against the cutcomes from the 2016 self-assessment
evaluation exercise and the overall effectiveness of the Board. The composition and chairmanship of each Committee was reviewed
together with its fulfilment of its role as outlined in its terms of reference. its reporting and overall performance.

The topics which the evaluation exercise addressed provided the Board with an analysis of the performance of its key duties and, as
has been the case with previous evaluation exercises, identified a number of specific areas where change could be beneficial to the
Company and to the conduct of the Board and/or one or more Cornmittees. These have been used to prepare an action plan for the
Board and is being used to assist in the planning of the Board's business. In particular, the Board agreed to monitor whether there was
a requirement to recruit additional non-executive directors given changes to its composition during 2016, to hold additional meetings
on special topics when required and to make changes to the presentation of certain information to the Board. Although specific areas
were identified for change. overall the process was positive and confirmed the effectiveness of the Board and relevant Committees as
well as the contributions of individual Directars, As a separate reasure. the Nen-Executive Directors meet without the Chairman
present at least annually to review his or her performance.

Dialogue with institutional shareholders .

The Board encourages and seeks to build a mutual understanding of objectives between the Cormpany and its institutional
shareholders and other providers of capital. As part of this process, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer make twice-
yearly presentations to institutional shareholders and meet with shareholders and other investors to discuss any issues of concern and
obtain feedback. In addition, investors can request a meeting with the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer throughout
the year to highlight any significant concerns.

The Chairman personally contacts the leading investors in the Company on at least an annual basis to address any concerns and discuss
any issues. The Board receive a report with regard to any discussion with shareholders and also have circulated to them the written
feedback that follows the full-year and the half-year results presentations. Brokers' reports and analysts’ briefings. when available, are
included in the Board papers sent to the Directors in advance of meetings. The Board receives a quarterly update on the shareholder
register with a summary of the main moverments in shareholdings since the previous report. It also receives regular updates from the
Company's brokers. Panmure Gordon and Liberum,

Members of the Board offer to meet with institutional shareholders to consider Corporate Governance matters. All the Non-Executive
Directors are prepared to meet with shareholders to understand their views more fully or to address concerns.

The Company has certain compliance obligations concerning its obligations to providers of its debt and liaises with those providers
or agents representing therm when appropriate.

Annual General Meeting

The Board seeks to encourage shareholders to attend its Annual General Meeting. It is the policy of the Board that all Directors should
attend the Annual Generat Meeting and be available to answer shareholders’ questions unless unable to do so. The Company uses the
Annual General Meeting to communicate with private investors and encourages their participation. All Directors attended the Annual
Ceneral Meeting in 2016. In 2016, the notice of the Annual General Meeting and related papers were sent to shareholders more than
20 days before the meeting.

Share capital
Information on the Cormpany’s share capital is provided in Note 25 of the financial statements.
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Board re-election

Under the provisions of the Company's Articles of Association, all Directors are subject to election at the first Annual General Meeting
after their appointment and thereafter to re-election every three years. The Company is not currently a member of the FTSE 350 Index
of companies and is therefore not required to comply with the provision of the Code which requires all directors of companies in that
index to be subject to annual re-election. However, the Board considers that it is appropriate that ali Directors who wish to continue in
office stand for annual re-election (as they have done since 2013), and accordingly the Board has recormmended that resolutions will be
proposed at the forthcorning Annual General Meeting for the re-election of all of the current Directors who have indicated that they
wish to continue in office. The Nomination Committee have, following the formal evaluation process described above, considered the
performance of each of those Directors who wish to stand for re-election at the 2017 Annual General Meeting and are satisfied that
those individuals” performance continue to be effective and that they have demonstrated a clear commitment to their roles.

Separately during the course of the year. the Non-Executive Directors met without lan Russell to review his performance as Chairman
and were satisfied that he continued to provide the necessary leadership and effectiveness for the role and demonstrated an ongoing
commitment during his period in office. An equivalent exercise will be conducted in 2017.

Financial reporting

The Board is committed to presenting appropriate information about the Group's financial position by cormplying with best practice
and all standards issued by the International and UK Accounting Standards Boards relating to the disclosures which are included in
this Annual Report.

internal control

The Board has applied principle C.2 of the Code by establishing a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks the Group faces and establishing a sound risk management and internal control systemn. The Board regularly reviews
the process. which has been in place from the start of the year to the date of approval of this report and which is in accordance with
Guidance on Risk Management and Internal Control and Related Financial and Business Reporting published by the Financial
Reporting Council. The Board is responsible for the Group's systern of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. Such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business cbjectives and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

In compliance with Provision C21 of the Code, the Board regularly and robustly assesses the principal risks facing the Company and
reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk rmanagement and systemn of internal contrel and did so during 2016 and on an ongoing
basis. The Code’s requirements have been integrated into the Company's current risk management process to enable the appropriate
Board reviews to be undertaken to allow continued compliance. The Board's menitoring covers all controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management, and is based principally on reviewing reports from management to
consider whether significant risks are identified, evaluated. managed and controlled and whether any significant weaknesses or
emerging issues are promptly remedied or indicate a need for more extensive monitering. The Board has also performed a specific
assessment prior to the completion of this Annual Report. This assessment considers all significant aspects of internal contro! arising
during the period covered by the report including the work of the Finance Department. The Audit Comrnittee assists the Board
(which rmaintains responsibility in this regard) in discharging its review responsibilities.

During the course of its review of the system of internal control, the Board has not identified or been advised of any failings or
weaknesses which it has determined to be significant in the context of the Group. Therefore a confirmation in respect of necessary
actions has not been considered appropriate. The key elernents of the ongoing ¢ontinuous process during the period under review
have been: '

- Formal Board reporting on a bi-monthly basis of the Group's performance and on any emerging risks and issues. The Company’s
management accounts break down the results of the Group’s operations, All significant variations against budget and the previous
year are fully examined. The day-te-day responsibility for managing each of the Group's operations rests with experienced senior
executives and the Group has a clear organisational structure which includes appropriate delegation of authority (which was
reviewed in 2015). The Executive Directors ensure that regular contact is maintained with all senior executives. The following issues
are amongst those formally reserved to the Board:

- approval for unbudgeted capital expenditure over £1 million and for other investment decisions:

- approval of the annual budget for the forthcoming financial year. This includes detailed and comprehensive budgets covering
each operating business; .

- reporting of the key operational departments’ future strategy as part of the operational topics considered at Board meetings
during the year; and

- review by the Audit Committee (with subsequent reporting to the Board) on a six-monthly basis of the work performed by the
Finance Department {including in respect of internal audit issues with respect to internal financial contrals, the programme for
which is agreed in advance). This work is supported by the Group's financial accounting ¢entre which ensures a consistent and
compliant approach te the processing of transactions and ensures a uniform control process across the Group's operations.
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The Company conducted a detailed internal review of risk during 2015 which was reviewed and updated in 2016 and which formed
the basis for ongoing internal monitoring and review of risk. The Group’s key risks are regularly considered by the Executive
Management Committee and mermbers of that Committee have responsibility for individual risks and the identification of emergent
risks. The Board is provided with regular updates in respect of these, The Audit Committee has an oversight and monitoring role in
relation to risk management and reviews the form of internal controls which the Company operates. It reports its findings to the Board
on a regular basis following its meetings. The Board maintains ultirmate responsibility for the monitoring and management of risk
throughout the Group. Due to the changing nature of the Group. the range of risks that it faces and in order to ensure that resources
are properly deployed to identify, monitor and mitigate risk the Company has appointed Grant Thornton to provide external support to
assist it in effective internal audit The Group has an ongoing process to embed best practice into all the Group’'s operations and to deal
with areas of improvernent which come ta management’s and the Board's attention.

In adldition, senior management set policies, procedures and standards as detailed in the Group's policy guidelines. These were
reviewed in 2015 and tailored versions have been issued to the businesses in the specific locations where applicable,

The guidelines include policies on:
finance including cashftreasury controls and authorisation levels;
tradlng
- customer service;
« commercial and competition:
- technology:
property management:
human resources including pension administration, disability and health and safety,
- environmental issues and energy management:
- legal and regulatory compliance: and
« business continuity,

Fair, balanced and understandable report

A key governance requirement of the Croup's financial statements is for the Annual Report and Accounts to be fair, balanced and
understandable. The preparation of the Annual Report and Accounts requires the co-ordination of information from throughaut the:
Group to a dermanding timetabte which runs in parallel with the formal audit process undertaken by Deloitte LLP. The report has been
prepared by the Company's management and then reviewed by the Audit Committee and subsequently the Board. In order to provide
comfort to the Audit Committee and the Board, contributors to the report have been provided with guidance as to the requirements
of the Company. The content of the report is subject to a verification exercise and to review by senier management. The Board has
reviewed the Annual Report and Accounts and the reports of management regarding its preparation and believes that the explanation
and disclosures set out on pages 1 to 135 provide the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance,
business rmodel and strategy. Accordingly, having taken all matters considered by the Board and brought to its attention during the
year into account, each of the Directors considers that the Annual Report taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and
provides shareholders with the requisite information for evaluating the performance and current strategy of the Company.

Liquidity and going concern

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had a net debt of £204 million, comprising cash of £16 million and borrowings of £220 miliion. The
borrowings comptise £220 million of high yield bonds [senior secured notes), which are repayable in full on 1June 2019 and are not
subject to any financial maintenance covenants. At year end. the Group also had a £10 million revolving credit facility (RCF), which
was undrawn,

Subsequent to year end, on 17 January 2017 the Group received gross cash proceeds of £17 million arising from the completion of the
disposal of its East Anglia and East Midland businesses, These cash proceeds were used to increase the level of cash held by the Group
for working capital purposes, The RCF. which had remained undrawn since year end, was cancelled on 17 January 2017.

The Group has performed a review of its financial resources taking into account inter alia, the cash currently available to the Group. the
lack of financial maintenance covenants in the high yield bonds, and the Group's cash flow projections for at least the 12 month period
frorm the date of this report. Based on this review. and after considering reasonably possible downside sensitivities and uncertainties, the
Board is of the opinion that the Group has adequate financial resources to meet its operational needs for at least the next 12 months
from the date of this report and. as a result, the directors have concluded that it is appropriate to prepare the Group's financial
staternents on a going concern basis.

Consideration has been given by the directors to the financial position of the Group over a longer period of time in the Viability
Staterment below.

Johnston Press ple Annual Report and Accounts 20i6 L5



Directors Governance

Corporate Governance continued

Viability Statement

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the Corporate Covernance Code, the directors have assessed the prospects of the Group over
a period of time longer than the 12 months required to determine the going concern basis for the preparation of the Group's
financial statements.

The directors have determined that the period of three years from the balance sheet date is appropriate for the purposes of conducting
this review. This period was selected with reference to the Croup's strategy and planning cycle. The Board formally reviews strategy twice
a year, nermally in May and September, with a view to informing the subseguent annual budget setting. The budget forms year one of
the three vear plan, with projections for years two and three,

The annual budget provides a more detailed reflection of the Group's immediate plans and is reviewed and approved by the Board
before the start of the financial vear.

In setting the annual budget and three year plan the Board considers the current trading position and the principal operating and

financial risks and opportunities identified by the Group. In particular:
The opportunity to invest and grow its audiences and its digital revenue streams:

- The ability of the Group to continue to reduce costs, to rmitigate the continuing decline in print based circulation and advertising
revenues;

- The level of capital expenditure required to support investment in growth, and the level of restructuring costs needed to support
further cost reduction initiatives:

- The funding required to support the recovery plan of the historic closed defined benefit pension scheme obligations: and

- The cash generated to meet bond interest commitments as they fall due.

The Group operates in an industry which is undergoing a sustained period of significant structural change. This is driven in part by
new competitors and new methods of accessing content which are provided by rapidly-changing technology and which are in turn
facilitating very significant and ongoeing changes in consumer behaviour, The Group’s ability to adapt to this constantly changing
environment will affect its prospects over the three year period.

In reviewing its plan the Group conducts sensitivity analysis, to understand the impact of continued or accelerated decline in revenues,
and constders what actions the Croup might take to mitigate those risks. The future assessments and plans adopted by the Board are
subject to change and a tevel of market uncertainty. As a result of the risks and uncertainties faced by the business (including those
outlined in the Principal Risks and Uncertainties section on page 18) the outcomes reflected In its plan cannot be guaranteed.

The Group's trading performance in 2016 reflected a period of difficult trading in the summer, prompted by Brexit-related uncertainty,
but with an improvement in trading in the fourth quarter as a result of both strategic initiatives implemented during the first half of
2016 and signs of improving business confidence. However, for the year as a whole, and in line with the industry, the Group has seen
increased volatility and accelerated decline rates in print advertising and newspaper sales. If the rates of decline experienced in 2016
continue Into 2017 and beyond, then anticipated digital revenue growth and cost reduction initiatives may not be sufficient to mitigate
the effect of the lost revenues, impacting the Group's ability to return to growth.

As noted in the review of Liquidity and Going Concern on page 45, as at 31 December 2016 the Group had net debt of £204 miillion,
cormprising cash of £16 million and borrowings of £220 million. The borrowings comprise £220 million of high yield bonds {senior
secured notes), which are repayable in full on 1 June 2019. Subsequent to year end, on 17 January 2017 the Group received gross cash
proceeds of £17 million arising from the completion of the disposal of its East Anglia and East Midlands businesses. These cash proceeds
were used to increase the level of cash held by the Group for working capital purposes.

The repayment of the £220 million of high yield bonds on 1 June 2019 falls within the three year period of this viability review. The
Directors anticipate that the Group will remain in a position to meet its obligations in respect of the bonds, including with regard to

the payment of interest, in the period to their maturity. However. in light of the challenges faced by the industry as a whole, the current
trading experience of the Group. and the likely financial position of the Group at the time the bonds are due for repayment in June 2019
there is uncertainty surrcunding the Group's ability to refinance the bonds at par in the debt markets on commercially acceptable
terms. Fallure to repay. refinance, satisfy or otherwise retire the bonds at their maturity would give rise to a default under the indenture
governing the bonds dated 16 May 2014 and could have a material impact on the Group’s operations and its ability to continue as a
going concern. As a result. the Directors, along with the Group’s advisors, are currently exploring the strategic options available to the
Group in the event that a refinancing of the bonds in the debt markets prior to June 2019 Is not possible.

Based on the above, and subject to the uncertainty around the repayment, refinancing, satisfaction or retirement of the bonds in June

2019, the board confirms it has a reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as
they fall due over the period under review,
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Report of the Audit Committee

The role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board frorn the Non-Executive Directors of the Company. The Audit Committee's terms of
reference include all matters indicated by Disclosure and Transparency Rule 7) and the Code, The terms of reference are considered
annually by the Audit Committee and are approved by the Board. A copy of the current terms of reference is available on the
Company's website.

The Audit Committee is responsible for:
monitoring the integrity of the financial statements of the Group and any formal announcements relating to the Group's financial
performance and reviewing significant financial reporting judgements contained therein;
reviewing the effectiveness of the Group's internal financial controls and the Group’s internal control and risk management systems
and making proposals to the Board as to the need, or otherwise, for changes to those systems:
making recomimendations to the Board. for a resolution to be put to the shareholders for their approval in a general meeting. on the
appointment of the external Auditor and the approval of the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors;
reviewing and moniteoring the external Auditors’ independence and cbjectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process, taking into
consideration relevant UK professional and regulatory requirements;
reviewing (with subsequent reporting to the Board) of the conclusions of the Group's external Auditor in its annual audit and review
of the half-year results. These reviews include discussion of any control weaknesses or issues identified by the Auditor:

- developing and implementing the Group's policy on the engagement of the external Auditor to supply non-audit services, taking into
account relevant guidance regarding provision of non-audit services by the external audit firm;
reviewing the arrangerments by which staff may. in confidence, raise concerns about possible improprieties in matters of financial
reporting or other areas: and

- monitoring the risk assessment process involving all senior managers of the Group’s businesses in addition to the Executive Directors.

The Group’s Risk Matrix is reviewed on a regular basis throughout the year by the local opérational and senior management. Risks

are examined at regular executive meetings both locally and at Group level at the Executive Management Committee. These risk
assessment sessions are held at each operation and will evaluate and address the risks identified. The results of these assessments

are addressed in the Executive Directors’ reports to the Board. During 2016. the areas which senior management considered included:
Group strategy. customer care metrics, talent and human resources, newsprint, editorial reorganisation, national advertising sales,
display advertising. implementation of sales force restructuring. revenue growth and digital strategy. management resources and
reorganisation, newspaper sales, property. acquisitions and disposals. and financing requirements.

The Audit Committee is required to report its findings to the Board., identifying any matters on which it considers that action or
improvement is needed and making recommendations on the steps to be taken. The Committee’s Terms of Reference permit it
to oversee the selection process for appointing a new Auditor should it determine, or it becomes necessary. to do so.

Composition of the Audit Committee
The Committee is normally comprised of three independent Non-Executive Directors,

The Audit Commmittee was chaired by Mark Pain, until his resignation on 31 August 2016. The new Audit Committee Chairman is Mike
Butterworth, a Chartered Accountant, who is considered by the Board to have recent and relevant financial experience and expertise
for that role. and fulfils the requirement that the Cormmittee includes at least one financially qualified member. All Audit Committee
members are expected to be financially literate. Camilla Rhodes and Kjell Aamot, both of whom hold or have previously held board
and/or executive managerment leve! posts in majar media organisations, are also members. Details of each Director can be found on
pages 38 and 39,

Membership of the Committee is reviewed at regular intervals by the Chairman of the Committee and the Chairman of the Board,
{who is not normally a member of the Audit Committee, although Carnilla Rhodes currently cocupies that role on an interim basis).

Meetings

The Audit Committee is required to meet not less than three times per year and has an agenda linked to events in the Group's financial
calendar. The agenda is predominantly cyclical and is therefore approved by the Audit Committee Chairrnan on behalf of his fellow
members. Each Audit Committee member has the right to require reports on relevant matters of interest in addition to the

cyclical items,

The Audit Committee meetings are attended by the Chief Financial Officer and the Group Head of Finance at the invitation of the
Committee, and the Company Secretary, who acts as Secretary to the Committee. with minutes being circulated to all Cornmittee
members. The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are also invited to attend if required to do so by the Committee. Towards the close
of relevant meetings, all executives {with the exception of the Company Secretary) leave in order for the Committee to have appropriate
discussion with the external auditor who also attends by invitation). The Audit Committee Chairman also has one or more private
rmeetings with the external audit partner during the course of the year to discuss any relevant issues.

The External Auditor is invited to attend each Audit Committee meeting to discuss and agree the audit programme for the forthcoming
year, together with any proposed non-audit work. In Novermber the external auditors present their audit plan, in March the findings
from the year-end audit are shared and in July half-year review findings are presenited. Any significant non-audit work by the auditor

is approved by the Committee {or by the Committee Chairman on its behalf} in advance of any engagement letter being signed.
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Overview of the actions taken by the Audit Committee to discharge its duties

Two of the scheduled meetings in 2016 were held during the year-end audit and one was held during the interim review. Three of the
meetings during 2016 considered reports on the Group's system of internal controls. These, together with the systern in operation. are
described in the internal control section of the Annual Report.

At its fourth meeting of the year the Committee carried out a review of the Group's key business risks and amendments to its system of
reviewing and menitoring risk. The Committee is actively involved in the ongoing review of risk and internal controls by the main Board.
For additional information see the section on internal control on page 44.

In considering the financial statements for the period ended 31 December 2016, the following significant issues were addressed:
- going concern and longer-term viability statement:
- publishing titles valuation and impairment;
- press valuation and impairment: and
pension obligations.

Papers in retation to each of these topics were presented to the Audit Committee by management and also provided to the Auditor
for their consideration and opinion. They were subsequently discussed at meetings of the Audit Committee who made a final
recormmendation on their treatment to the Board as part of its process of approving the Company's financial statements.

Other matters considered included cyber security, tax strategy. structural changes to the Group, accounting for the acquisition of the
i newspaper and disposals of the Group's former titles in the Isle of Man and East Anglia and the East Midlands, property {including
assets held for sate) and certain technical updates.

External Auditor

At the meeting to review the Annual Report and Accounts, the Committee farmally considers the non-audit services provided by the
Group's external Auditor and the effectiveness of the audit process. It is the Company’s policy that any non-audit work to be performed
by the Auditor, where fees on a cumulative basis exceed £50.000 in any financial year. must be approved by the Audit Committee.

The Group’s policy requires that services andfor advice that require auditing are not undertaken by the external Auditor. If non-audit
fees for a financial year exceed the audit related fees for a year, then Board approval must be given. Where appropnate non-audit work
for which the Auditor is considered is the subject of an appropriate tender exercise.

To assess the effectiveness of the external Auditor, the Audit Committee reviewed the:

arrangements for ensuring the external Auditor's independence and objectivity:

external Auditor’s fulfilment of the agreed audit plan and any variations from the plan:

robustness and perceptiveness of the Auditor in their handling of the key accounting and audit judgerments: and
. content of the external Auditor's reporting on internal control.

During 2016 the Company has used several professional firrns for different projects, Taxation compliance and advisory work relating
to the Company’s subsidiaries in the Republic of Ireland was undertaken by a professional firm other than the Group's Auditor.

The Committee oversaw the appointrment of Deloitte LLP in 2002 and has a primary responsibility for the appointment, re-appointment
and removal of the Auditor. The Committee conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of the external audit process as part of its work
during the year. The Cormmittee reviewed the Auditor's plan for the year. noting the role of the senior statutory audit partner and key audit
staff. the arrangements for day-to-day management of the audit, if there were any conflicts of interest and the extent of non-audit services
provided by the Auditor. The Company's Auditor may be engaged to undertake non-audit work in limited circumstances when it is
considered beneficial. in the opinion of the Committee, that their knowledge and/or expertise are deployed by the Company. Non-audit
related services provided in 2016 consisted of professional advice in relation to taxation compliance services, other taxation advisory services
and pension scherne audit services with total fees of £0.7 million (see Note 5) along with work supporting shareholder circulars associated
with the approval of transactions being the [ acquisition and the disposal of titles in East Anglia and the East Midlands. which completed
in January 2017. Fees were £0.4 million and £03 million respectively, with the latter received and accounted for in 2017, The taxation advice
was provided by partners and staff who had no involverment in the audit of the financial statements. Commmencing 1 January 2017 the
Group has appointed KPMG to assist with tax compliance matters, thus increasing audit independence. The Cornmittee is satisfied that
the objectivity and independence of the external audit is safeguarded. The Committee has considered the likelihood of a withdrawal of
the external Auditor frorn the rarket and noted that there are no contractual obligations to restrict the choice of external Auditor.

The Financial Reperting Council's Audit Quality Review team selected to review the audit of the Company's Annual Report and Accounts
2015 as part of their annual inspection of audit firms. The focus of the review was on identifying areas where improvements were required.
A full copy of the findings of the review has been received and discussed with Deloitte. A nurnber of significant findings were identified
and an action plan was agreed with Deloitte to ensure the matters identified as requiring improverment have been addressed.

The Committee has recomrmended to the Board the re-appointment of the external Auditor. On the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Directors will be proposing the re-appointment of Deloitte LLP at the Annual General Meeting in 2017, In making that
recommendation, the Committee considered the performance of the external Auditor in previous years and took account of their
knowledge of the Group and of the fact that the Group remains in a considerable pericd of change, through which continuity of Auditor
was felt to be important The audit partner rotated at the cornmencement of the 2012 interim review and will continue to rotate every
five years. subject to Deloitte LLP's ongoing appointment A new audit partner has therefore been appointed in 2017, Although the
Company has no current plans to retender the contract for audit services it reserves the right to do so and will comply with a
requirement to retender such contract to which it is or may be subject in the future,
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Dear Shareholder

| am pleased to present the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the period ended 31 December 2016. In this year's report, | will provide
an update on the remuneration of the Executive Directors over the last twelve months with details of the annual bonus and long term
incentive plan {LTIP} cutcomes for 2016 and the LTIP awards that were made during the year plus the usual tables providing information
on executive and non-executive contracts, their shareholding and other information as required by legislation.

The Company's Remuneration Policy {the Policy). approved by shareholders on 27 June 2014 had a three year life and will expire at the
2017 AGM. The full policy is contained in the 2014 Annual Report, available on the Company's website: http/Avww.johnstonpress.co.uk/
investorsfreportsresults-presentations.

In preparation for this, over the last few months the Remuneration Committee carried out a comprehensive review of executive
remuneration and having cencluded that review. the Cornpany is putting forward a revised Remuneration Policy at this years Annual
General Meeting. The Policy is subject to shareholder approval and. if approved, will become effective frorn the date of the mesting.
Full details of the Policy and how we intend to implement it in 2017 is provided below.

Remuneration Committee
In 2016, we welcomed Mike Butterworth and Kiell Aamot as members of the Remuneration Committee. They replace Stephen van
Rooyen and Mark Pain who left the Comrmittee and the Johnston Press Board in May and August 2016 respectively,

2016 performance and incentive outcome

2016 was another challenging year for the newspaper industry in general, Johnston Press has continued to take action in response to
the challenges the industry faces, most notably through the acquisition of the i newspaper and the sale of various titles in East Anglia
and Isle of Man. The 2016 annual incentive scheme for Executive Directors was aimed at focusing the senior team on improving financial
performance, growing revenue and paying down the Group's debt through the use of three financial performance measures; EBITDA
Total Revenue and Net Debt Reduction. Despite many positive steps taken across the core business, the results for the three key targets
inctuded in the annual bonus plan fell short of requirements, resulting in no bonuses being awarded to the Executive Directors or the
Company'’s Executive Management and Senior Leadership Team who were subject to broadly the same Bonus Plan criteria.

In 2014, awards were made to Executive Directors and selected senior executives under the one-off Value Creation Plan, The
performance testing date for these awards is 23rd June 2017 and these are expected to fully lapse.

Reflecting Company performance against the backdrop of a tough external environment and the impact of headwinds facing the
industry, no short or long-term incentives paid out or vested for the period ended 31 December 2016.

2017 Remuneration Policy

Current remuneration policy and design considerations

The 2014 remuneration policy is based on a typical UK plc structure which provides for a base salary, modest benefits, a pension
contribution, an annua! bonus [with part deferred in shares) and annual awards of free shares made under the Performance Share Plan
[PSP) igranted as a percentage of an individual's salary) which vest after three years subject to performance conditions.

Reflecting the Company's performance in a very difficult industry environrment. bonus and LTIP payouts have been relatively modest,
particularly in recent years, and bonuses have been low (as explained above in respect of performance in 2016). The Committee is
reassured that take-home pay is reflective of performance over the last few years,

Johnston Press continues to operate in a very challenging industry. This has resulted in the Company currently having a relatively small
market capitalisation, There is also very limited liquidity in the shares and this has contributed to a highly-volatile share price. which in
recent months has moved materially as a result of factors not directly related to the underlying performance of the business. In addition.
the Compary has high-yield bonds which are due for repayment in June 2019, and this represents a further chailenge for the business
in the short term. The Committee has considered carefully how these factors should be taken into account in the design of the 2017
remuneration policy, and has identified a number of issues with the existing policy:

+ Making grants under the PSP based on a percentage of an executive's base salary (Up to 1259 of salary)} results in an award over a very
high number of shares and could be highly dilutive for existing shareholders (either through cash settlement or through the issue of
new shares).

Half of PSP awards have historically been based on a total shareholder return measure which cornpares Johnston Press's share price
performance against a basket of other media companies. Purely as an illustration. the base share price upon which growth would be
measured for a PSP award at the start of 2017 would have been 13.8p (three-month average to 31 December 2016). A relatively modest
increase in pence per share terms could result in a high total shareholder return. The Committee does net feel Executive Directors
should benefit inadvertently from a combination of high volatility in the Company's share price and a relatively modest increase on

a very low base price, Going forward, the share price is likely to continue to be highly volatile and could potentially move in reaction
to factors not related to management's performance or the underiying performance of the business.

- The business focus should remain firmly on short-term objectives to be achieved over 2017, and setting robust three-year targets at
this time (particularly given the bond repayment in June 2019} is very difficult
If the proposed policy. set out below, is not approved by shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. the 2014 remuneration policy will
continue to apply for the 2017 financial year.
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continued

The proposed 2017 remuneration policy

Given the current financial and business outlook and the unusual position the Company finds itself in, it is essential that the 2017 policy
allows for increased ftexibility in how remuneration is structured and how it supports our performance, without providing excessive
levels of reward in the event of a slight recovery in the share price.

The policy the Committee is proposing for use over the 2017-19 period would allow us more flexibility in how variable pay is operated,

essentially allowing us to use one of the following options over the three-year period:

- An annual bonus with no long-term award under the PSP. with a higher maximum than currently operated {but significantly lower
than combined bonus and PSP opportunity under the existing policy) with at least half deferred for three years; or

- Continuing with the current combination of annual bonus and performance shares or instead an annual bonus and restricted share
awards (the maximum face value of which would be no more than half the maximum grant value of performance shares). It would
not be possible to grant both performance shares and restricted shares to a director in any given year.

It is proposed that the first option, an annual bonus only. is operated in 2017, This would allow the Company to place greater focus on
the comning year, which is a ¢ritical one for the Johnston Press (particularly in light of the issues around the June 2019 bond repayment).

As mentioned above, the advantage of operating an annual bonus only (with deferral also in cash) is that it aveids granting performance
shares at a low share price which would be highly dilutive for existing shareholders, and potennally lead to significant reward prirmarily
due to share price volatility rather than a sustained improvement in perforrmance.

In the second and third year of the policy, if the circumstances support a move to performance or restricted share awards, we will
consuit with leading shareholders before making any decision to do so.

At a critical time in the Company’s recovery. it is essential that the current Chief Financial Officer is retained, The Committee has decided
to give the Company greater protection by requiring the Chief Financial Officer to provide 12 months notice and, to be equitable, the
Company would provide him with the same period of notice. This is in line with both the Chief Executive Officer's contract and typical
market practice. In addition, up to 12 months notice will be provided in new directors' contracts, which will assist with both recruitment
and retention,

Implementation of policy and quantum for 2017
There will be no change to base salaries in 2017 - these were last increased on 1 January 2015,

If the policy is approved and the only incentive available to directors will be an annual bonus scheme. the aggregate level of variable
pay opportunity will be significantly reduced from 2459 to 1809% of salary for the Chief Executive Officer. and from 2259% to 165% for the
Chief Financial Officer. Furthermore, half of any bonus payable in respect of 2017 performance will be deferred for three years (in cash
rather than shares to avoid a windfall from a rebound in the share price) and the Committee will reduce vesting of this deferred
element if it is not satisfied that there has been progress in the Company's financial performance over the deferral period.

The Committee believes strongly in the importance of the link between pay and performance, and has devised a bonus structure for
20017 whereby 475% of the opportunity will be based on EBITDA and profit margin targets, 27.59% on revenue targets and 25% on key
strategic objectives relating to progress towards achieving a sound financial base by the end of the financial year.

If the policy is not approved, the Remuneration Cormmittee will revert to the current remuneration policy which may include
participation in the annual bonus scheme and an award under the PSP,

The proposed policy can be found on pages 51 to 60. The Committee believes the new policy which will be put forward for shareholder
approval will enable us to ensure that we can operate a dynarmic approach to executive remuneration in a fast changing and
challenging industry, whilst at the same time ensuring that the directors’ rewards are not excessive and are aligned to the long-term
success of the Company.

The Committee has spent considerable time reviewing remuneration in light of the current circumstances. We believe the proposed
approach is fair and permits the Company to revert to long-term incentive awards once the Company has recovered value for
shareholders. On behalf of the Board | hope you will be able to support the remuneration resolutions at the forthcoming AGM.

Yours sincerely

CM\M M

Camilla Rhodes
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

The Directors’ Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with The Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
{Amendment) Regulations 2013 {the "Act’) and also in accordance with the requirement of the Listing Rules of the Financial Conduct Autherity. The Rermuneration
Policy has been developed taking inte account the principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code and recent guidance from UK institutional shareholders,

the Investrment Association and ISS, The Remuneration Policy will be put to a binding shareholder vote at the 2017 Annual General Meeting (AGM) on 22 May 2017
and, subject to its approval, it will becorne effective from that date.
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The Committee’s Remuneration Policy aims to attract, motivate and retain Directors of the highest calibre, to drive the future success
of the business and to reward them fur delivering value to shareholders,

The Company’s policy is that a significant proportion of the remuneration of the Executive Directors should be performance-related.
Executive Directors may earn annual bonus payments together with the benefits of participation in share schemes and these
arrangements are described below.,

The Committee reviews the performance criteria attached to incentive schemes each year and their appropriate mix to ensure that they
are aligned with the Company’s strategic objectives and future direction.

The Committee has also considered the structure of the Directors’ remuneration packages from a risk perspective. It remains satisfied
that the packages, which may include base salary. an annual bonus and long-term incentives, do not encourage inappropriate risk
taking. Risk is taken into account when setting the targets under variable incentive schemes. This is done by ensuring that a mix of
maetrics is used and targets, while stretching. are realistic, attainable, for the long-term benefit of the Company. and achievable without
taking inappropriate business risks.

In reviewing the Remuneration Policy, the Committee has the discretion to take into consideration (amongst other factors) corporate
performance on Environmental. Social and Governance (ESG) issues. The Committee is satisfied that ESG risks are not raised by the
incentive structure through inadvertently motivating irresponsible behaviour.

Summary of Policy Changes for 2017
The proposed 2017 policy provides greater flexibility in the choice of incentive structures the Company operates to support our strategic
goals at the start of each year.

In any given year under the new policy. the Company will be able to operate:
An annual bonus and make performance share awards under the Performance Share Plan (PSP} [at the sarme bonus and PSP limits
as under the 2014 policy) or

. An annual bonus and make restricted share awards under the PSP at lower face values: or

- Alarger annual bonus with significant deferral, but with no ability to make any other long-term share awards (including performance
and restricted shares).

The current intention is to operate the third option in 2017 - a larger annual bonus only - with performance measures selected to
support the achievement of our short-term strategic objectives, which in turn are designed to support our recovery. A significant part
of any 2017 benus that becomes payable would be subject to deferral {in cash). Additionally, by not offering a PSP award, we avoid the
significant share dilution issues that could arise as a result of granting awards when the share price is at low levels.

The Comimittee may revert to a policy of bonus and either performance shares or restricted shares once an appropriate level of recovery
has been achieved, and if it feels it is appropriate to do so, Leading shareholders would be consulted prior to making this change.

The introduction of restricted shares permits the Committee to grant lower-value long-term incentive awards without performance
criteria and is likely to be operated if the Committee felt that setting fong-term financial targets was too difficult due to insufficient
long-term visibility.

Awards of performance shares together with restricted shares may not be made to any director in any given year.
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Remuneration Policy Table
The next table sets out a summary of each element of the Executive Director's remuneration packages, the policy for how these are
operated and their link to the Company's strategy: '

Framewark used to assass

Element Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum spportunity perforrmance
Base salary To attract and retain Salaries are normally reviewed No maximum applies. Performance and
X v . . . wvelgpment Pr .
high-calibre individuals. aznually or V\ft}?en an indi ldl:'t:'lr Salaries will be eligible Development Process
. .. . 1fionorr NSIDINTY,
Reflects an individual's changes position or responsibility. g e reases as
experience, role and The Committee reserves the right  appropriate during the
performance. to review salaries at other times life of this Policy.

as and when appropriate. Generally. annual

In deciding appropriate levels. the  increases will be in line
Committee takes into account: with employee increases
but higher increases may
be awarded on occasion,
for example, where:

the commercial need
to do so:

the market rates for similar

e . " an individual is
positions in companies of :

comparable size and promoted:

complexity, and appropriate + an individual has been
media companies; recruited or promoted
the complexity of the role. ona _be!ow-_market rate;
the individual's experience, level and

of responsibility, and the - where there have
performance of both the been material
individual and the company: changes to individual
and responsibilities or in the

size or complexity of

increases applied to the N
pp the business.

breader workforce.
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Framewaork used to assess

Element Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximum opportunity performance
Benefits To aid retention and Benefits may include a company  Executives are provided Not applicable.
remain competitive in car (or car allowance), telephone,  with a market-
the rmarket place. health insurance, long-term illness  cormnpetitive benefits
cover and life assurance. package, the value of
Termporary relocation or other which may vary frorr.n
related expenses may be offered  YSarto-year depending
as required. on the cost to the.
Company from third-
Executives may also be party providers.
reimbursed for any reasonable
expenses (and any income tax Awards are. r'n?c.!e upto
payable thereon) incurred in the HMRF: |f\d|wdual SAYE
performance of their duties. and SIP limits. The
Company makes no
Executives may participate inthe  commitment to offer
all-employee HMRC-approved SAYE or $IP participation
Sharesave option scheme or Share i any year.
Incentive Plan {SIP) on the same
terms as other eligible employees.
Pension To aid retention and The Company may contribute into  For the current Chief Not applicable.

remain competitive in
the market place.

the Johnston Press Retirement
Savings Plan (JPRSP) or an
executive's private pension
scheme, or pay a salary
supplementin lieu of pension.

Executive Officer. the
Company may make
pension contributions of
up to 259% of basic salary
and match any individual
contributions up to a
maximum of 59 of salary.

For the current Chief
Financial Officer and any
new Executive Directors,
a pension contribution of
up to 129 of salary may be
provided,

Only base salary is
pensionable.
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Framework used Lo 855655

Element Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maximurn opportunity performance
Annual To motivate executives The Committee considers and The normal maximum The bonus may be based
bonus and incentivise the approves the measures and bonus opportunity for the on the achlevement of an
achievernent of key targets at the start of each year. Chief Executive Officeris  appropriate mix of challenging
financial and strategic ensuring they are aligned with 120% of salary and the financlal. strategic or
targets over the year the Company's key short-term Chief Financial Officer's personal targets.
without encouraging priorities and business strategy i5 1009% of salary.

excessive risk taking.

and are sufficiently stretching.

into account the Company's
internal budgets and, where

for the forthcoming year. The
targets applying to financial
measures are {where possible)
based on a sliding scale.

Bonus payment is determined by

the Committee after the year-end  In any year where the

by assessing the extent to which normal maximum limits
set out above are
exceeded, executives

will not be eligible for

an award under the
Performance Share Plan.
either in the form of
performance or restricted
shares (see below),

targets have been achieved.

If bonus opportunity is at normal
levels. the Committee may choose
to defer a portion of any bonus
payable. into either cash or shares,
for a peried of up to two years. If

a higher bonus opportunity s in
operation, up to half of the bonus
will be deferred for three years.

Deferred awards vest subject to
continued employment and not
being under notice of termination.

Recovery and withholding
provisions apply to bonuses
payable to Executive Directors.
This allows the Company to
recover bonus payments {or
withhold deferred cash or share
boruses) in certain specified
circumstances. including a
material misstatement of the
Group's financial pesition, error
in assessing the size of the bonus
or discovery of an act of gross
rmisconduct.

The Committee, in its discretion,
acting fairly and reasonably. may
alter the bonus outcome if it feels
that the payout Is Inconsistent
with the Company’s overall
performance taking account of
any factors it considers relevant.
The Committee will consult with
leading investors before any
exercise of its discretion to
increase the bonus outcorme.

At the start of any given
In setting the appropriate financial year of this policy.
parameters. the Committee takes  including 2017 the
Committee may decide
to increase the bonus
applicable, analysts expectations  opportunity, up toa
maximum of 180% of
salary for the Chief
Executive Officer and
165% for.the Chief
Financial Officer.

Financlal measures, which
typically account for the
majority of the bonus
opportunity, may include
measures such as EBITDA
{or other measures of profit},
revenue. cash flow
performance and debt
reduction targets.

For financial metrics, a

range of targets is set by

the Committee, taking into
account factors such as the
internal and external business
outlook for the year.

For financial metrics:

nothing is payable for
performance below a
minimum level of
performance; and

the amount payable for
threshold performance
may vary depending on
the metric. Typically. but
not in all cases, up to 25%
is payable for achieving a
threshold target and this
rises untit full bonus is
payable for a higher, more
demanding target.

Non-financial metrics and
personal targets, such as
audience growth. specific
targets relating to the digital
business. customerfadvertiser
satisfaction and employee
satisfactionfengagement,
may alse be included.

If a higher than normal

bonus opportunity is operated
during the year, any deferred
bonus element could be
reduced. including to nil. if
the Committee is not satisfied
that there has been progress
in the Company's financial
performance over the

deferral period.

Seg Note 1 on page 56.
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Purpese and link to strategy

Operatien

Maxlmum opportunity

Framework used to assess
performance

Long-term
incentives

Incentivises Executive
Directors and selected
senior executives to
achieve superior financial
performance and
long-term shareholder
returns.

To facilitate share
ownership and provide
further alignment with
shareholders.

To attract. motivate
and retain key talent.

The Company operates a PSP.
Under this plan, annual awards
(structured as nil-cost options or
conditional awards) are granted.
The rules of the plan also allow
awards to be structured as
forfeitable share awards.

Awards vest after three years
and can be made in the form of
performance shares or restricted
shares, but both awards may not
be made in any given financial
year to an executive director.

As part of the approval of this
policy. the Company is seeking
to pass a resolution at the AGM
to confirm the ability to grant
restricted shares to executive
directors.

If performance shares are granted
under the plan, these will vest
subject to the achievement

of stretching performance
conditions measured over a period
of three years, and continued
employment.

If awards of restricted shares are
made {without performance
criteria). these will vest no earlier
than three years after grant,

The level of grant is reviewed
annually (subject to individual
limits set out in the relevant plan
rules), taking into account overall
remuneration, the performance
of the Executive Directors and the
Company's share price.

Recovery and withholding
provisions apply which permit

the Company to withhold
unvested awards. or claw back
vested awards, in the event of a
materlal misstaternent. errorin
assessing performance conditions
or discovery of an act of gross
misconduct.

The value of dividends, to the
extent they are paid, will accrue
on vested awards during the
vasting period.

Perforrmance share
awards with a face value
of no more than 125% of
salary for 1509% of salary
In exceptional
circumstances) may be
made in any year.

The Committee will
consult with shareholders

in advance of any intention -

to grant restricted shares.
If restricted shares are
granted, a maximum

face value limit of ha!f

of that set out above for
performance shares

will apply.

Awards may not be made
under both plans in any
given year to an executive
director.

If a higher than normal
bonus opportunity isin
operation in any particular
year for an executive. he
or she will not be eligible
to receive performance or
restricted share awards In
that financial year.

Performance share awards
granted under the PSP vest
after three years subject to the
satisfaction of challenging
performance criteria, which
may include absolute or
relative Total Shareholder
Return (TSR") and/for earnings
per share ("EPS") growth.

If used. relative TSR Is
measured against an
appropriate comparator
group over a three-year
period. 259 of this part of
the award vests at median,
with 1009 vesting for upper
quartile performance with
straight-line vesting in
between. For this part of the
award, no vesting can occur
unless the Committee is
satisfied that the results
reflect the underlying
financial perforrmance of
the Company.

If an EPS measure is used,
performance will be
measured over a three-year
period. No part of this award
will vest unless a threshold
level of performance is
achieved. 25% of this part
of the award vests for
threshold, rising up to full
vesting for a more
demanding target.

When determining the

target range for any financial
measures that may apply. the
Committee ensures they are
challenging by taking into
account current and
anticipated trading conditions.
the long-term business plan
and external expectations.
The Committee may introduce
other measures. or replace
TSR and EPS, to support the
long-term business strategy.

The Committee will consult
with major investors hefore
making any changes to
measures.

No performance criteria apply
to restricted share awards
made under the PSP, although
the Committee retains the
ability to reduce vesting if it
feels it is appropriate to do so.

See Note 2 on page 56.
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Framewaork used to assess

Element Purpose and link to strategy Operation Maxirnurm opportunity performance
Share To align interests of The Chief Executive Officer Not applicable. Not applicable.
Ownership management and and Chief Financial Officer are
Guidelines shareholders. required to build up shares to the

value of 200% and 150% of salary

respectively.

In order to meet these guidelines,
Executive Directors are required
to retain 50% of shares which vest
under executive share plans, after
allowing for sufficient sales of
shares to meet tax obligations.
until the required holding has
been achieved.

Only shares owned outright will
count towards the guideline.

Non- To attract and retain high  Fees may be paid in shares Current fees are set out None. -
Executive  quality and experienced as well as cash, in the Annual Report
Director Non-Executive Chairman on Remuneration.

The Board determines the fees
fees and Directors. e "

of the Non-Executive Directors, The total value of
based upon recommendations Non-Executive Director
from the Chairman and Chief fees must be within the
Executive Officer {or. in the case limits set out in the

of the Chairman, based on Company's Articles
recommendations from the of Association.
Remuneration Committee and

the Chief Executive Officer).

The level of fees of the Non-
Executive Directors reflects

the time commitment and
responsibility of their respective
roles. Their fees are reviewed from
time to time against broadly-similar
UK-listed companies and
companies of a similar size.
Additional fees may be payable
for the chairmanship of
committees and for holding

the Senior Independent

Director position.

In exceptional circumstances.
additional fees may be payable
to reflect a substantial Increase
in time commitment of the
Nen-Executive Chairman

and Directors,

Directors may also be reimbursed
for any reasonable expenses {and
any income tax payable thereon)

incurred in performance of

their duties,

Notes:

' Interens of annual performance tangets, EBITDA and revenue reflect the Company's objective of increasing top line growth and ultimately earnings.

! Total Sharehalder Retum is an important benchmark of the success of the business and provides a strong alignment with the returns received by shareholders.
The EPS measure ensures a focus on lang-term profitability which the Committee believes is a driver of shareholder value,
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Incentive plan discretions

The Cornmittee will operate the annual bonus and long-term incentive plans according to their respective rules and in accordance with

the Listing Rules and HMRC rules where relevant. The Committee, consistent with market practice, retains discretion over a number of

areas relating to the operation and administration of these plans. These include (but are not limited to) the following {albeit with the

level of award restricted as set out in the policy table above}

- who participates in the plans:

- the timing of grant of award and/or payment:

- the size of an award and/for a payment subject to individual participation and dilution limits as approved by shareholders;
the choice of performance measures and targets for each incentive plan in accordance with the policy set out above and the rules
of each plan;

. discretion retating to the measurement of performance and level of vesting in the event of a change of control or reconstruction:

- determination of a good leaver (in addition to any specified categories) for incentive plan purposes based on the rules of each plan
and the appropriate treatment chosen;

- adjustrments required in certain circumstances (e.q. rights issues, corporate restructuring and special dividends), and

- the ability to adjust existing performance conditions for exceptional events so that they can still fulfil their original purpose.

Any use of the above discretions would, where relevant. be explained in the Annual Report on Remuneration and may. as appropriate,
be the subject of consultation with the Company's shareholders.

In the event of a change of control of the Cornpany share or cash awards will normally vest and the Cormnmittee in place before the
event will determine the extent to which any performance condition has been satisfied. and any appropriate reduction in the number
of shares or amount of any bonus subject to an award under the long-term incentive plans and the annual bonus plan.

Legacy arrangements

For the avoidance of doubt, in approving the Policy Report. autherity is given to the Company to honour any commitments entered into
with current or fermer Directors, including awards made to the Chief Executive Officer as part of the terms of his recruitment, as well as
awards made under the Value Creation Plan (VCP") approved by shareholders in 2014,

Differences in Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors compared to other employees

The Committee is made aware of pay structures across the wider Group when setting the Remuneration Policy for Executive Directors,
The Committee considers the general basic salary increase for the broader employee population when determining the annual salary
review for the Executive Directors,

The annual Senior Leadership Bonus ['SLBT} plan operates across certain levels in the Group. For 2017, the bonus measures are mostly
the same for the Executive Directors and the rest of the Senior Leadership Team. the exception being specific strategic measures to
which the wider Senior Leadership Tearmn may not be privy. Monthly and quarterly sales incentive schemes are in place to motivate
direct advertising and newspaper sales teams, some ad-hoc local bonus plans {for junior level roles) operate across the Group and all
ermployees are eligible to participate in the Save As Yaou Earn {"SAYE") scheme (if offered),

Overall. the remuneration policy for the Executive Directors is more heavily weighted towards variable pay than for other employees.

This ensures that there is a clear link between the value created for shareholders and the remuneration received by the Executive
Directors given it is the Executive Directors who are considered to have the greatest potential to influence Company value creation.
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Remuneration scenarios for Executive Directors

The Company's policy results in a significant portion of remuneration received by Executive Directors being dependent on Company
performance. The graph below illustrates 2017 reward scenarios for the Executive Directors under three performance scenarios and
assuming the revised Remuneration Policy for 2017 to 2019 is approved by shareholders: Below-Target, On-Target and Maximum.

Notes:

{i) Minirmurm comprises fixed pay. Fixed pay is the sum of basic salary {as at } January 2017), benefits (2016 value) and 2016 pension. Fixed pay is constant across all
three scenarios.

(i) For On-target it is assurmed 50% of the 2017 maximurn thigher) bonus opportunity is paid.

(i) For Maximurm. it is assumed full bonus payment for 2017 s made,

Recruitment and promotion policy
The remuneration package for a new Executive Director will be set in accordance with the Company's approved policy as set out above,
subject to such medifications as are set out below.

Satary levels for Executive Directors will be set in accordance with the Company's Remuneration Policy. taking into account the
experience and calibre of the individual and their existing remuneration package. Where it is appropriate to offer a lower salary initially,
a series of increases to the desired salary positioning may be made over subsequent years subject to individual performance and
development in the role. Benefits will generally be provided in-line with those offered to other Executive Directors, with relocation

or other one-off expenses provided for if necessary.

The structure of any variable pay element will be in accordance with the Company's approved policy detailed above. The maximurn
banus potential and award levels under the PSP are as set out in the policy table. including the exceptional circumstances limit. As set
out in the policy table above. bonus potential above the normal limit may apply in any given year, but where this is the case, no awards
for that year may be granted under the PSP (aside from buyout awards, as described below). Different performance measures rnay be
set initially for the annual bonus, taking into account the responsibilities of the individual, and the point in the financial year that the
individual joined the Board.

In the case of an external hire. if it is necessary to buy out incentive pay or benefit arrangements (which would be forfeited on leaving
the previous emplayer), this would be provided for by normally taking into account the form {cash or shares), timing and expected value
{ie. likelihood of meeting any existing performance criteria) of the remuneration being forfeited, Replacement share awards will enly be
made to the extent necessary,

If used, they may be granted using the Cormpany's existing share plans, although awards may also be granted outside of these schemes
if necessary, and as permitted under the Listing Rules of the UKLA.

In the case of an internal hire, any outstanding variable pay awarded in relation to the previous role will be allowed to pay out according
to its terms of grant.

Fees for a new Chairman or Non-Executive Director will be set in line with the approved policy.
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Service contracts and loss of office

The Company's policy is for service contracts to be terminable by either party with no more than 12 months' notice for current and
future Directors. On approval of this Policy. it is expected that the Chief Financial Officer's contract will be amended so that he is
required to provide 12 months' notice and to be equitable. the Company will also be required to provide the same period of notice.
This gives the Company greater protection and ensures that his contract is in line with the Chief Executive Officer's agreement and
market practice. All future Executive Directors will aiso have notice periods of up to 12 months from either party, Executive Directors’
service contracts will be available for inspection at the Annual General Meeting,

All Non-Executive Directors have letters of appointment which are terminable at will, subject to a three-month notice period. It is the
Committee’s policy that any future Non-Executive Board appointments will be made on the same terms. A copy of the standard letter
of appointment for the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors is displayed on the Company's website in the Investor Centre section.

The contract dates and notice periods for each Executive and Non-Executive Director are as follows:

Date of service

agreement/

effective date
of current Notice perlod Notice peried

appolintment by Company by Director
Ashley Highfield : 27 July 201 - 1 year 1year
David King . 16 May 2013 6 months 6 months
Camilla Rhodes 13 July 2015 3 months 3 months
Ralph Marshall 27 June 2014 3 months 3 months
Mike Butterworth 1June 2016 3 months 3 months

Kjell Aamot -1 August 2013 3 months 3 months

1 subject to amendment following the approval of this Policy to provide for 12 months' notice by either party.

For Executive Directors, the Company ray in its absolute discretion at any time after notice is served by either party, terminate a
Director's contract by paying an amount in lieu of the notice period equivalent to basic salary and the value of contractual benefits,
including pension,

Executive Directors' contracts of employment may be terminated. at the option of the Company. by giving twelve months’ notice
for Ashley Highfield and six months’ notice for David King. The Company may also terminate the Executive's employment forthwith
in certain circumstances including any serious breach of his obligations under the relevant contract of employment The Executive
Directors’ service contracts do not provide any entitiement to the provision of liquidated damages or any special provisions relating
to a change of control.

Executive Directors are entitled to accept up to two Non-Executive Director appointrnents outside of the Company provided that the
Chairman’s permission is obtained. The Remuneration Committee decides whether any fees for such positions are retained by the
Director. In addition, the Executive Directors are entitled to accept any positions connected with the newspaper industry or any
business in which the Company holds an investment.

Treatment of incentives

if a participant ceases to be employed at any time before a bonus is due to be paid or is under notice of terrmination of employment at
this time, then generally no bonus will be payable to that individual. If, however, the participant ceases employment. or is under notice
of termination of employment, for a 'good leaver reason. including - (i} death. (i) injury or disability evidenced to the satisfaction of his
employer. (i) redundancy. {iv) retirement with the agreement of the Committee, {v) his office or employment being transferred out of
the Group, or (vi) for any other reason if the Committee so decides, then the Committee has discretion to decide that the bonus
{including any part that would have been deferred into a share award} shall continue to be paid to the participant after the end of the
performance period, subject to a pro-rata reduction, The Committee has discretion not to apply a pro-rata recluction if it considers that
to do so would be inappropriate in any particular case,

Generally. upon cessation of employment outstanding awards made under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan, or any other deferred

bonus arrangement, shall lapse. If. however, a participant ceases employment for one of the ‘good leaver reasons as set out above for
the annual bonus ptan or for any other reason if the Committee so decides, then the award will vest on cessation.
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Generally, upon cessation of employment, outstanding awards made under the Company's share plans shall lapse including in cases
of surmmary dismissal. If, however, a participant ceases employment for one of the ‘good leaver reasons as set out above for the annual
bonus plan (excluding retirement, redundancy. the sale or transfer of a business out of the Group for the VCP only} or for any other
reason if the Committee so decides. then:

+ Performance share awards and restricted share awards will vest on the normal vesting date, subject to the achievement of any
performance conditions and a pro rata reduction based on the period commencing on the first day of the financial year of the
Company in which the award is granted and ending on the date of cessation, relative to the full three-year period commencing
an the first day of the financial year of the Company in which the award was granted.

- The Committee however. retains the discretion to decide. in exceptional circumstances, that any award made under the PSP will
instead vest on the date of cessation, subject to the achievement of performance conditions (if applicable) and a pro rata reduction.

For all share awards, the Committee retains the discretion not to apply a pro-rata reduction if it considers that to do so would be
inappropriate in any particular case.

How sharecholder views are taken into account

The Remuneration Committee considers shareholder feedback received in relation to the AGM each year and guidance from
shareholder representative bodies more generally, This feedback, plus any additiona! feedback received during any meetings from time
to time, is then considered as part of the Company’s annual review of remuneration. Leading shareholders have been widely consulted
in respect of the proposed Remuneration Policy for 2017 to 2019,
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Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration

Unaudited information

Implementation of Policy for 2017

Base salaries :

Base salaries for the Executive Directors as at 1 January 2017 remained unchanged at £430.000 for Ashley Highfield and £275.000
for David King and have not been increased since January 2015

Chairman and Non-Executive Directors' fees

The Chairman'’s and Non-Executive Directors’ fees were last reviewed in 2008 and have not been increased since then. The current fee
levels at the start of 2017 are:

.+ Chairman’s fee of £130.000 p.a: and

- Non-Executive Director base fee of £40.000 p.a.

Supplermentary fees:

- Senior Independent Director - £7.500 pa: (including where the Senior Independent Director is acting in an interim capacity):
« Audit Committee Chair - £7.500 p.a.: and

- Rernuneration Committee Chair - £E7.500 p.a.

Non-Executive Directors fees for 2017 will be payable quarterly in arrears.

Benefits and pension
Benefits are provided in line with the information set out in the Policy.

Ashley Highfield receives. annually, a pension contribution of 25% of his base salary and is entitled to a match of any individual
contributions up to 59 of salary, David King receives a pension contribution of 1296 of his base salary.

Annual bonus

In 2017, subject to the approval of the new Remuneration Policy. the annual banus opportunity for Ashley Highfield is 1809 of salary
and for David King Is 165% of salary. The 2017 bonus will be governed by the rules of the Company's Annual Bonus Plan and Deferred
Share Bonwus Plan,

The bonus metrics and weightings for the two Directors are provided below,

Welghting
Financial .
EBITDA - 40.0%
Profit margin . . 7.5%
Top line revenue ' 12.5%
Central "Media Sales Centre’ revenue 7.5%
Digital advertising revenue 75%
Strategic objectives . 25.0%
Totatl 100%

Should the minimum level target not be achieved for EBITDA, the amount payable in respect of other measures shall be halved,
irrespective of achievement of the relevant targets for those measures.

The strategic element is based on objectives relating to the achievernent of a sound financial base by the end of the financial year.
The targets and strategic objectives themselves are deemed to be cormmercially sensitive and will not be disclosed prospectively.
However. the Cormmittee will seek to provide retrospective disclosure of the targets and performance against them in next year's
remuneration report.

Haif of any bonus earned will be deferred in cash for a period of three years.

Clawback provisions will apply in accordance with the approved policy.
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Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration continued

Long-term incentives

Performance Share Plan

Subject to approval of the 2017 Remuneration Policy, no awards will be granted under the PSP in 2017 to the current
Executive Directors.

Membership of the Remuneration Committee

Camilla Rhodes has been Chair of the Committee since the 2013 AGM. The members of the Committee throughout 2016 are listed
in the table below. All members of the Committee are Independent Non-Executive Directors. No Director plays a part in any decision
making directly relating to their own remuneration.

The members of the Committee and their year of appointment to the Committee were:

Name Year of appointment
Camilla Rhodes (Chair) . o . 2010
Mike Butterworth _ ’ ' . 2016
Kjell Aamot 2006
Steven van Rooyen . 2013 (resigned May 2016}
Mark Pain . 2010 (resigned August 2016)

During 2016, the Committee met on six occasions. At those meetings base salaries of Executive Directors were discussed but not
increased, the targets and quantum of annual performance-related bonuses for Executive Directors were agreed. the vesting outcome
of the Group’s long-term incentive schemes and performance against the annual bonus plan for 2016 were reviewed., as were awards
to be granted under the Group's Performance Share Plan and the performance measures applying.

The Committee has the delegated responsibility for reviewing the Board policy on remuneration for the Executive Management
Committee twhich includes the bwo Executive Directors) and setting all aspects of remuneration, including the total remuneratlon
package for all Executive Directors and the Chairman of the Board.

The Committee’s terms of reference, which were reviewed in 2016, set out the responsibilities of the Remuneration Cornmittee and are
available on the Company’s website and on request.

Advice to the Committee

No member of the Committee has any personal financial interest (other than as a shareholder). conflicts of interest arising from cross
directorships or day-to-day involvement in running the business. Other Directors attend meetings when invited by the Committee and
the Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Remuneration Comrnittee, The Company’s Head of Reward (Human Resources) also
attends meetings by invitation, No Director plays a part in any discussion about his or her own remuneration,

The Remuneratior Committee was advised during the year by New Bridge Street (NBS'). a tradlng name of Aon plc. Neither NBS nor
any other part of Aon plc provided other services to the Company during 2016. NBS attended three of the meetings of the Committee
during the year and provided advice on a wide range of issues. Total NBS fees incurred for advising the Remuneration Committee in
2016 were £54.754 excluding VAT, NBS also provided share plan implermentation services to the Company. The terms.of engagement
between the Company and NBS are displayed on the Company's website. NBS are members of the Remunegration Consultants Group
and are signatories to its Code of Conduct.

The Committee monitors the relationship with external advisers on a regular basis and remains confident that NBS is independent and
that no conflicts of interest exist.

Statement of shareholder voting at 2016 AGM
Af the 2016 AGM the Directors’ Remuneration Report received the following votes from ordinary shareholders:

2015 Annua!l Report
on Rermuneration
Total number
of vates 9% of votes cast

For’ 74,666,440 96.06%
Against 3,060.434 3.94%
Abstentions? 58120
Total (excluding abstentions) 77726874

' Including discretionary.
2 Abstentions are not included in calculating percentages of votes cast for and against.
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Single total figure of remuneration for each Director

Fees/Baslc Annual Long-term
salary Benefits' bonuses Incentives Pension Total
Name of Director £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Executive Directors
Ashley Highfield 2016 430 n - - 15 556
2015 430 n 25 - 15 581
David King 2016 275 n - - 33 319
2015 275 1 16 - 33 335
Non-Executive Directors
lan Russell? 2016 130 - - - - 1320
2015 130 - - - - 130
Camilla Rhodes 2016 50 - - - - 50
2015 47 - - - - 47
Ralph Marshall 2018 40 - - - - 40
2015 40 - - - - 40
Mike Butterworth? - 2016 26 - - - - 26
2015 nfa n/a nfa n/fa nfa n/a
Klell Aamot 2016 40 - - - - 40
2015 40 - - - - 40
Mark Pain* 2016 37 - - - - 37
2015 55 - - - - 55
Stephen van Rooyen* 2016 15 - - - - 15
2015 40 - - - - 40

Notes:

Benefits for the Executive Directors included healthcare insurance, car allowance, telephone and life assurance.

'
2 lan Russell resigned on 31 Decernber 2016.

5 Mike Butterworth Jained the Board on 1 June 2016
.

Mark Pain left the Board on 31 August 2016 and Stephen van Rooyen left the Board on 18 May 2016.

2016 Annual bonus out-turn

The 2016 Annual Bonus Plan for the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer was based upon the following measures.
None of the payment thresholds were reached and so no bonus becomes payahble.

Bonus payment thresheold

Result

outcorme Minimum Maximum

Adjusted EBITDA
Total revenue
Net debt

f43.8m  £527m  £55.4m
£2041m £218.8m £230.3m
£1800m  £1790m  £171.5m
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Long-term incentives vesting in relation to performance ending in 2016

Awards made to Executive Directors in 2013 under the Perforrnance Share Plan were subject to EPS and TSR performance conditions
measured over three years, with 509 of the total award based on each. Neither condition was met for either award and the awards
therefore lapsed.

Share awards granted in 2016

Percentage
Maximum vesting
Basis of award Face valug of vesting (9 of for threshold
Scheme granted Shares awarded award face value) - performance Vesting period
Ashley Highfield PSP 125% of 1.247.099 £537.500 100% 25% under Performance
2016 salary TSR element. measured over
25% under three years.
EPS element. Awards will vest
on the third
anniversary
of grant, subject
to performance
conditions and
continued
employment.
David King PSP 125% of 797.563 £343,750 100% 259 under Performance
2016 salary TSR element. measured over
25% under three years.
EPS element. Awards will vest
on the third

anniversary

of grant, subject
to performance
conditions and
continued
employment.

The relative TSR performance condition for the 2016 PSP awards measures the Company’s TSR performance against a comparator
group comprising the FTSE All Share Media companies (excluding any FTSE 100 companies) as at the date of grant. For a ranking below
median, none of this element of the award will vest. For a median ranking. 25% of this element of the award will vest, rising on a straight
line basis to full vesting of this element for a ranking at or above upper quartile. ’

The EPS range for the 2016 award is based on EPS growth over the three financial years: 2016 to the end of 2018, 25% of this part of the
award will vest for underlying basic EPS (after adding back exceptional costs) in 2018 of 15p. with full vesting for achieving 17p or better.
The Cormnmittee is satisfied that the above target range is sufficiently stretching in light of internal and external expectations.

No awards were made under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan during 2016 as the committee decided that bonus payments in respect
of 2015 performance were relatively small and did not warrant the cost and administrative burden of deferral.
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Qutstanding share awards

The table below sets out details of the Executive Directors” outstanding awards under the Performance Share Plan (PSP), Deferred Share

Bonus Plan {DSBP} and the Value Creation Plan (VCP), including those awards made in 2016 and shown in the previous table.

Applicable Number Number
share price  ofsharesat - Lapsed Exerclsad of shares at Date from
Date of at grant 2January duringthe duringthe 31 December which
Mame of Director Type of award' award {pance} 2016 perlod period 2016 exercisable Expiry date
Ashley Highfield
PSP 05/06/13 250.79p 138,759 (138,759} - - 05/06/16 04/06/23
PSP imatching shares) 121214 158.75p 50.078 - - 50.078 12N2h7 1N2/24
PSP 26/0515 1549p 277598 - - 277598 26/05Hh8 25/05/25
psp  24/03/16 431p - - - 1247099 24/0319 23/03/26
DSBP 06/06H2 92ip 14,377 - (14,377) - 15/0315° 14/03/17
DSBP  22/05N3 225)4p 42196 - - 42196 15/0416 14/04/18
DSBP*  15/07N4 194.5p 20,565 .- - 20565 15/07h7 14/07N9
DSBP*  26/0515 142.75p 169.345 - - 169345 01/0418 31/03/20
VCP  22/0914 23lp 376,315 - - 3176315 23/0617 23/06N18
David King
PSP 05/06/13 250.79p 69,379 (69,379) - - 05/08/16 04/06/23
PSP 26/0515 154.9p 177533 - - 177533 26/0518 25/05/25
PSP 24/03/16 431p - - - 797563 24/0319 23/03/26
DSBP®  15/07/14 194.5p 8.569 - - 8.568 15/07"7 14/07h9
DSBP*  26/05/15 142.75p 93,891 - .- 93,891 0©1/04N8 31/03/20
vCcP  22/09N4 231p 1,588,157 23/06N8

- - 1588157 23/06/M7

' Qutstanding awards under the Perforrmance Share Plan are subject to three-year EPS and TSR conditions. each with equal weighting. Following an amendment
to the scherme rules in 2015 awards which vest may now be exercised up until the tenth anniversary of the date of award.
*  where applicable share prices as at the date of grant have been adjusted to take account of the Capital Refinancing Plan and the Share Capital Consalidation,

both conducted in 2014.

3 Awards under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan are in respect of 509 of 2013 and 2014 annual bonus, deferred into shares in the form of nil-cost options. Share grants
in respect of bonus for 2013 were not made in 20t4 because of prolonged restricted period, and were subsequently made on 26 May ZO15 at tha values shown in
tha table above. In respect of Awards for 2013, the ‘Date of Award’ reflects the date of the payment of the cash element of bonus (with the Deferred Share Bonus

Award subsequently being made on 26 May 2015}
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Table of Directors’ share interests
The share interests of each person who was a Director of the Company during the year as at 31 December 2016 (together with interests
held by his or her connected persons}were as follows:

9% of salary
Total legally held under
owned at Share-
Legally Deferred share 31 December holding
owned PSP awards bonus awards SAYE VCP 2016 Policy’!
9 salary at
2 January N 31 December 31 December
2016  Unvested Vested  Unvested Vested  Unvested vested  Unvested Vested 2016 2016
Executive Directors
Ashley Highfield 345,023 1574775 - 189,910 42,196 4,703 - 3376315 - 352,598 10.9%
David King 20,000 975,096 - 102460 - - - 1588157 - 20,600 1.0%
Non-Executive Directors
lan Russell 248,902 - - - - - .- - - 248,902 n/a
Camilla Rhodes 22746 - - - - - - - - 22746 nfa
Ralph Marshall 39,836 - - - - - - - - 39,836 nfa
Mike Butterworth - - - - - - - - - - n/a
Kjell Aamot 59,724 - - - - - - - - 59,724 nfa
Mark Pain 34148 - - - - - - - - 34,48 nfa
Stephen van ‘
Rooyen 9.767 - - - - - L= - - 9767 n/a

1 Holdings expressed as % of salary based on share price at 3 January 2017 of 13.34p (the openlng price on this date which was the first day of share trading on the
London Stock Exchange in 2017). On 1 April 2016 Ashley Highfield exercised 14377 shares relating to the award of 6 June 2012 under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan;
6,802 shares were sold at 41p to cover tax and NI resulting in a net gain of 7.575 shares. ’

Executive Directors are expected to retain 50% of shares which vest under executive share plans, after allowing for sufficient sales of
shares to meet tax liabilities, until a holding to the value of 200% and 1509 of salary has been achieved by the Chief Executive Cfficer
and Chief Financial Officer respectively.

Payments for loss of office
There were no payments for loss of office made to Executive Directors in 2016,

Payments to past Directors
With the exception of pension payments, no payments to past Directors were made in 2016,

Unaudited information
Change in remuneration of the Chief Executive

This table shows the change in value of salary, benefits and annual bonus for the Chief Executive Officer and other employees from
2015 to 200G,

Basa salary Taxable benefits Bonus

% change % change % change

CEO . 0% 0% {1009%6)
Salaried employees Q% 0% (1009%6)

For comparison purposes, salaried employees include all those, excluding sales employees, who are eligible for an annual
performance bonus.

Relative importance of spend on pay
The following table sets cut the percentage change in ordinary dividends and overall spend on employee pay in 2016 compared to 2015.

2016 2015 %

£m £ change
Dividends - - -
Employee remuneration costs 93 a8 (596)

66 Johnston Press ple Annual Report and Accouats 2016




Directors’ Governance | |

Total shareholder return chart and Chief Executive Officer’s single figure remuneration history

-The chart below shows the Company’s TSR performance cormpared with that of the performance of the FTSE SmallCap and the
FTSE All Share Medlia sector since 2008, As a member of both indices, the Committee believes these are relevant to compare the
Company's performance against.

This graph shows the value. by 01 January 2017. of £100 invested in Johrston Press pic on 31 December 2008, compared with the value of F100 invested in the FTSE
SmallCap and FTSE All Share Media Indices on the same date,

The other points plotted are values at intervening financial year-ends.

Source: Datastream {Thomson Reuters),

The six-year single figure of remuneration history for the Chief Executive Officer is shown in the table below, In line with reporting
requirements, this table will grow to a 10-year history:

Financial year 2009 - 2010 20m 2012 2013 2014t 2015 2016
Single figure

remuneration Ashley Highfield - - 1s.0 702 592 1.649 581 569

(£'000) John Fry? 696.5 705.0 593.5 - - - - -
Annual bonus

outcome Ashley Highfield - - 32.5% 39.6% 16.79% 65.5% 4.9% -

% of maximum ;

bonus) John Fry 53.3% 58.4% 36.49% - - - - -
LTIP vesting

outcome Ashley Highfield - - - - - 50% - -

(9% of maximum)  John Fry - - - - - - - -

¥ John Fry, the previous Chief Executive Officer. stepped down as Director and CEQ on 31 October 2011 and Ashley Highfield cornmenced emplayment on
1 Novernber 201,

¥ The higher single figure value for 2014 reflects the first vesting opportunity for Mr Highfield under the PSP. As disclosed eartier, 509 of the awards vested and the
figure reflects an uplift from strong share price performance (17196 TSR} over the vesting period.

Approval ‘
This report was approved by the Board of Directors on 29 March 2017 and signed on its behalf by;

Cﬁkh\%v\ QJ*WU))

Camiilla Rhodes
Chair. Rernuneration Committee
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Directors’ Report

Johnston Press plc is incorpeorated as a public limited company and is registered in Scotland with the registered number 15382,
Johnston Press plc's registered office is Orchard Brae House, 30 Queensferry Road, Edinburgh, EH4 2HS.

The Directors present the Annual Report and Accounts for the perfod ended 3t December 2016, References to Johnston Press, the
‘CGroup’, and the ‘Company. ‘we’ or ‘our are to Johnston Press plc or to Johnston Press and its subsidiary companies where appropriate.

Pages 68 to 72, inclusive of this Annual Report, comprise the Directors’ Report that has been drawn up and presented in accordance
with relevant company law and the liabilities of the Directors in connection with that report shall be subject to the limitations and
restrictions provided by such law.

Details of significant events since the balance sheet date are contained in Note 32 to the financial statements. An indication of likely
developrments in the business of the Company and details of research and developrnent activities are included in the Strategic Report.

Forward-looking statements

This Annual Report and Accounts contains certain forward-looking staternents with respect to principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group. By their nature, these statements involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend on circumstances
that may or may not occur in the future. There are a number of factors that could cause actual results or developments to differ
matenally from those expressed or implied by those forward-looking statements. No assurances can be given that the forward-looking
statements are reasonable as they can be affected by a wide range of variables. The forward-looking statements reflect the knowledge
and information available at the date of preparation of this Annual Report and Accounts and will not be updated during the year.
Nothing in this Annual Report and Accounts should be construed as a profit forecast.

Dividends

No interim dividend was paid on the Company's ordinary shares and the Directors recommend no final dividend for the period. The
dividend (the "Preference Dividend') payable on the Company's 13.75% preference shares and 13.75% ‘A’ preference shares (together
the ‘Preference Shares') was paid in June 2016, Due to the Company lacking distributable reserves the Preference Dividend was not
paid in December 2016. The Company's Articles of Association provide that if, as at the date of notice convening a general meeting of
the Company. the Preference Dividend is in arrears each holder of Preference Shares shall be entitled to attend and to have one vote
on a show of hands, or one vote on a poll for each £1 nominal value of Preference Share capital held by them,

Share capital and capital structure
Details of the issued share capital, together with details of the movements in the Company's issued share capital are shown in Note 25,
The Company's issued ordinary share capital was 105,877,777 shares at 31 December 2016 and there were no changes during the period.

As part of the refinancing completed on 28 August 2008, the Company issued warrants over 5.0% of its issued share capital to the
Group's lenders at that time, exercisable at any time over the five-year period ended 27 August 2014 (the ‘First Issue Warrants'). As part
of the refinancing completed on 24 April 2012: (i} the exercise period for the First Issue Warrants was extended to 30 September 2017
(the Warrant Expiry Date’). (i) the Company issued further warrants over just under 25% of its issued share capital to the CGroup's lenders
at that time (the ‘Second Issue Warrants') and (iii} the Company undertook that on or before 30 September 2012, and subject to
receiving all necessary shareholder approvals, authorisations and powers, it would issue further warrants over just under an additional
5.0% of its issued share capital as at 23 April 2012 to the Group's lenders at that time (the Third Issue Warrants'). The Third Issue Warrants
were subsequently issued on 25 September 2012, Each of the First Issue Warrants, Second Issue Warrants and Third Issue Warrants
{together the "Warrants') were adjusted in 2014 in accordance with their terms to take account of the capital refinancing plan and share
capital re-organisation which were both undertaken that year and constituted Adjustrment Events under the terms of the relevant
Warrant Instruments. Each Warrant comprises the right to subscribe for 015338 ordinary shares at a price of 19745 pence per ordinary
share at any time prior to the Warrant Expiry Date. During the period no Warrants were exercised. At the balance sheet date 30,359,979
warrants were outstanding which, in aggregate, equates to a right to subscribe for 4,656,598 ordinary shares.

The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. Each share carries the right to one vote at general
mieetings of the Company. Each of the Company's two classes of redeemable cumulative Preference Shares carry 13.75% interest but do
not carry voting rights other than when dividends payable in respect of such shares are in arrears. The percentage of the issued nominal
value of the ordinary shares is 0.91% of the total issued nominal value of all share capital.

There are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding or on the transfer of shares, which are both governed by the general provisions
of the Articles of Association and prevailing legislation. The Directors are not aware of any agreements between holders of the
Company's shares that may result in restrictions on the transfer of securities or on voting rights.

Details of employee share schemes are set out in Note 29,

No person has any special rights of control over the Company's share capital and all issued shares are fully paid. With regards to the
appointment and replacerment of Directars, the Company is governed by its Articles of Association (the ‘Articles’). the United Kingdom
Corporate Governance Code issued by the Financial Reporting Council {the ‘Code’), the Cormnpanies Acts and related legistation. The
Articles thernselves may be amended by special resolution of the shareholders. The powers of Directors are described in the Articles
and in a schedule of matters reserved for approval of the Board, which are summarised in the Corporate Governance Statement on
pages 40 to 46,
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Substantial shareholdings

So far as the Directors are aware the only holders of 3% or more of the ordinary share capital of the Company and any other major

shareholders. other than Directors, (as at the date of this report) are as follows:

Qudinary shares

of 1p each

9% holding number

Crystal Amber Fund Limited 21.369% 22848184
Ananda Krishnan Tatparanandam/Pan Ocean Management Ltd 10.63% 1,254,934
Majedie Asset Management Limited 9.87% 10,447,238
River & Mercantile Asset Management LLP 9.48% 10,041,197
Artemis Investment Management LLP 6.43% 6,810,557
Sir Rayrmond Stanley Tindle 6.00% 6.352.667

All interests disclosed to the Cornpany in accordance with DTR 5 that have occurred since 31 Decernber 2016 can be found at our

corporate website: www johnstonpress.co.uk/finvestors.

Directors and their interests

Under the Company’s Articles of Association, each Director is subject to retirement every three years and to election at the first AGM
after their appointment. In 2016, all the Directors who wished to continue in office offered themselves for re-election at the AGM. All
Directors who wish to continue in office will offer themselves for re-election in 2017. As a consequence, Camilla Rhodes, Ashley Highfield,
David King and Kjell Aamot will offer themselves for re-election, and Mike Butterworth will stand for election at the forthcorning AGM.

The Directors who held office at 31 Decermber 2016 had the following interests in the ordinary share capital of the Company:

9% of share 31 Decembar
Ordinary shares of 1p each capital 2016
lan Russell {resigned 31 December 2016) 0.25% 269.808
Ashley Highfield 0.33% 352,598
David King 0.02% 20,000
Ralph Marshall 0.04% 39,836
Camilia Rhodes 0.02% 22746
Kjell Aamot 0.06% 59.724

Mike Butterworth {(appeointed 1 June 2016) -

Ih addition to the shareholdings shown above, which are all held beneficially, and the share options as showh on page 65, Ashley
Highfield and David King held interests in 552,272 (2015: 596 388) shares at 31 December 2016 by virtue of their status as potential

heneficiaries of the Johnston Press plc Employee Share Trust.

Since 3t December 2016, no Director has purchased shares through the Share Incentive Plan,

No Director had any material interest in any contract, other than a service contract. with the Company or any subsidiary at any time

during the year.

Directors' liability

As permitted by the Cormpanies Act 2006 (the ‘Act’), the Company has insuranice cover for the Directors against liabilities in relation

to the Group.
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Directors’ Report continues

Employee involvement

It is the policy of the Group to encourage and develop all members of staff to realise their maximum potential. Wherever possible,
vacancies are filled from within the Group and adequate opportunities for internal promeotion are created. The Board is committed to

a systernatic training policy and the Company has a comprehensive training and development prograrmme creating the opportunity
for employees to maintain and improve their performance and to develop their potential to a maximum level of attainment. In this way,
staff will make their best possible contribution to the organisation’s success. The Group supports the principle of equal opportunities in
employment and opposes all forms of unlawful or unfair discrimination on the grounds of race, age, nationality, religion, ethnic or
national origin, sexual orientation, gender or gender reassignment, rmarital status or disability. It is also the policy of the Group, where
possible, to give sympathetic consideration to disabled persons in their application for employment with the Group and to protect the
interests of existing members of the staff who are disabled.

Going conceth

A full description of the Group's business activities, financial position, cash flows. liquidity position, committed facilities and borrowing
position, together with the factors likely to affect its future development and performance, is set out in the Strategic Report, particularly
the Financial Review. the Viability Statement and in the notes to the financial statements.

Financing policy and derivatives
The Group's policies are set out in Notes 2. 21 and 31. These also include details of financial instruments and derivatives,

Change of control :

Under the terms of the Senicr Secured Notes due in 2012 issued in May 2014 pursuant to the Notes indenture (the ‘Bonds) in the event
of a change of contral of the Group holders of the bonds will have the right to require the Group to repurchase all or any part of the
bonds issued.

Environmental policy

The Board acknowledges that environmental protection is one of the Group's business responsibilities. It aims for a continuous
improvernent in the Group's erwironmental performance and to comply with all relevant regulations. A documented environmental
policy to monitor performance and to take action where appropriate is in force.

Political contributions
There were no politica! donations made and no contributions made to non-EU political organisations.

Close company status
So far as the Directors are aware the Company is not a close company for taxation purposes.

Electronic voting ' }
The Cornpany has made provision for shareholders to vote electronically on the Resolutions te be considered at the Annual General
Meeting and full instructions are included on the Form of Proxy. issued to shareholders with this Annual Report.

Special business .

It is intended that seven Resolutions (Resolutions 11 to 17) will be proposed as are set out under special business in the notice of this
year's Annual General Meeting. Resolutions 11 to 13 will be proposed as Ordinary Resolutions and the others as Special Resolutions
requiring a majority of not less than 759% of votes cast at the Annual General Meeting. The full text of each Resolution will be set out in
the Notice of Annual General Meeting which will be distributed to shareholders shortly,

Resolution 11 seeks approval to amend the rules of the Johnston Press Sharesave Plan 2007 to extend the final date on which options
may be granted from 26 April 2017 to the date which is the tenth anniversary of the date of the Annual General Meeting in 2017. The
next resclution, Resolution 12, would authorise the Company to make awards of the Johnston Press Performance Share Plan 2006
without performance conditions, in line with the remuneration policy being proposed to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.

The purpose of Resolution 13 is to renew the Directors’ authority to allot shares in the Cornpany. Paragraph {i) of Resolution 13 seeks
authority to allot shares, and to grant rights to subscribe for or convert any security into shares in the Company up to a maximum
nominal amount representing approximately 33339 of the existing issued ordinary share capital of the Company. The second part
of Resolution 13 will also allow Directors to allot, including the ordinary shares referred to in paragraph: {i) of this Resolution, ordinary
shares in connection with a pre-emptive offer by way of a rights issue to ordinary shareholders up to a maximum nominal amount
representing approxirnately 66.67% of the Company's existing ordinary share capital as at the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting. The Directors anticipate using this power in connection with employee share
schemes or on conversion of existing warrants, and the authority, if approved, will expire at the end of the Annual General Meeting
in 2018,
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The fourth resolution. Resolution 14 {which is the first of the four special resolutions), retates to the power given to the Directors to allot
equity securities for cash without the statutory pre-emption provisions of the Companies Act 2006 (the "Act’) applying. In accordance
with best practice guidetines, this authority is limited to allotments representing in total up to 59 of the existing issued ordinary share
capital and to allotments in connection with a rights issue. Your Directors will continue to have due regard to institutional guidelines in
relation to any exercise of this power. in particular the requirement for advance consultation and explanation before making any
non-pre-emptive cash issue pursuant to this authority and in particular they de not intend to allot shares for cash on a non-pre-emptive
basis pursuant to this power in excess of an armount equal to 7.59% of the total issued share capital of the Company in any rolling
three-year period without prior consultation with shareholders in each case other than in connection with an acquisition or specified
capital investment (within the meaning of the Pre-Emption Group 2015 Statement of Principles) for the disapplication of pre-emption
rights which is announced contermporaneously with the allotment {or which has taken place in the preceding six-month period and is
disclosed in the announcement of the allotment). The current power (which is limited to 5% and which accords with normal practice).
expires on the date of this year's Annual General Meeting. The purpose of the resolution is to renew this power for a further year taking
account of current institutiona)l guidelines.

Resolution 15 seeks a further power from shareholders to allot equity securities for cash otherwise than to existing shareholders pro-rata
to their holdings to reflect the Pre-emption Group 2015 Statement of Principles. The power will be limited to the allotment of equity
securities for cash up to an aggregate nominal value equal to 5% of the Company's issued ordinary share capital as at the latest
practicable date prior to the publication of the Notice of Annual General Meeting. This is in addition to the five percent referred to in
Resolution 14. The Directors will have due regard to the Statement of Principles in relation to any exercise of this power and confirm that
they intend to use it only in connection with a transaction which they have determined to be an acquisition or offer capital investment
which is announced contemporaneously with the announcement of the issue, or which has taken place in the preceding six month
period and is disclosed in the announcements of the issue.

Resolution 16 will, if passed, give authority for the Company to make purchases of its own ordinary shares in the market. The Directors
have no immediate intention of using such authority and would do so only if they consider it to be in the best interests of shareholders
generally and that an improvernent in earnings per share would result. This Resolution specifies the maximum number of ordinary
shares which may be purchased (representing approximately 1096 of the Company’s existing issued ordinary share capital} and the
minimum and maximurn prices at which they may be bought.

Resolution 17 is to permit the Company to call general meetings {other than Annual General Meetings) on not less than 14 days’ notice
as permitted by the Act. The Directors believe that having authoerity to do so may, in some circumstances, assist with the efficient
discharge of the Company's business, The Company intends to continue to provide as much notice as practicable of general meetings
and would normally use this authority only where it would be to the advantage of shareholders as a whole.

Auditor

Deloitte LLP, the auditor of the Company. have expressed their willingness to continue in office. Upon the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, resolutions to re-appoint them as the Company auditor and to authorise the Directors to determine their remuneration will
be proposed at the forthcorning AGM,
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Directors’ Report coninued

Listing rule requirement

The following table provides references to where the information required by the listing rule 9.8.4R is disclosed.

A statement of the amount of interest capitalised by the group during the period under review with Not applicable

an indication of the amount and treatment of any related tax refief,

Any information required by LR 9.218 R (Publication of unaudited financial inforrmation). Not applicable

Details of any long-term incentive schemes as required by LR 243 R. Directors’
remuneration report
pages 62 to 66

Details of any arrangements under which a director of the company has waived or agreed to waive any No such waivers

emoluments from the company or any subsidiary undertaking. Where a director has agreed to waive future
emoluments, details of such waiver together with these relating to emoluments which were waived during
the period under review.

Details required in the case of any allotment for cash of equity securities made during the period under review

No such share

otherwise than to the holders of the company's equity shares in proportion to their holdings of such equity allotments
shares and which has not been specifically authecrised by the company's shareholders.

The information required under this paragraph (LR 9.8.4 paragraph 7) must be given for any unlisted major

subsidiary undertaking of the company.

Where a listed company has listed shares in issue and is a subsidiary undertaking of another cornpany, Not applicable

details of the participation by the parent undertaking In any placing made during the period under review,

Details of any contract of significance subsisting during the period under review:

fa) to which the listed company, or one of its subsidiary undertakings. is a party and inwhich a director
of the listed company is or was materially interested:; and .

{b)between the listed company. or one of its subsidiary undertakings. and a controlling shareholder.

Not applicable

Details of contracts for the provision of services to the company or any of its subsidiary undertakings by the
controlling shareholder.

Not applicable

Details of any armngement under which a shareholder has waived or agreed to waive any dividends, where
a shareholder has agreed to waive future dividends, details of such waiver together with those relating to
dividends which are payable during the period under review.

Not applicable

Board staterment in respect of relationship agreement with the controlling shareholder. -

Not applicable

Registered office
Orchard Brae House
30 Queensferry Road
Edinburgh

EH4 2HS

Company registration number
SCOI5382

By order of the Board by:

i

Peter McCall
Company Secretary
29 March 2017
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Directors’ Responsibility Statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financia! statements for each financia! year. Under that law the Directors are required
to prepare the Croup financial statemenits in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Unicn and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and have elected to prepare the Parent Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable
law). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and the Company for that period.

In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:
select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently:

- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and applicable United Kingdorn Accounting Standards have
been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the Group and Parent Company financial staterments
respectively: and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group and Company will
continue in business,

The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s and
the Group's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act 2006
and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation. They are aise responsible for safeguarding the assets of
the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial and corporate governance information included on the
Company’s website fwwwijohnstonpress.couk). Legisiation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissernination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

in accordance with Section 418 of the Companies Act 2006, each Director in office at the date the Directors’ Report is approved,

confirms that

- so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware; and

- hefshe has taken all the steps that hefshe ought to have taken as a Director in order to rmake himselffherself aware of any relevant
audit information and to establish that the Company's auditors are aware of that information.

We confirm that to the best of our knowledge the:

1. financial staterments, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, give a true ang
fair view of the assets, liahilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the
consalidation taken as a whole;

2. strategic report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the position of the Company and the
undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole. together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that
they face: and

3. Annual Report and financial statements, taken as a whole, are fair. balanced and understandable and provide the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance. business model and strategy.

By order of the Board:

Ashley Highfield David King
Chief Executive Qfficer Chief Financial Officer
29 March 2017 29 March 2017
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Financlal Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of Johnston Press plc

Opinion on financial statements
of Johnston Press plc

In our opinion:

. the financial statements give a tnue and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the
parent company's affairs as at 31 December 2016 and of the group’s loss for the 52 week period
then ended;

- the group financial staterents have been properly prepared in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Uniory;

- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with
United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including FRS 102 “The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland™; and

. the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the group financial staterments. Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation.

The financial statements comprise:

- the Group Income Statement;

- the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income:
- the Group Staterment of Financial Position;

- the Group Cash Flow Statement:

- the Group Statement of Changes in Equity:

+ the Company Balance Sheet: and

- the related notes 1 to 41.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the group
financial statements is applicable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European Unien. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the parent company
financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice). including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of freland”,

Summary of our audit approach

Key risks

The key risks that we identified in the current year were:

- impairment of the publishing titles:

- carrying value of the print presses: and

. assumptions used in the calculation of the pension liability.

Within this report, any new risks are identified with and any risks which are the same as the
prior year are identified with . In last year's report we included revenue recognition which is not
included in our report this year as we have not found any findings in that area.

Materiality

The materiality that we used in the current year was £996,000 which was determined on the
basis of adjusted profit before tax. :

Scoping

The group consists of a collection of newspapers and print presses, entirely within the UK. Our
scope includes the trade of all continuing operations and we perform our audit using a single
audit team. This is detailed further below and is consistent with last year.
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Independent Auditor’s Report coninues

to the Members of Johnston Press plc

Going concern and the directors’ assessment of the principal risks that would threaten the solvency
or liquidity of the group

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement regarding
the appropriateness of the going concern basis of accounting contained within note 1
to the financial statements and the directors’ statement on the longer-term viability

of the group contained within the corporate governance statement on page 37.

We are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw attention
te in relation to:
the directors confirmation on page 44 that they have carried out a robust assessment

of the principal risks facing the group, including those that would threaten its business
model. future performance, solvency or liquidity:

- the disclosures on pages 18 and 19 that describe those risks and explain how they are
being managed or mitigated;

- the directors’ statement in note 1 to the financial statements about whether they
considered it appropriate to adopt the geing concern basis of accounting in preparing

themn and their identification of any material uncertainties to the group's ability to
continue to do 50 over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval
of the fimancial staterments: and
- the directors explanation on page 45 as to how they have assessed the prospects of
the group, over what period they have done so and why they consider that period to

be appropriate. and their staterment as to whether they have a reasonable expectation

that the group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall
due over the period of their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing

attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions.

We confirm that we have nothing material
to add ordraw attention toinrespectof
these matters.

We agreed with the directors’ adoption
of the going concern basis of accounting
and we did not identify any such material
uncertainties. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be
predicted, this statement is nota
guarantee as to the group’s ability to
continue as a going concem.

Independence

We are required to comply with the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standards for
Auditors and confirm that we are independent of the group and we have fulﬁlled our

other ethical responsibilities in accordance with those standards.

We confirm that we are independent of
the group and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with
those standards. We also confirm we have
not provided any of the prohibited
non-audit services referred toin

those standards.

Our assessment of risks of material misstatement

The assessed risks of material misstatement described below are those that had the greatest effect on our audit strategy, the allocation

of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

Last year our report included revenue recognition which is not included in our report this year as we have not found any findings in that
area, We continue to consider the presentation of print and digital advertising revenue as a significant risk and hence a fraud risk The
carrying value of the print presses has been included in our report this year as this Is an area which has had a significant impact on our
audit strategy due to the material impairments.
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Impairment of publishing titles

Risk description

The group helds a significant value of publishing titles held as intangible assets which has been
generated through acquisitions of newspapers over the last twenty years. Given the uncertain market
environment for newspaper publishers, there are inherent uncertainties in the modelling of future cash
flows which require management to exercise judgement. Management have undertaken a detailed
process to model their forecast cash flows, Key assurnptions in the impairment model include a
detailed cash flow forecast derived from the 2017 budget and associated 2 year projections, a long termm
decline rate of 096-296 (2015: a growth rate of 196) and a post-tax discount rate of 1196 (2015: 10%).

An impairment of £336.9 million has been recognised in the period which results in the remaining
carrying value of publishing titles being £143.5 million.

Refer to the publishing titles accounting policy in note 2 of the financial staterents. the critical
accounting judgement.in note 3, the detail behind the intangible assets impairment review in note 13
and the Audit Cormmittee report on page 47.

How the scope of ouraudit We evaluated management's impairment calculations and have challenged their calculations by:

responded to the risk

. Considering the sophistication. integrity and appropriateness of the discounted c¢ash flow model used
by management:

- Considering the identification of appropriate cash-generating units;

. Recalculating the discount rates applied to future cash flows, working with our internal valuation

* specialists to assess the appropriateness of the underlying calculations and assumptions;
Reviewing and challenging management’s cash flow assumptions by obtaining evidence to support
the revenue and cost assurnptions and by comparing assumed growth/decline rates and forecast
cash Alows against recent trading activity. historic trends and external industry analysis to assess the
validity of the assumptions made;
Performing sensitivity analysis based on risks within the cash flows and on the inputs applied
{including discount rates and growth rates) to view whether reasonable fluctuations in these
assurmptions should be considered in determining the impairment recognised in the year; and

- Considering the adequacy of the Group’s disclosure in respect of its impairment testing and whether
the disclosures about the sensitivity of the outcome of the impairment assessment to reasonably
possible changes in key assumptions properly reflected the risks inherent in such assumptions,

Key observations

We concur with the leve! of impairment taken by management and note that the assumptions used
in the impairment model, including the discount rate and long term decline rates, were acceptable.
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Independent Auditor’s Report coninued
to the Members of Johnston Press plc

Risk description

The group holds three print presses in Dinnington, Portsmouth and Carn. There has been continued
decline in printed newspaper circulation, and with the disposal of 13 titles in East Anglia and East
Midlands which were printed in-house, management determined that this represented an indicator
of impairment and consequently performed an impairment review.

At the half year an impairment of £5.4 million was recagnised against the Dinnington and Portsmouth
presses. At the year-end, a further impairment of £3.) million was recognised against the Dinnington
press and £3.0 million of the impairment recognised at the half year against the Portsmouth press was
reversed due to new contract wins. The closing carrying value of the three print presses is £19.9 million.

The directors’ assessment of the value-in-use of these presses involves making assumptions about future
revenue and cost, short and long-term growth rates, cash generation, the identification of appropriate
cash-generating units and the applicable discount rate. Given the uncertain market environment for
publishers, there are inherent uncertainties in the modelling of future cash flows which require
management to exercise judgement.

Refer to the critical accounting judgement in note 3, the property. plant and equipment note in note 14
and the Audit Committee Report on page 47.

How the scope of ouraudit  We evaluated management’s impairment calculations and have challenged their calculations by:

responded to the risk

Reviewing management’s rationale behind identifying an impairment trigger:

» Confirming that the impairment model used was consistent with the model used for the publishing
titles, as detailed in the risk above:
Evaluating whether each print press represented its own cash-generating unit;
Reviewing and challenging management's cash flow assumptions by challenging growth
assumptions and cbtaining supporting evidence including new contracts:

.+ Comparing forecast cash flows against recent trading activity, historical trends and external
industry analysis;

+ Assessing the appropriateness of the reversal of the impairment recognised at the half year and
obtaining supporting evidence such as new contracts;
Evaluating whether it is appropriate to use the same discount rate as used in the impairment model
for the publishing titles; and
Reviewing management’s sensitivity analysis, and performing our own sensitivities based on risks
within the cash flows to conclude whether reasonable fluctuations in these assumptions should
increase the impairment.

Key observations

We concur with the level of impairment taken by management and note that the assumptions used in
the print presses impairment model were reasonable. We highlight that management have reversed an
impairment taken at the half-year. and disclosed in the half year report. in Portsmouth for £3.0 million.
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Assumptions used in the calculation of the pension liability

Risk description The net pension deficit on the Consolidated Balance Sheet. and as disclosed in Note 22 of the financial
staternents, has increased in the year from £27.0 million to £67.7 million, and the gross liability has
increased from £500.4 million to £615.6 million,

There is significant judgement involved in the valuation of the retirement benefit obligations, particularly
in relation to determining the assumptions underlying the valuation of liabilities of the scheme.
including mortality rates, the discount rate and inflation rates, Managerment include pension
assumptions as a key source of estimation uncertainty in note 3 of the accounts.

In the 52 week period ended 2 January 2016 (the prior year} the Company performed a health study
to assess the current health of existing Plan members which was used to amend the mortality
assumption. At our request, management have updated the results of this study to reflect recent
information. in particular actual mortality experience.

Refer to the valuation of pension liabilities critical accounting policy in note 3, the disclosures around
the retirerent benefit obligation in note 22 and the Audit Committee Report on page 47.

How the scope of our audit We evaluated the appropriateness of the principal actuarial assurnptions used in the calculation of the
responded to the risk Croup's pension commitments prepared by the Group’s actuary by using our internal actuarial experts.
Qur audit procedures included:
- Benchmarking the assumptions for discount rates, mortality rates and inflation rates against a
relevant comparator group:
- Assessing past mortality experience against the Group’s updated mortality assumption:
- Performed procedures on the completeness and accuracy of the underlying mermbership data; and
- Assessing the methodology used to determine the gross liability.

Key observations The assumptions are deemed to be within an acceptable range.

These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon.
anq we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report coninue
to the Members of Johnston Press plc

Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financia! statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the scope
of our audit work and in evaluating the resuits of our work.

Based on our professional judgement. we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group materiality £996,000 {2015: £1350,000).

Basis for determining materiality 4396 (2015: 5.096) of adjusted profit before tax.

Rationale for the benchmark Pre-tax profit has been adjusted (as shown on page 133) as this is a key measure used by
applied investors and is the measure which is focused on in the front half of the Annual Report as this
is how management monitor the business.

Qur audit work was executed at levels of materiality applicable to each individual entity which were lower than Group materiality
and ranged between £0.02 million and £0.90 million (2015: £0.05 and £1.30 miilion).

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Commnittee all audit differences in excess of £50.000 (2015: £50.000),

as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds. We also report to the Audit
Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation of the financial statements.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Our group audit incorporated the main trading business, Johnston Publishing Ltd, the company which owns the i’ newspaper,
Johnston Publications Ltd, certain head office companies as well as the ultimate parent company. These companies represent the
principal business units and account for all (FY15: 1009} of the group’s net assets. all (FY15; 999} of the group’s revenue and all
{FY14: 9896) of the group's profit before tax.

All of our audit work was performed by cne team, with no use of component auditors, and was led by the Senior Statutory Auditor.

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our apinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies
Act 2006
the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have
not identified any material misstaternents in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records We have nothing to report in
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion: respect of these matters.
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit: or
- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
the parent cornpany financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting
records and returns.

Directors' remuneration We have nothing to report arising
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report ifin our opinion certain disclosures  from these matters.

of directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’' Remuneration Report

to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.

Corporate Governance Statement We have nothing to report arising
Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review part of the Corporate Governance from our review.

Staternent relating to the company's compliance with certain provisions of the UK Corporate

Governance Code.

Our duty to read other information in the Annual Report We confirm that we have not
Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and lreland), we are required to report to identified any such inconsistencies
you if, in our opinion, information in the annual report is: or misleading statements.

materially inconsistent with the information in the audited financial statements; or
apparently materiafly incorrect based on, or materiafly inconsistent with, our knowledge
of the group acquired in the course of performing our audit: or

- otherwise misleading.

In particular, we are required to consider whether we have identified any inconsistencies
between our knowledge acquired during the audit and the directors’ statement that they
consider the annual report is fair, balanced and understandable and whether the annual report
appropriately discloses those matters that we communicated to the audit committee which we
consider should have been disclosed,

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditor

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial
staternents and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view. Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the
financial statements in accordance with applicable law and International Standards on Auditing {UK and Ireland). We also comply with
Internaticnal Standard on Quality Control 1 lUK and lreland). Qur audit methodology and tools aim to ensure that our quality control
procedures are effective, understood and applied. Our quality controls and systermns include our dedicated professional standards review
team and independent partner reviews.

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006,
QOur audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to state to
thern in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law. we do hot accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body. for our audit work, for this report. or for the opinions we
have formed.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstaternent, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the group’s and the parent company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed: the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and the
overall presentation of the financial statements. In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the annual report
to identify material inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially
incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit If we becorne
aware of any apparent material misstaternents or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

David BellCA

(Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

London, UK
29 March 2017
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Group Income Statement
For the 52-week period ended 31 December 2016

S2wocksonded 52 weeks ended
31 Decembor 2 January
2016 2016
Notes £000 £000
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 222,699 242083
Cost of sales . (143,054) (139,939)
Cross profit . 79,645 102,144
Operating expenses ’ "~ {58,385) (66593)
Impairment and write downs (344 .326) (35.234)
Total operating expenses {402,/M) (103.803})
Operating {loss)/profit 4.5 (323,066) 7
Financing )
Investment income ’ 7 3 854
Net finance expense on pension liabilities/assets Ba_ (831) (2,933)
Change in fair value of borrowings 8b 43,619 23918
Finance costs ] ) Bc {20,056) (18.973)
Total net finance income ) . 22805 1.866
{Loss)/profit before tax . ", {z00261) . 2183
Tax 9 . 5337 . 8538
{Loss)/profit from continuing operations " (246,890) 10,721
Net profit from discontinued operations v 28 710
Consolidated (loss)/profit for the period - . -{246,862) 1431
The accornpanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
S2weoksended 52 weeks ended
*  FDecomber 2 January
Notes . . - 2006 2016
From continuing and discontinuing operations -
{Loss)/earnings per share (p) . ) o ' :
{Loss)fearnings (Em) 12, . ' {247.0) nz
Weighted average nurmber of shares {m} 12 1053 1053
Basic 12 {234.5) 10.7
Diluted i . ] .z (2345) 107
From continuing operations
{Loss)/eamings per share [p)
(Loss)earnings (Em) 12 (247.0) 10.6
Weighted average number of shares (m) 12 1053 1053
Basic 12 (234.6) 100
Diluted 12 (234.6) 10.0
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Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the 52-week period ended 31 December 2016

Revaluation Translation Rotained
reserve reserve camings Totad
£000 £000 £000 £000
Loss for the period - - (246.862) {246,862)
Other items of comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Actuarial loss on defined benefit pension schemes - - (45,799) (45,799)
Deferred tax on pension balances - - 6337 6337
Current tax on pension contribution relating to actuarial valuation loss - - 1,073 1.073
Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit orloss - - (38.389) (38.839)
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Revaluation adjustment 3) - - )
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - (62) - {62)
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to prefit or loss @) (62) - {65)
Tatal other comprehensive lass for the period 3) (62) (38,389) (38.454)
Total comprehensive loss for the period ' @) (62) (285,251) {285,316)
For the 52-week period ended 2 January 2016
Revaluation Translation Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

Profit for the period : - - N43 N.431
Other items of comprehensive income
items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss i .
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension schemes - - 57648 57648
Deferred tax on pension balances : ) - : - (10.956) 10956}
Total items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - Co- " 46,592 46,692
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Revaluation adjustment : (2) - - 2)
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations - (245) - {245)
Total items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or foss (2} {245} - (247]
Total other comprehensive {loss)/gain for the period 2) (245) 46,692 46,445
Total comprehensive (loss)/gain for the period (2) {245) 58123 57876
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Group Statement of Changes in Equity

For the 52-week period ended 31 December 2016

Sharg-
Sharo Share  payments Revaluation Own  Translation Rotained
capltal premiurm reserve reserve shares resorve camings Tota)
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balances N6t RN2702 6.963 1730 {3,582) 9320 084280) 259,015
{Loss) for the period - - - - - - (246,862) (246.862)
Other comprehensive (loss) for the period - - - 3) - (62) (38389) (38,454)
Total comprehensive {loss) for the period - - - 3) - {62) {285,251) (285316)
Recognised directly in equity:
Preference share dividends (Note 11} - - - - - - (152) 52)
Share-based payments charge (Note 29) - - 1.832 - - - - 1,832
Deferred bonus plan exercised! - - (64) - 251 - as7 - -
Release of SBP reserve for expired
share schemes - - (531) - - - 53 -
Net changes directly in equity - - 1237 - 25 - 92 1,680
Total movements - - 1,237 3) 25 (62) (285,059) {283,642)
Equity/{deficit) at the end of the period ne71 32,702 8,200 1,728 (3.331) 9,258 (469.349) {(24,621)
1 Includes release of own shares to retained eamings on exercise of options in the current financial period.
For the 52-Week Period Ended 2 January 2016
Sharg
based
Share Share payrments  Revaluation Own  Translation Retained
capital premium reserve reserve shares reserve earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balances N6171  587.702 13780 1733 15.2086) 9565 [523764) 19998]
Profit for the period - - - .- - - .43 1.431
Other comprehensive lloss)/profit for
the period - - - (2) - (245) 58123 57876
Recognised directly in equity:
Preference share dividends {(Note 11} - - - - - - 152} 052)
Share-based payments charge (Mote 29) - - 2188 - - - - 288
Share capital reduction (Note 26)! - {275.000) - - - - 275000 -
Perforrmance share plan exercised - - 321 - 32 - - -
Company share option plan exercised - - - - 17 - - 17
Deferred bonus plan exercised - - 18) - 18 - - -
Purchase of own shares - - - - {895) - - (895}
Release of SBP reserve for expired
share schermes? - - {(8.666) - - - 8665 -
Release of own shares? - - - - 2163 - {2.183) -
Net changes directly in equity - (275.000) (6817) - 1624 - 281351 1158
Total movements -~ [275000) 8817) {2 1624 {245) 339474 59,034
Equity/{deficit) at the end of the period ne17 312,702 6,963 1731 (3.582) 9320 (184290) 259,015

' puring 2005 the Group reduced its share premium by £275 million increasing distributable reserves: see Note 26 for full details
1 Onlapse of schemes balarices held are released to distributable reserves.
*  Includes release of own shares to retained earnings on exercise of options in the current and prior financial periods.

The accormnpanying notes are an integral parnt of these financial statements.
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Group Statement of Financial Position

At 31 December 2016

3 December 2 January
2018 2016
Notes £000 £000
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 13 152,050 479,047
Property. plant and equipment 14 36,684 5273
Available for sale investments 15 970 970
Trade and other receivables 20 1 2
189,705 532,732
Current assets
Assets classified as held for sale 18 16,384 82
Inventories 18 2262 2383
Trade and other receivables 20 30,757 31628
Current tax asset - 247
Cash and cash equivalents 16,058 40564
65,461 74,904
Total assets 255,166 607,636
Curvent liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 37245 42,043
Current tax liabilities 25 -
Retirement benefit obligation 22 10316 10,016
Short-term provisions 24 3,026 1.835
50,612 53894
Non-current (iabilities
Borrowings 21 143,000 186,619
Retirement benefit obligation 22 57,409 16,946
Deferred tax liabilities Pl 23,739 84196
Trade and other payables 20 3.477 3325
Long-term provisions 24 1,550 3641
228375 294727
Total liabilities 279,787 348621
Net (liabilities)/assets (24,621) 259015
Equity
Share capital 25 nsn 1617
Share prermium account 26 2,702 312702
Share-based payments reserve 8199 6.963
Revaluation reserve 1,728 1,731
Own shares 3331) (3582}
Translation reserve 9,259 9320
Retained earnings {469,349) (184,290}
Total shareholders (deficit)/equity (24.621) 259,015

The financial statements of Johnston Press ple, registered in Scotland (nurmber 15382), were approved by the Board of Directors and

authorised for issue on 29 March 2017.

They were signed on its behalf by:

N ) P @A

Ashley Highfield David King
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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Group Cash Flow Statement
For the 52-week period ended 31 December 2016

52 wooks to 52 weeks to
1 Decotnber 2 January
2016 2016
Notes £000 £000
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash generated from operations bl 16,268 41087
Cash consumed by discontinued operations (395) {70)
Income tax received/(paid} 600 (816}
Net cash inflow from operating activities 16,473 40201
Investing activities |
Interest received 73 148
Dividends received - 706
Proceeds on disposal of intangible assets a0 -
Proceeds on disposal of subsidiary 4,250 -
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment e 200
Proceeds on disposal of assets held for sale 1526 2139
Proceeds on disposal of investments in associates - 10
Expenditure on digital intangible assets . - ’ 3 {2.690) 1.772)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment L 14 (3.432) (6.076)
Acquisition of publishing titles ' {22,000} -
Expenditure incurred on disposal of discontinued operations : {73) {46)
Net cash used in investing activities (21,540) {4,691}
Financing activities
Purchase of own shares - - {895}
Dividends paid n (76) (304)
Interest paid {19.363) (19.658)
Repayment of bond - (4.900)
Financing fees - (25}
Proceeds from employee share scheme exercise - 19
Net cash used in financing activities (19,439) (25.763)
Net (decrease)fincrease in cash and cash equivalents {24,506) 9747
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period - 40564 0817
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 16,058 40564

The accompanying notes are an integral parnt of these financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

1. Basis of preparation

Jehnston Press ple (Johnston Press’ or ‘the Group') is a public limited liability company incorporated in Scotland under the Companies
Act 2006 and listed on the London Stock Exchange. The registered office is Orchard Brae House, 30 Queensferry Road, Edinburgh,
EH4 2HS. The principal activities of the Group are described in the Operational Review and Financial Review sections of the

Strategic Report.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationaf Financial Reporting Standards {iIFRS) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board as adopted by the European Union and with those parts of the Companies Act 2006
applicable to companies preparing their accounts under IFRS.

These financial statements have been prepared for the 52-week period ended 31 December 2016 (2015: 52-week period ended
2 January 2016).

The significant accounting policies used in preparing this information are set out in Note 2.
The financial statements have also been adjusted. where appropriate, by new or amended IFRS's described below.

These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis (discussed further in the Financial Review on page 24} and
under the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain properties and financial instruments, share-based payments and
defined benefit pension obligations that are measured at revalued amounts or fair value at the end of each reporting period.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

Adoption of new or amended standards and interpretations in the current year

The following new and amended IFRS's have been adopted for the 52-week period which commenced 3 January 2016 and ended
31 December 2016,

Accounting standard Requirernents Impact on financial statements.
Annual improvements to IFRSs  Minor amendments to IFRS 5 - Non-current assets held for sale Minor revisions taken
2012-2004 cycle and discontinued operations and IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments:  into consideration when
Disclosures and 1AS 19 - Employee Benefits and IAS 34 Interim applying standards.
Financial Reporting.
Amendments to IFRS 10 Clarifies the requirerments when accounting for MNone - no structural complexity
‘Consolidated financial investment entities. giving rise to consideration of
statermnents’ IFRS 12 "Disclosure these technical changes.

of interests in other entities’ and
1AS28 Investments in associates’
on Investment entities: Applying
the consoilidation exemption

Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Adds new guidance on how to account for the acquisition Nonre - not applicable.
arrangements’ on accounting of an interest in a joint operation that is a business.

for acquisition of interests in

joint operations

Amendments to [AS 16 Prohibits revenue-based depreciation methods and generaliy None - refer Note 13 - intangible
‘Property, plant and equipment’  presumes that such methods are an inappropriate basis for Assets and Note 14 - Property.
and |AS 38 Intangible assets’ on  amortising intangible assets. Plant and Equipment.

clarification of acceptable
methocls of depreciation and

amortisation

Amendments to IAS 27 Allows entities to use the equity method to account for None - not applicable.
‘Separate financial statements’ investrnent in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates

on equity method in separate in their separate financial statements.

financial staterments

Amendmentsto IAS 1 Encourages companies to apply professional judgement Minor - requirements on
‘Presentation of financial in determining what information to disclose in their rmateriality, order of notes,
statements’ - Disclosure financial statements. disaggregation, subtotals and
Initiative accounting policies considered

in relation to the financial
information overall.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coninues

For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

2, Significant Accounting Policies continued
New and amended standards applicable for annual periods beginning in 2017 and beyond
The following new standards, which are applicable to the Group, have been published but are not yet effective and have not yet been

adopted by the EU:
Accounting standard

Requirements

Mandatery application date

Amendments to [AS 12 -
‘Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Leases

Clarifies how to account for defarred tax assets related to debt
instruments measured at fair value.

Applicable to annual periods
beginning on or after
1January 2017,

Amendments to IAS 7 -
Disclosure Initiative

Requires companies to disclose information about changes in
their financing liabilities,

1 January 2017. No material
impact on the Group’s net
results or net assets.

Annual improvements to IFRS
Standards 2014 - 2016 Cycle

Minor amendments to a number of standards.

1January 2017 and 1 January
2018. No material impact on the
Group’s net results or net assets.

IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

Sets out the principles of the recognition. de-recognition,
classification and measurement of financia! assets and financial
liabilities together with requirements relating to the impairment
of financial assets and hedge accounting.

1 January 2018. No material
impact on the Group's net
results or net assets.

IFRS 15 - Revenue from
Contracts with Customers
and Clarifications to IFRS 15

Establishes when revenue should be recognised, how it should
be measured and what disclosures about contracts with
customers are needed.

The Ciarifications relate to the application and provide transitional
relief regarding first time adoption of the standard.

1January 2018. We are currently
going through an exercise to
evaluate the impact of this
standard on our business. Whilst
it is too early to conclude what
the impact would be, our initial
view is that IFRS 15 will not have
a material impact on our
revenues. We will be in a better
position to report what the
expected impact will be in next
year's annual repart once our
impact assessment has

been finalised,

Amendmentsto IFRS 2 -
Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Clarifies how to account for certain types of share-based
payment transactions.

1 January 2018. No material
impact on the Group's net
results or net assets.

Amendments to IAS 40 -
Transfers of Investment Property

Clarifies the requirerments on transfers to, or from,
investrnent property.

1January 2018. No material
impact on the Group's net
results or net assets.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 - Foreign
Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Addresses the exchange rate to use in transactions that involve
advance consideration paid or received in a foreign currency.

1January 2018; minimal impact
anticipated.

IRFS 16 - L.eases

Establishes principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases for both lessees and lessors.

1 January 2019, IFRS 16 will
require the Group to recognise

a lease liability and a right-of-use
asset for most of those leases
previously treated as operating
leases. We are currently going
through an exercise to evaluate
the impact of this standard on
our business, Whilst it is too early
to conclude what the impact
would be, IFRS 16 may have a
material impact given leases
around the group. We will be in
a better position to report what
the expected impact will be in
next year's annual report once
our impact assessment has
been finalised.
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Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company
(its subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. Control is achieved when the Company:

has the power over the investee:

is exposed. or has rights, to variable return from its involvernent with the investee: and

has the ability to use its power to affects its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circurnstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elernents of control listed above.

When the Company has less than a majority of the voting rights of an investee, it considers that it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Company
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not the Company’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to
glve it power, including:

the size of the Company's holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote holders:

potential voting rights held by the Company. other vote holders or other parties;

rights arising frorm other contractual arrangements: and

any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that the Company has. or does not have, the current ability to direct the relevant

activities at the time that decisions need to be made, including voting patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company losses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, the results of subsidiaries acquired or dispesed of during the year are included in the consolidated
income statement from the date the Company gains control unti! the date when the Company ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial staternents of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with
the Group's accounting policies.

All intra-Group assets and liabilities. equity. income. expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the members of the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. Those interests of non-controlling
shareholders that are present ownership interests entitling their holders to a proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may
initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proporticnate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. The cheoice of measurerent is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Other nen-controlling interests are initially
measured at fair value. Subsequent te acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests

at initial recognition plus the non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Changes in the Group's interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions. The
earrying amount of the Group's interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the armount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the Cormnpany.

When the Group disposes of a subsidiary, the gain or loss on disposal recognised in profit or loss is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), less liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary {i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable IFRSs).

The fair value of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition for subsequent accounting under IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when applicable, the costs
on initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continues
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

2. Significant Accounting Policies continued

Basis of preparation

The financial information has been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain properties, pension .
balances and financial instrurments including berrowings. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for the assets.

The Directors are satisfied that the Group has sufficient resources to continue in operation for the foreseeable future, a period of not
less than 12 months from the date of this Report Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
{discussed further in the Financial Review) and under the historical cost basis except for the revaluation of certain properties and
financial instruments, share-based payments and defined benefit pension obligations that are measured at revalued amounts or

fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Business combinations

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the acquisition method. The cost of the acquisition is measured at the aggregate
of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group
in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in the Income Statement as incurred.

The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for recognition under IFRS 3, including
publnshlng titles, are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date. except for:
deferred tax assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with 1AS 12
Income Taxes and |AS 19 Employee Benefits respectively: and
non-current assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 "Non-Current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations, are recognised and measured at fair value less costs to sell.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence and is neither a subsidiary nor an interest
in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is
not contro! or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these Group financial statements using the equity method
of accounting.

Investments in associates are carried in the Group Statement of Financial Position at cost as adjusted by post-acquisition changes
in the Group's share of the net assets of the associate. less any impairment in the value of individual investrments.

Non-current assets held for sale
Non-current assets {and disposal groups) classified as held for sale are measured at net realisable value,

Assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying armount will be recovered through a sale transaction rather than
through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition. Managernent must be committed to the sale which should be expected to qualify
for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification,

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that subsidiary are
classified as held for sale when the criteria described above are met regardless of whether the Group will retain a non-controlling
interest in its former subsidiary after the sale.

Publishing titles

The Group's principal intangible assets are publishing titles. The Group does not capitalise internally generated publishing titles. Titles
separately acquired after t January 1989 are stated at cost and titles owned by subsidiaries acquired after 1 January 1996 are recorded at
fair value at the date of acquisition. These publishing titles have no finite life and consequently are not amortised. The carrying value of
the titles is reviewed for impairment at least annually with testing undertaken to determine any diminution in the recoverable amount
below carrying value. The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use is based on the net

present value of estimated future cash flows. Any impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately. A reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised immediately in the Group Income Statement given these assets are not carried at revalued armounts.

For the purpose of impairment testing. publishing titles are allocated to each of the Group's cash generating units, and are included
within the Group’s publishing segment (Note 4). Cash generating units are tested for impairment annually or more frequently when
there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the unit. the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of the value of publishing titles and then to
the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.
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Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets in respect of digital activities are ameortised using the straight-line method over the expected life. of two to
five years and are tested for impairment at each reporting date or more frequently where there is an indication that the recoverable
amount is less than the carrying amount.

Costs incurred in the development of websites are only capitalised if the criteria specified in IAS 38 are met.

Valuation of share-based payments

The Group estimates the expected value of equity-settled share-based payments and this is charged through the Income Statement
over the vesting periods of the relevant awards, The cost is estimated using a Black-Scholes valuation model. The Black-Scholes
calculations are based on a number of assumptions that are set out in Note 29 and are amended to take account of estimated levels
of share vesting and exercise.

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods and
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, VAT and other sales related taxes.

Print advertising revenue is recognised on publication and circulation revenue is recognised at the point of sale. Digital revenues are
recognised on publication for advertising or delivery of service for other digital revenues. Printing revenue is recognised when the service
is provided.

Foreign cusrencies

The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in
which it operates (jits functional currency), For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position
of each Group company are expressed in pounds sterling. which is the functional currency of the Company and the presentation
currency for the consolidated financial statements,

In preparing the financial staternents of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency
(Foreign currencies) are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each period end. monetary
assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the close of business on the
last working day of the period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical costin a
foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items. and on the retranslation of monetary iterns, are included in profit or
loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or
loss for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at historical cost in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised directly in equity.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements. the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated at exchange rates prevailing on the period end date. Incorme and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates
for the period, Exchange differences arising, if any, are classified as equity and transferred to the Group's translation reserve, Such
transiation differences are recognised as incorne or as expenses in the period in which the operation is disposed of.

Fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment balances are shown at cost. net of depreciation and any provision for impairment In certain cases the
armounts of previous revaluations of properties conducted in 1996 or 1997 or the fair value of the property at the date of the acquisition
by the Group have been treated as the deemed cost on transition to IFRS. Depreciation is provided on all property. plant and
equipment, excluding land, at varying rates calculated to write-off cost over the usefu! lives. The principal rates employed are:

Freehold land Nil

Freehold property 25% reducing balance

Leasehold property Term of lease

Computer and IT equipment 2096, 33% straight-line

Printing presses 4% straight-line

Other production equipment 6.679. 20% straight-line

Furniture and fittings 159 reducing balance, 209 straight-line
Motor vehicles 25% straight-line
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

2. Significant Accounting Policies continued

Assets classified as held for sale

Where a property or a significant item of equipment (such as a print press or property no longer required as part of Group operations}

is marketed for sale, management is highly committed to the sale and the asset is available for immediate sale, the Croup classifies
that asset as held for sale. All assets in this category are expected to be sold within 12 months, as per the criteria of IFRS 5, and have
therefore been classified as current assets. The value of the asset is held at the lower of the net book value or the expected net realisable
sale value.

The Directors have estimated the sale values based on the current price that the asset is being marketed at and advice from
independent property agents. The actual sale proceeds may differ from the estimate.

Provisions for onerous leases and dilapidations

Where the Group exits a rented property, an estimate of the anticipated total future cost payable under the terms of the operating
lease. including rentals, rates and other related expenses. is charged to the Income Statement at the point where the unavoidable
costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under it. Where there is a
break clause in the contract, rentals are provided for up to that point. In addition. an estimate is made of the likelinood of sub-letting
the premises and any rentals that would be receivable from a sub-tenant. Where receipt of sub-lease rentals is considered reasonable.
these amounts are deducted from the rentals payable by the Group under the fease and provision charged for the net amount.

Under the terms of a number of property leases, the Group is reguired to retum the property tc its original condition at the lease expiry
date. The Group has estimated the expected costs of these dilapidations and charged these costs to the Income Statement. No
discounting has been applied to the provision as the effect of the discounting is not considered material.

Inventories

Inventories. largely paper. plates and ink. are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, Cost incurred in bringing materials to
their present location and condition comprises: (a) raw materials and goods for resale at purchase cost on a first-in first-out basis: and (b)
work in progress at cost of direct materials, labour and certain overheads. Net realisable value comprises selling price less any further
costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are those cash balances held by the Group and short-term bank depaosits with an original maturity of three
months or less. ’ ‘

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's Statement of Financial Position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets
Investments are recognised and derecognised on the trade date in accordance with the terms of the purchase or sale contract and are
initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs.

Available for sale financial assets

Listed and unlisted investrments are shown as available for sale and are stated at fair value. Fair value of listed investments is determined
with reference to quoted market prices. Fair value of unlisted investments is determined by reference to the latest set of audited results.
Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve. with the exception of impairment losses, interest calculated using the effective interest method and foreign
exchange gains and losses on monetary assets. which are recognised directly in profit or loss. Where the investment is disposed of

or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in réserves in reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividends on available for sale equity investrents are recegnised in the Income Statement when the Group's right to receive the
payment is established.

Available for sale equity investrnents that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unguoted equity investments are measured at cost
less any identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting period.

Trade receivables
Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value, and reduced by appropriate allowance for estimated
irrecoverable amounts.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each pericd end date. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the investment have been impacted. The carrying amount of the financia! asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for
all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance for
estimated irrecoverable amounts. Changes in the carrying value of this allowance are recognised in the Income Statement.
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Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest In the assets of an entity after deducting all of its liabilities,
Equity instrumenits issued by the Group are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Borrowings

The borrowings of £220 million 8.5259% senior secured notes due 2019 agreed as part of the June 2014 refinancing are recorded at
quoted market fair value and classified as Level 1 according to IFRS 13. As the borrowings are shown at fair value the associated issue
costs have been charged to the Income Statement {refer to Note 8c).

Trade payables
Trade payables are not interest-bearing and are stated at their nominal value.

Leases

Rentals payable under operating |eases are charged to the Group Income Statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis over the termn of the lease.

Where the Group is a lessor, rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating (loss)/profit
Cperating (loss)/profit is stated after charging restructuring, impairment. depreciation, amortisation and staff costs but before
irvestment income, other finance income. finance costs and the results of discontinued operations.

Adjusted profit
The Group presents adjusted results to enable senior management to review the underlying perforrnance of the Group.

Adjusted profit is stated after restating results for the impact of closed titles, discontinued operations, disposal of titles. In addition to the
afore-méntioned the Group has also re-presented its results to exclude costs associated with business transformation, restructuting,
impairment of printing presses and publishing tittes, share based payment charges. accelerated write-downs of certain items of PPE,
acquisition-related, RCF reset, refinancing and pension-related costs. Refer to Non-CAAP measures on page 133 for more detail.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation. Provisions are measured at the Directors best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period, Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported in the Incorme
Staternent because it excludes itéms of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the period end date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the financial statements and the corresponding tax-based values used in the computation of taxabte profit, and is accounted for using
the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generlly recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred
tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is reatised.
Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement. except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period. to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the relevant requirements of |1AS 12 are satisfied.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continues
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

2. Significant Accounting Policies continued
Retirement benefit costs
The Group provides pensions to employees through various schemes.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged to the Income Statement as an expense as they fall due.

For defined benefit retirement benefit schermes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Credit Method.
with actuarial valuations being carried out at each period end date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in the period in
which they occur, They are recognised outside the Income Statement and presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Past
service cost is recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested and ctherwise is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the average period until the benefits becorne vested. Net-interest is calculated by applying a dlscount rate to the net deﬁned
benefit liability or asset and is recognised within finance costs.

The retirernent benefit obligation recognised in the Statement of Financial Position represents the present value of the defined benefit
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost. and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets. Any asset resulting from
this calculation is limited to past service cost. plus the present value of available refunds and reductions in future contributions to

the scheme.

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. management has made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements (apart from those involving estimations, which are dealt
with below).

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Valuation of pension liabilities

The Group records in its Statement of Financial Position a liability equivalent to the deficit on the Group's defined benefit pension

schemes. The pension liability is determined with advice from the Group’s actuarial advisers each year and can fluctuate based on

a number of factors, some of which are outside the control of management, The main factors that can impact the valuation include:

. the discount rate used to discount future liabilities back to the present date. determined each year from the yield on corporate bonds;
the actual returns on investments experienced as compared to the expected rates used in the previousvaluation;
the actual rates of salary and pension increase as compared to the expected rates used in the previous valuation;

- the forecast inflation rate experienced as compared to the expected rates used in the previous valuation; and

- mortality assumptions based on standard base table adjusted to reflect specific conclusions and condntuons basedona study of the
actual scheme members.

Details of the assumptions used to determine the liability at 31 Decemnber 2016 are set out in Note 22.

Impairment of publishing titles, print presses and other intangible assets

Determining whether publishing titles are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash generating units [CGUs} to
which these assets are allocated. Key areas of judgement in the value in use calculation include the identification of appropriate CGUs,
estimation of future cash Aows expected to arise from each CCU, the long-term growth rates and a suitable discount rate to apply to
cash flows in order to calculate present value. The Group has identified its CGUs based on the seven geographic regions in which it
operates. This is considered to be the lowest level at which cash inflows generated are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other groups of assets and has been consistently applied in the current and prior periods,

Determining whether print presses are impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of each print site. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the print sites and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate present value (Note 13),

Details of the impairment reviews that the Group performs in relation to other intangible assets are provided in Note 13,

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the period end date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed on page 95.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the period end date that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
discussed below:
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Impairment of publishing titles

The group is required to test, on an annual basis. whether intangible assets have suffered any impairment based on the recoverable
amount of its cash generating units. The recoverable amount is deterrmined based on value in use calculations. The use of this method
requires the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of a pre-tax discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
the cash flows, More information is included in the Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies section above and
within Note 13

Pensions

The liabilities of the defined benefit pension schemes operated by the group are determined using methods relying on actuarial
estimates and assumptions, including rates in increase in pensionable salaries and pensions, expected returns on scheme asserts, life
expectancies and discount rates. Detalls of the key assumptions are set out included in the Critical judgements in applying the Group's
accounting policies section above and within Note 22. The Group takes advice from independent actuaries relating to the
appropriateness of the assumptions. Changes in assumptions used may have a significant effect on the group statement of
comprehensive income and the group balance sheet,

4. Operating segments

Information reported to the Chief Executive Officer for the purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment performance is
focused on the two areas of Publishing (in print and online} and contract printing. Geographical segments are not presented as the
Group operates solely in the United Kingdom.

tUnless otherwise indicated the segment information reported on the following pagés does not include any amounts for discontinued
operations which are described in more detail in Note 10. ’

a) Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by reportable segment:

52 wook poriod ended X1 D ber 2016 52 week period endled 2 January 2016
Contract Contract
Publishing printing  Eliminations Croup  Publishing printing Eliminations Croup
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Revenue - -
Print advertising 95,674 - - 95,674 n7s598 - - 7598
Digital advertising 26,950 - - 26,950 3423 - - 3423
Newspaper sales 79,849 - - 79,849 71,964 - - 7964
Contract printing - 12,788 - 12,788 - 12,625 - 12.625
Other ’ 6,408 1,030 - 7438 7366 1107 - 8473
Total external sales 20888 13,818 - ' 222699 228351 13732 - 242083
Inter-segment sales’ - 23597 (23,597) - - 30182 30182} -
Total revenue 208,88 37,415 (23.597) 222,699 228351 43,94 30182) 242083
Operating costs? {545,765) - - (545765) (24).766) - - (241766)
Operating (loss)/profit .
Segment result (336,884) 37,415 (23,597) (323,066) 13.415) 43914 (0.182) N7
Investment income 3 854
Net finance expense on pension
assetsfliabilities 821) [2933)
Net 1AS 21/39 adjustments? 43,619 23918
Net finance costs {20.056) 2.973)
{Loss)/profit before tax (300,261) 2183
Taxation credit 5337 8538
(Loss)/profit after tax for the period -
continuing operations (246,830) 10,721
Profit after tax for the period -
discontinued operations 28 ) 7o
Consolidated (ioss)/profit after tax for
the period {246.862) ' N431

' Inter-segment sales are charged at market rates.
*  Relates to changes in fair value of borrowings,
Y Includes depreciation, amwartisation and impaiment.

The accounting pelicies of the reporntable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 2. The segment
result represents the {loss)/profit earned by each segment without allocation of the share of results of associates. investment income,
finance costs (including in relation to pension assets and liabilities) and income tax expense. This is the measure reported to the Group's
Chief Executive Cfficer for the purpose of resource aflocation and assessment of segment performance,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coninces
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

4. Operating segments continued
b) Segment assets

31 Docomber 2 January
2016 2016
£000 000

Assets
Publishing 229315 574975
Contract printing 25,851 32,661
Total segment and consolidated assets 255166 607,636

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the Group's Chief Executive Officer
monitors the tangible, intangible and financial assets attributable to each segment All assets are allocated to reportable segrments,

c) Other segment information

52 weoks to 3 Decombet 2016 52 weeks to 2 January 2016
Contract Contract
printing Group Publishing printing Croup
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
.Additions t¢ property. plant and equipment 764 5326 5.837 247 6,084
Depreciation and amortisation expense (continuing) 1,394 7415 6403 1.865 8368
Impairment of property. plant and equipment 53N 7.476 - - -
Impairment of publishing title intangibles - 136,850 35234 - 35.234
No single customer contributed 109 or more to the Group's revenue in either of 2016 and 2015.
5. {Loss)/Profit for the year
52 weeks to 52 weeks to
3N Decombar 2 January
2016 2016
Notes £000 £000
Operating (loss)/profit is shown after charging/{crediting}:
Depreciation of property. plant and equipment 1% 6,104 6.553
Ammortisation of intangible fixed assets 3 B8l14 453
Accelerated depreciation and amortisation charge on assets 130618 498 1.668
Impairment of publishing titles 13 336,850 35234
Profit on disposal of property. plant and equipment:
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment 16 187
Profit on disposal of intangible assets 65 -
Profit on disposal of assets held for sale 288 -
(Loss)profit on disposal of property (159) 783
Cost of inventories recognised as expense 17,241 21382
Movement in allowance for doubtful debts 20 (659) 17
Staff costs excluding redundancy costs 6 87,064 93,090
Redundancy costs 6 5607 4474
Long-Term Incentive Plans
Share-based payments 29 829 596
Value Creation Plan 29 1.003 993
Operating lease charges:
Property 28 3,738 4617
Vehicles 28 1166 1395
Rentals received on sub-let property 108 77
Pension Protection Fund levy 22 422 1.221
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Profit on disposal of property

The Group operates a large portfolio of properties. and regularly exits and renews leases of freehold properties. Profits of £0.3 million for
the period ended 31 December 2016 {2 January 2016: £0.8 million) from property sales were included in operating profit. There were 10

such sales for the peried ended 31 December 2016 (2 Januvary 2016:7).

. Staff costs shown above include £1.2 million (2 January 2016: £1.3 million) relating to remuneration of Directors. Auditors remuneration

is as per the table below:

Auditors remuneration
The analysis of the Auditor's reruneration is as follows:
52 waoks to 52 weeks o
31 December 2 January
2016 206
£060 £000
Fees payable for the audit of the Company's annual accounts 24 235
Fees payable for other services: audit of subsidiary accounts 180 200
Total audit fees 394 435
Non-audit services
Half year review 56 S5
Total assurance services 56 55
Tax compliance services (i.e. related to assistance with corporate tax returns) 69 60
Tax advisory services 148 84
Tota) services relating to taxation 207 Va4
Services related to corporate finance! 430 -
Total other non-audit services 430 -
Total non-audit services 703 199
Total audit and non-audit service fees 1,097 634
Occupational pension scheme audits 16 18
Total fees 113 652

' Relates to the acquisition of the .

All non-audit services were approved by the Audit Committee. The Audit Cormmittee considers that these non-audit services have not
impacted the independence of the audit process. in addition, an amount of £16300 (2 January 2016: £18.000) was paid to the external

Auditor for the audit of the Group's pension scheme,

Details of the company's policy on the use of the auditor for non-audit services, the reasons why the auditor was used rather than

another supplier and how the Auditor's independence and objectivity was safeguarded are set out in the Audit Committee Report on

page 47. No services were provided pursuant to contingent fee arrangements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coniinued
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

6. Employees

The average monthly nurnber of emnployees, including Executive Directors, was:

52 wuoeks to 52 weeks to
31 Decembor 2January
2016 200
No. No,
Editorial and photegraphic 89s 974
Sales and distribution 1159 1359
Production 270 288
Administration 170 - 219
Average number of employees 2.494 2840
52 weeoks to 52 weeks to
31 Decomber 2 January
2018 2006
Notes £o000 £000

Staff costs:
wWages and salaries 7417 80196
Social security costs . 7,068 7367
Redundancy costs 5 5,607 4474
Other pension costs’ 2 4,047 3880
Cost of share-based awards? 29 1,832 1647
Total staff costs g7564

92,67

' Other pension costs relates to Group pension centributions to the defined contribution scheme.

t  pefered Share Bonus Plan eontributions are fully charged to the incomne statement in the year to which they relate gnd are accrued at the respective year end.

At the point of award the full expense has already been recognised,

Full details of the Directors’ ermoluments, pension benefits and share options are included in the audited part of the Directors’

Rernuneration Report on page 47.

7. Investment income

52 woeks to 52 weeks o
31 Decernber 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000
Incorne from available for sale investments! - - 706
Interest receivable 73 148
73 854
1 pividends received from Press Association recognised as available for sale investments.
8. Finance costs
a) Net finance expense on pension liabilities/assets
52 woelos to 52 weeks to
1 Decembor 2 January
. 2016 2006
Note £000 . £000
Interest on assets 17.51% 1671
Interest on liabilities {18,345) {19.704)
Net finance expense on pension liabilities/assets 22 (831) (Z2933)

b} IAS 21/39 items

The fair value movement on the 8.625% Senior Secured Bonds due 2019 resulted in a gain of £43.6 million (2015: £23.9 million) and was

based on quoted market fair value. Refer to Note 2.
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¢} Finance costs

52 wooks to 52 weeks to
I Decomber 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000
Interest on bond (18,975} 19,296]
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans (382) 374}
Armortisation of term debt issue costs (194) (194)
Financing fees Q18) (109)
Totat operational finance costs (19,569) 19.973)
Refinancing fees' {4B7) -
Total finance costs {20,056) N9.973)
' fefinancing fees charged in the period relate to unrecoverable VAT on 2014 refinancing fees,
9. Tax
52 weoks to 52 weeks to
I Decamber 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000
Current tax
Charge for the period 1,073 200
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (328) {626)
745 (426])
Deferred tax (Note 23)
Charge for the period 2,092 6,983
Deferred tax adjustment in respect of prior periods relating to the bond ' - 1104
Deferred tax adjustrment in respect of prior periods 601 -
Deferred tax adjustment relating to the impairment of publishing titles in the period {61,433) {7.033)
Credit relating to reduction in deferred tax rate to 1796 (2015: 1896/199%) {375) (9.166)
(54.115) (8112)
Total tax ¢redit for the period (5337) (8.538)

UK corporation tax is calculated at 20,09 (2 January 2016; 20.25%) of the estimated assessable profit for the period, Taxation for other

Jjurisdictions is calculated at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdiction,

The corporation tax rate will reduce to 199 for the year beginning 1 April 2017, and to 17% for the year beginning 1 April 2020, The
change to the standard rate of corporation tax rate to 1796, substantively enacted by parliament. has been accounted for in the
calculation of the deferred tax, resulting in a £0.4 million tax credit in the Consolidated Income Statement and £13 million tax charge

in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

£61.4 million of the current year deferred tax movement has arisen as a result of the publishing title intangible asset impairment in the
period, and an additional £0.9 million tax credit has arisen due to the corporation tax rate reduction to 17%.

The Group's effective tax rate was 17.79 for the 2016 financial year (2015: 391.29%). The effective tax rate was reduced from the prevalling
UK corporation tax rate of 20.0% largely due to the difference between the current and deferred tax rates applied, with the difference

arising primarily on the Groups publishing titles.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coniinues
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

9. Tax continued
The tax credit for the period, relating to continuing operations, can be reconcited to the profit/lloss) per the income Staterment
as follows:

52 weeks ta 52 weeks 1o
31 December 2 January
2016 2006
£000 % £000 %
(Loss)/profit before tax . {300,261) 2182 1000
Tax at 20.09% (2 January 2016: 20.259%]) {60,052) 20.0 442 203
Tax effect of iterms that are not deductible or not taxable in determining
taxable profit (29) - (147) (6.7)
Tax effect of investment income - - (142) (6.5}
Unrecognised deferred tax assets - - (3) (e}
Effect of difference between deferred and current tax rate 6,813 {2.3) - -
Effect of reduction in deferred tax rate {375) o1 {9.166) (420.0}
Adjustment in respect of prior year bond accounting - - 1104 506
Adjustment in respect of prior years 272 - {01} (626} - {287}
Total tax credit (5337} 17.7 {8,538} {391.2}

On the Group's discontinued operations, relating to isle of Man Newspapers Limited which was disposed of in the period, a profit
of £0.0 million has been recognised (2015: £0.7 million profit), As the tax rate prevailing in Isle of Man is zero 9, there is no tax charge
or credit in relation to the discontinued operation.

10. Discontinued operations
On 18 August 2016, the Group completed the sale of its the Isie of Man titles to Tindle Newspapers Ltd, the UK based publisher, for £4.25
million in cash. The results of the discontinued operations were as follows:

pariod endod Year ended

18 August 2 January

2016 2016

£000 £000

Revenue 1753 3.006
Expenses (1.504) (2.296)

Net {loss)/profit attributable to discontinued operations {attributable to owners of the Company) 249 710

Net loss on disposal {221) -

Net profit from discontinued operations 28 - 710

During the year the Isle of Man consumed cash flows frorm operations of £0.4 million (2015: £0.1 million), investing of nil (2015; nil) and
financing activities of nil (2015: nil).

For additional information on the net assets disposed of refer to Note 16.

11, Dividends

52 wonks to 52 weeks to
31 December 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:

Preference dividends

13.75% Cumulative preference shares (13.75p per share) 104 104
13.75% ‘A’ preference shares (13.75p per share) 48 48
152 152

The provisions of the Group's bond restrict the Company's ability to pay dividends on the Company's otdinary shares until certain
conditions, including that net leverage is below 2.25x EBITDA, are met. Although the Board wishes to resume dividend payments as
soon as is appropriate, no ordinary dividend is declared for the period.

Preference share dividends of £0.1 million were approved on 18 May 2016 and paid on 30 June 2016 based on the Directors consideration
of distiibutable reserves available at the time, Following continued difficult trading conditions and Brexit impacting discount rates, a
further review of the valuation of intangibles was undertaken at the interim resulting in a significant impairment and the extinguishment
of distributable reserves. As a result, preference share dividends cannot be paid at the year-end but have been accrued.
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12, Earnings per share

The calculation of earnings per share is based on the following (fossl/profit and weighted average number of shares:

Continuing and discontinued operations

52 weoks to 52 weeks to
I December 2 January
2015 2005
£000 £000
{Loss)/eamings
(Loss)/profit for the period (246,862) n.43
Preference dividend! (152) (152}
{Loss)fearnings for the purposes of diluted eamings per share (247.014} 1n.279
{Loss)/eamnings per share (p)
Basic (234.5) 107
Diluted? {234.5) 107
Continuing operations
3 December 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000
{Loss)/feamings
{Loss)/profit for the period (246,890) 10721
Preference dividend' {152) 152)
{Loss)earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share {247,042) 10.569
{Loss)earmings per share (p)
Basic (234.6) 10.0
Diluted? {234.6) 100
Number of shares
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of basic earnings per share?® 105,878 105,878
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
~warrants and ermployee share options (552) (596}
Number of shares for the purposes of diluted {loss)fearnings per share 105326 105325
Adjusted
X\ December 2 January
2016 2016
£000 F000
Earnings
Profit for the period 17.728 24,264
Preference dividend! (52) (152}
Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 17,576 24112
Earnings per share (p})
Basic 16.7 229
Diluted? 16.7 229

T Inline with 1a5 33, the preference dividend and the number of preference shares ara excluded from the calcutation of eamings per share.
?  Dituted earnings per share are presented when a company could be called upon to issue shares that would decrease net profit or increase loss per share.

1 The weighted average number of ardinary shanes ane shown excluding treasury shares,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

13. Intangible assets

Digital
Publishing Intangible

titdes assets Total

£000 £000 £000
Cost :
Opening batance ’ 1149190 48 1153.208
Additions 24000 796 24,796
Disposals : (16,496) 337) 16.833)
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (Note 18) ) (34.N0) - (34.710)
Transfers from property, plant and equipment [Note 14)" - 10,135 10135
Closing balance 1,121,984 1532 1,137,296
Accumulated impairment losses and amortisation Co
Opening balance o . 672795 2066 674.861
Amartisation for the period ) - 866 866
Disposals (12.496) (337) 12.833)
Impairment losses for the period o 326850 - 336,850
Transfer to assets classified as held for sale (Note 18} : . ‘ (18710} - 1810}
Transfers from property. plant and equipment (Note 14)2 - 4212 4,212
Closing balance : 978,435 6,807 985,246
Carrying amount :
Opening balance . . 476395 2.652 479047
Closing balance , ‘ 143545 8505 152,050

' includes £19 million of additions included within PPAE and subsequently transferred to Intangible assets,
?  Includes £0.2 million of arnortisation in respect to the £1.9 million of additions (referred to in foctnote 1 above) and £0.3 million of accelerated depreciation on
certain websites transferred from property plant and equipment,

Publishing titles )
The carrying amount of publishing titles by cash generating unit (CGU) is as follows:

Transfer to
2 January . assets hetd : 3 Decombor
2016  Impairment for sale Addition Dispaosal 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Scotland 52127  (4289) - - - 9,436
North 194958 (130528) - - - 64,430
North West 46300 {32.566) - - {4,000} 9,734
Midlands . 109109 (90206) (6,000) - - 2,903
South 38442 (18,990} - - - 19,452
Northern freland . 35.459 {21,869} - - - 13,590
Thei . - L= - 24000 . - 24,000
Total carrying amount of publishing titles ' 476395 {336850) (16000) 24000  {4000) 143,545

Acquisition and disposal of publishing titles

The addition in the period relates to the i publishing title which the Group acquired on 10 April 2016, Johnston Press plc completed the
acquisition of the business and certain assets of | from Independent Print Limited. i is a UK national daily newspaper providing concise
quality editorial content, and was named National Newspaper of the Year in 2015 at the industry’s News Awards, The total purchase
consideration is £24 million, of which £22 million was settled in cash on completion and a further £2 million will be settled in cash on
20 April 2017 (Note 17).

The Group disposed of The Isle of Man Newspapers Limited. whose titles consisted of the Isle of Man Examiner, Isle of Man Courier Manx
independent and www.iomtoday.com.im. in August 2016, for total consideration of £4.25 million (Note 10). At the time of disposal the
Directors assessed these titles were held at their fair value due to previous impairment write-downs incurred.

The £16.0 million transfer of publishing titles from intangible assets to assets held for sale relates to the disposal completed in January

2017 of 13 East Midlands and East Anglia titles to lliffe Media Ltd. Refer to Note 18 and 32 for further details of the terms of the
sale agreement,
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Impairment assessment

The Group tests the carrying value of publishing titles held within the publishing operating segrment for impairment annually or more
frequently if there are indications that they rmight be impaired. The publishing titles are grouped by CGUs. being the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows independent of the cash inflows from other groups of assets.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs are determined from valug in use calculations. The key assurmptions for the value in use
calculations are:

. expected changes in underlying revenues and direct costs during the period;

.+ growth rates; and

- the discount rate.

The Group prepares discounted cash flow forecasts using:
the Board approved budget for 2017 and the projections for 2018 and 2019 which reflects managerment's current experience and
future expectations of the markets the CGUs operate in. Changes in underlying revenue and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market. These include changes in demand for print and digital, circulation. cover prices,
advertising rates as well as movernent in newsprint and production costs and inflation:

- capital expenditure cash flows to reflect the cycle of capital investrment required;

- net cash inflows for future years are extrapolated beyond 2019 based on the Board's view of the estimated annual long-term
performance. A long-term decline rate between 0% and 29 has been included for all CGU's; and

- management estimate discount rates using post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of meney, the
risks specific to the CCUs and the risks that the regional media industry is facing. The post-tax discount rate applied to the future cash
flows for the period ended 31 December 2016 was 11.09% (2 January 2016: 10.0%). The pre-tax discount rate is a range between 13.5%
and 14.6% (2 January 2016: 12.196). The present value of the cash flows is then compared to the carrying value of the asset to determine
if there is any impairment loss.

The Group has conducted sensitivity analysis on the impairment test of each CGUs carrying value. An increase In the long-term decline
rate of 0.5%. beyond 2019, would resuit in a further Group impairment of £5.0 million, an increase in the long-term decline rate is
possible if the advertising market economic ¢onditions do not improve. An increase in the discount rate of 0.5% would result in an
additicnal impairment of £6.0 million. An increase in the risk-free-interest rate or risk premium could result in a higher discount rate
being applied to the impairment assessment.

Crowth rate Discount rate

sansitivity sensitivity

£000 €000
Scotland (325) (399}
North (2.293) (2.729)
North West (399) (472)
Midlands : {693} (823)
South (801} 951)
Northern Irelanc (490) (585)
Thei - -
Total potential impairment from sensitivity analysis (5.001) {5.959)

Digital intangible assets

Digital intangible assets primarily relate to the new design, additional functionality and ongoing commercial enhancements to the
Group's local websites and the development of a Custorner Relationship Managerment (CRM) capability. The websites form the core
platform for the Group's digital revenue activities whereas the CRM capability will enable the Group to accelerate the growth of its

subscriber base. These assets are being amontised over a period of two to five years. Amortisation for the year has been charged through
cost of sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

14. Property, plant and equipment

Freehold

tand and Leasehold Plant and Motor

buildings buildings  machinery Vehicles Tatal

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Cost
At 2 January 2016 60,587 6526 126,001 889 194,003
Additions 9 43] 4,886 - 5326
Disposals - (489) (6.263) {449) {7.201)
Transfers to assets held for sale (Note 18} {3.697} (568} (209) - (4.474)
Transfers to digital intangible assets (Note 13)' - - (10,135} - {10.135)
Exchange differences - 186 - - 186
At 31 December 2016 56,899 6,086 114,280 440 177,705
Depreciation
At 2 January 2016 39048 2341 89,012 889 141,290
Disposals - [489) (6,249} {449) (7187}
Charge for the period? 380 459 5685 - 0.524
Transfers to digital intangible assets (Note 13) - - {4.212) - (4,212)
Transfers to assets held for sale (Note 18)3 (2520) 1) (189) - (3.020)
Impairment 4396 - 3.080 - 7476
Exchange differences - 150 - - 150
At 31 December 2016 41304 2150 97,127 440 141,021
Carrying amount
At 2 January 2016 21,529 4185 26,989 - 5273
At 31 December 2016 15,595 3,936 17,153 - 36,684

' Includes additions of £1.9 rillion in the year, transferred to digital intangible assets.
*  Includes accelerated depreciation of £0.1 million on certain property assets within the Group.

} Includes £0.2 million depreciation on additions transferred to digital intangible assets.

During the 52-week period ended 31 December 2016, the Group recognised an accelerated depreciation charge of £0.5 million
{2015; £0.3 miillion). The write-down arises from decisions to rationalise facilities and are calculated based on fair value less costs of sale
as quoted by external valuers.

During the period the Group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of its print ranufacturing plant and related equipment,
which are used in the Group's print segment. The Group.has three print presses in Dinnington, Portstouth and Carn. Each print site is
assessed independently for impairment, as separate cash generating units (CGU's). The recoverable amount of each CGU is determined
frorm value in use calculations, The key assumptions for the value in use calculations are:

- expected changes in underlying revenues and direct costs during the period;

- growth rates; and

- the discount rate.

The Group prepares discounted cash flow forecasts using:
the Board approved budget for 2017 and the projections for 2018 and 2019 which reflects management's current experience and
future expectations of the markets the CGUs operate in. Changes in underlying revenue and direct costs are based on past practices
and expectations of future changes in the market. These include changes in internal and external print revenue as well as movement
in newsprint and production costs and inflatior:

. capital expenditure cash fows to reflect the cycle of capita! investment required:

- net cash inflows for future years are extrapolated beyond 2019 based on the Board's view of the estimated annual long-term
performance. A long-term decline rate between 0% has been included for all CGU's (2 January 2016: 1% growth} and

. management estimate discount rates using post-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGUs. The post-tax discount rate applied to the future cash flows for the peried ended 31 December 2016
was 11.0% (2 January 2016: 10.0%). The pre-tax discount rate is a range between 11.9% and 13.0% (2 January 2016: 11.3% to 12.29). The
post-tax discount rate reflects management’'s view of the current risk profile of the underlying assets being valued with regard to the
current economic environment and the risks that the regional media industry is facing. The present value of the cash flows is then
compared to the carrying value of the asset to determine if there is any impairment loss.
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An impairment charge of £5.5 million has been recognised in relation to the Dinnington print press for the period ended 31 December
2016. At the half-year an impairment of £5.4 million was recognised on the presses. of which £2.4 million was recorded against
Dinnington and £3.0m in respect of Portsmouth. At the year-end a further impairment of £3.1 million was recognised against
Dinnington and the £3.0 million write-down taken against Portsmouth {at the half-year) has been reversed. There was no impairment
recorded on the print presses in the prior year. The impairment charge has been included in the Income Statement in

exceptional items.

A write-down of £1.9 million has been charged in the period to record a property at its expected realisable value. £1.5 million of this
write-down was recorded at the half-year when the property was included in assets held for sale. As the property disposal was
unsuccessful the property has been transferred back to property, plant and equipment with a further write-down of £0.4 miltion
recorded at year-end. The property belongs to the Group’s publishing segment and the impairments have been included in the Income
Statement in exceptional itermns,

15. Available for sale investments
The Group's available for sale investrments are:

3 December 2 January

2016 2016

£000 £000

Listed investments : 2 2

Unlisted invastments ’

Cost ' 5,494 4,494
Provision for impairment (3.526) (3.526)
Unlisted investrents carrying amount 268 968
Total investments 970 970

The Group holds a strategic non-controlling interest of 3.53% in Press Association Group Limited. These shares are not held for trading
and accordingly are classified as available for sale. The fair values of all equity securities are based on quoted market prices and are level
one assets on the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of unlisted investments is determined by reference to the net asset position reported
in the latest set of signed accounts of the Press Association Group Limited.

16. Disposal of subsidiary

As referred to in Note 10, the Group disposed of its investment in the Isle of Man Newspapers Limited, whose titles consisted of the Isle
of Man Examiner, Isle of Man Courier. Manx Independent and www.iomtoday.com.m to Tindle Newspapers Ltd. the UK based
publisher, for £4.25 mitlion in cash.

The net assets of the Isle of Man Newspapers Limited at the date of disposal were as follows:

18 August
20%6
£000
Intangible fixed assets ‘ 4000
Tangible assets . . 14
Trade and other receivables 446
Cash and cash equivalents 43
Trade and other payables (232}
Net assets disposed of 427
Cash considegration 4,250
Disposal costs {200)
Net cash consideration 4,050
Net loss on disposal 221)

The impact of this disposal on the Group's results in the current and prior periods Is disclosed in Note 10

There were no disposals made in the comparative period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continuec
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

17. Acquisition of the i newspaper
On 10 April 2016 Johnston Publications Limited. a 1009 owned subsidiary of the Group, acquired the principal assets of “the i", pant
of the Independent Group for net consideration of £24.1 million.

The acquisition represents a significant growth opportunity for Johnston Press in terms of national print and advertising revenue,

The i is a highly regarded newspaper with a clear market position and a loyal readership and the combination rebalances our revenues
towards less volatile circulation revenue, With the considerable digital experience of Johnston Press, the combination with the i will
allow us to grow digital audiences and revenues through the creation of inews.couk.

10 April
2016
£000
The identifiable assets acquired are as follows:
Intangible fixed assets - titles 24,000
Working capital 123
Total net assets acquired ’ 24,123
Satisfied by: .
Cash 22123
Deferred consideration 2,000
Total consideration transferred . 246,123
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition C 24123

There are no conditions around the deferred payment which is due in April 2017, The purchase consideration has been attribOted’
to the titles.

Costs of approximately £1.8 million relating to the acquisition were incurred in respect of legal and advisory fees.

The revenue included in the consolidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income since 10 April 2016 contributed by the i was £185
million, The i also contributed EBITDA of £33 million over the same period {(H176 £0.4 miillion, H216 £2.9 million). Based on 38 weeks

and extrapolated on a 52 week period. had the i been consolidated from 3 January 2016, on a pro-forma basis including an estimate

of revenues and costs incurred by former owners [ESI) the comprehensive income for the | would have included revenue of £25.6 million
and profit of £4.4 miiltion,

18. Assets classified as held for sale

Freehold

land and Leasehold Plant and Publishing
buildings buildings machinery titles Total
Notes E£'000 £000 £000 £000 EQQQ

Cost
At 2 January 2016 L4l .- 37 - 208
Transfers in from property. plant and equipment % 3,697 568 209 - 4,474
Transfer from intangible assets’ 13 - - - 34,10 34,70
Disposals (372) . - (238} - (3.950)
At 31 December 2016 156 568 8 34,710 35,442
Depreciation
At 2 January 2016 105 - 2] - 126
Charge for the year 26 - - - - 26
Transfers in from property, plant and equipment 1 2520 m 189 - 3,020
Transfer from intangible assets? 3 - - - 18,710 18,710
Disposals (2622) - {202} - (2,824}
At 31 December 2016 29 m ) 18,10 19,058
Carrying amount
At 2 January 2016 66 - 16 - 82
At 31 December 2016 127 257 - 16,000 16384

' Comprises publishing titles transferred from intangible assets that have been sold to lliffe Media Ltd subsequent to the end of the financial period ended
31 Decermnber 2016, Refer to Note 32 for further details of the terms of the sale agreement.
?  Includes accelerated charge of £0.02 miltion.
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Assets classified as held for sale consists of land and buildings in the UX and Republic of Ireland that are no longer in use by the Group
and printing presses that have ceased production. All of the assets are being marketed for sale and are expected to be sold within the
next year.

Included within assets held for sale at the year-end are publishing titles with a net book value of £16 million that have been sold to lliffe
Media Ltd on 17 January 2017. The titles contributed £N.9 million (2015: £13.4 million) to revenue and profit of £3.1 rmillion (2015: £3.6 milliany),

Non-current assets are transferred to assets held for sale when it is expected that their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through disposal and a sale is considered likely. They are held at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs of sale.

19. Inventories

31 Docomber 2 January
2016 2016
Raw materials 2,262 2383
20. Other financial assets and liabilities
Trade and other receivables
51 becember 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000
Current:
Trade receivables 24,290 24360
Allowance for doubtful debts ’ 0.201) (1.860}
. 23.089 22500
Prepayments : 2123 3.836
Corporation tax recoverable - 247
Other debtors 5545 5292
Tota!l current trade and other receivables ’ 30,757 31628
Non-current receivables 1 2
Total trade and other receivables 30,758 31630
Trade receivables

The average credit period taken on sales is 41 days {2 January 2016: 43 days). No interest is charged on trade receivables. The Group has
provided for estimated irrecoverable amounts in accordance with the accounting policy described in Note 2.

Before accepting any new credit customer, the Croup obtains a credit check from an external agency to assess the potential customer's
credit quality and then defines credit terms and limits on a by-customer basis. These credit terms are reviewed regularfy, In the case of
one-off customers or low value purchases, pre-payment for the goods is required under the Group’'s policy. The Group reviews trade
receivables past due but not impaired on a regular basis and considers, based on past experience, that the credit quality of these
amounts at the period end date has not deteriorated since the transaction was entered into and so considers the amounts recoverable.
Regular contact is maintained with all such customers and, where necessary, payment plans are in place to further reduce the risk of
defauit on the receivable.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance are debtors with a carrying amount of £73 million (2 January 2016; £8.9 million) which
are past due at the reporting date but for which the Group has not provided as there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the Group believes that the amounts are still recoverable. The Group does not hold any security over these balances. The weighted
average past due peried of these receivables is 26 days (Z January 2016: 25 days).

Ageing of past due but not impaired trade receivables

X1 December 2 January

206 2016

€000 £000

0-30 days 5380 5569
30-60 days 1373 1436
60-30 days 233 746
a0+days 29 1187
Total 7.277 8938
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coninuec
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

20. Other financial assets and liabilities continued
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

31 Decemnber 2 January

2016 2016

£000 £000

Balance at the beginning of the period 1860 1.843

Bad debts provided for 222 254

Disposal 27 -

Release (913) -

Transfer 20

Amounts provided for during the year as uncollectible - - (204}
Foreign exchange translation gains and losses : 19 (33)

Movement in the period (Note 5) ; (659) 17

Balance at the end of the period 1,201 1.860

In determining the recoverability of a trade receivable, the Group considers any change in the credit quality of the trade receivable from
the date credit was initially granted up to the balance sheet date. The concentration of credit risk is limited due to the customer base
being large and unrelated. Accordingly, the Directors believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess of the allowance
for doubtful debts.

Ageing of impaired trade receivables
. Impaired trade receivables are those that have been provided for under the Group's bad debt provisioning policy, as descnbed in the
accounting policy in Note 2. The ageing of impaired trade receivables is shown below.

31 Decomber 2 January

2016 2016

£000 - £000

0-30 days © 57 34)
30-60 days 23 37
60-90 days 476 53t
90+days . . 645 951
Total ) 1200 1.860

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables at the balance sheet date approximate to their fair value.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents totalling £16.1 millien (2014: £40.6 million) comprise cash held by the Group and short-term bank deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less. The carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value,

Trade and other payables

31 December 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000

Current: ’
Trade creditors and accruals 26,052 31,785
Accrual for redundancy costs 870 2381
Other creditors’ 10,323 7877
Total current trade and other payables 37,245 42043
Non-current trade and other payables 3.477 3325

' Includes £2 million of deferred consideration payable on the acquisition of the i due ta be paid April 2017,

Trade creditors and accruals principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs, The average credit
period taken for trade purchases is 44 days (2 January 2016; 42 days). The Group has financial risk management policies in place to
ensure all payables are paid within the agreed credit terms.

The redundancy accrual has been made for terminations agreed ahead of the year end and to be paid during 2017.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other payables at the balance sheet date approximate to their fair value.
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|

The borrowings at 31 December 2016 are recorded at quoted market fair value and classified as Level T according to IFRS 13. As the
barrowings are shown at fair value the associated issue costs against the 8.625% Senior secured notes due 1 June 2019 {the 'bond’) have

been charged to the Income Statement (refer to Note 8c).

The breakdown of the B8.625% senior secured notes 2019 is as follows:

31 Docomber 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000
Principal amount’ 220,000 220,000
Bond discount - initial (4.400) (4,400)
Fair value gain from inception? {72,600) (28981}
Totaf borrowings at market value 143,000 186.619
The borrowings are disclosed in the financial statements as:
31 December 2 January
2016 2018
£000 £000
Current borrowings - -
Non-current bortowings 143,000 186,619
Total borrowings 143,000 186,619
The Group's net debt? is:
3 Decemboer 2 January
2018 2016
£000 E000
Gross borrowings as above 143,000 i86.619
Cash and cash equivalents (16,058) (40.564}
Net debt 126,942 146,055

' The principal amount remaining is stated after £5 million bond buy back in August 2015,

1 The fair value gain for the period to 31 December amounted to £43.6 million (period to 2 January 2016: £23.9 million gain).
5 Netdebt is a non-statutory term presented to show the Group's borrowings net of cash equivalents and bond fair value movements,

22. Retirement benefit obligation

Characteristics of the Group’s pension related liabilities

The Johnston Press Retirement Savings Plan

The Johnston Press Retirement Savings Plan is a defined contribution Master Trust arrangement for current employees, cperated by
Zurich. Contributions by the Croup are a percentage of basic salary. Employer contributions range from 19 of qualifying earnings, for
employees statutorily enrolled, through to 12% of basic salary for Senior Executives. Employees who were active members of the Money
Purchase section of the Johnston Prass Pension Plan on 31 August 2013 transferred from the Johnston Press Pension Plan to the

Jahnston Press Retirernent Savings Plan from 1 September 2013,

The Johnston Press Pension Plan (‘the Plan')

The Johnston Press Pension Plan is a defined benefit pension plan closed to new members and closed to future accrual. There was
formerly a defined contribution section of the Johnston Press Pension Plan which was closed i August 2013 and members” defined
contribution benefits were transferred to the Johnston Press Retirement Savings Plan. The assets of the Plan are held separately from
those of the Group. The contributions are determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of a triennial valuation using the projected unit
rmethod and are set out in a Schedule of Contributions and Recovery Plan dated 29 July 2014,

A valuation of the Johnston Press Pension Plan as at 31 December 2012 was commissioned by the Trustees and takes account of the
Capital Refinancing Plan. The triennial valuation as at 31 December 2015 is currently in progress and is expected to be completed

during 2017,
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22. Retirement Benefit Obligation continued

Characteristics of the Group’s pension related liabilities continued

The Johnston Press Penston Plan [‘the Plan’) continued

In conjunction with the 2014 Capital Refinancing Plan, the Plan Trustees and the Group entered into a Pension Framework Agreement,

agreelng inter alia to the following:

On implementation of the Capital Refinancing Plan in June 2014, the secured guarantee provided in favour of the Plan Trustees by
the Group and certain of its subsidiaries in relation to any default on a payment obligation under the Johnston Press Pension Plan has
been removed, In return for the removal of this security and the aforementioned guarantee, an unsecured cross-guarantee has been
provided on implementation of the Capital Refinancing Plan by the Group and certain of its subsidiaries in favour of the Plan Trustees
in relation to any default on a payrnent obligation under the Plan. Each ¢laim made under the unsecured cross-guarantee is capped
at an arnount equal to the aggregate Section 75 is75) debt of the Johnston Press Pension Plan at the date any claim macde by the
Plan Trustees falls due.

- The deficit as at the 31 Decernber 2012 valuation date will be sought to be addressed by 31 December 2024 by entry into a recovery
plan providing for contributions starting at £6.3 million in 2014, £65 million i in 2015 and £10.0 million in 2016 increasing by 3% per
annum with a final payment of £12.7 million in 2024.

- Settlement of previously incurred PPF levies and s75 debts.

. The Plan was entitled to receive 25% of net proceeds from business or asset disposals up to and including 31 August 2015 exceeding
£1 millien in a single transaction or £2.5 million over the course of a financial year, subject to certain permitted disposals, conditions
in relation to financial leverage and other exceptions set out in the Framework Agreement.

- The Group would also pay additional contributions to the Plan in the event that the 2015/2016 PPF levy and/or the 2016/2017 PPF levy
was less than £3.2 million, equal to the amount the levy falls below £3.2 million, up to a maximum of £25 million.

- Additional contributions would also be payable to the Johnston Press Pension Plan in the event that the Croup satisfies certain
conditions in relation to financial leverage.

As part of the 31 December 2012 triennial valuation, this Pension Framework Agreement was reflected in the valuation documentation
of the Plan. and subsequently it was submitted to the Pensions Regulator. The Agreement and the required level of contributions are
subject to review as part of the valuation as at 3t December 2015

Amounts arising fram pension related liabilities in the Group’s financial statements
The following tables identify the amounts in the Group’'s financial statements arising from its pension-related liabilities:

Income statement - pensions and other pension related liabilities costs

¥ December 2 January
2016 2016
Notes £000 £000
Employment costs:
Defined contribution scheme ) 6 {6,047) (3.880)
Defined benefit scheme:
Plan expenses (1AS19) (563) (632}
Pension Protection Fund Levy ' ) T (422) f.221)
Past service cost (3,.539) -
Net finance cost on Johnston Press Pension Plan {I1AS19) 8a (831) {2.933)
Total defined benefit scheme ‘ o (5.355) {4.786)
Total pension costs ’ (9.402) (8.666)
Other comprehensive income - gains/{losses) on pension
! ¥ Decemnber 2 January
2016 2016
£000 £000
Gains/{losses) on plan assets in excess of interest 69,806 {7.610)
{Losses)gains fromn changes to financial assumptions 104,200) 8,456
(Losses)/gains fromn changes to demographic assumptions {6,710) 53,204
Experience losses arising on the benefit obligation {5,013} -
Release of defined benefit obligation under IFRIC 14 - 297
Actuarial (loss)/gain recognised in the staterment of comprehensive income {&6M7) 57.021
Deferred tax’ 6,390 10,842
Actuarial {loss)/gain recognised in the statement of comprehensive income net of tax (39.727) 67.863

' Deferred tax adjustment in the period arises due to the reduction in corporate tax rate and increase in pension deficit. A 17% deferred tax rate has been applied
to the deferred tax movernent in respect of the defined benefit scherme.
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During the 2015 period a medically underwritten study was carried out by KPMG to identify the current health of a sample group of
existing Plan members, assessed via telephone interviews targeted towards members with the most significant liabilities in the Plan.
The results of the study continue to be used to inform the mortality assumptions for use in calculating the 1AS19 scheme liabilities.

Statement of financial position - net defined benefit pension deficit

31 Docomber 2 January
2016 206
£000 £000
Amounts included in the Group Statement of Financial Position:
Fair vatue of scherne assets 547,885 473,413
Present value of defined benefit obligations (615.610) (500375}
Total liability recognised (67,725) (26.962)
Amount included in current liabilities 10316 10,016
Amount included in non-current liabilities {57,409) (16.946)
Analysis of amounts recognised of the net defined benefit pension deficit
3 Docember 2 January
2016 2016
£000 E000
Net defined benefit pension deficit at beginning of period {26,962) {90,001)
Defined benefit obligation at beginning of period (500,575} (567.509)
Income statement:
Interest cost (18,345) (19.704)
Past service cost (3.539) -
Other comprehensive income:
Experience losses (5.013) -
Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation: - -
Arising from changes in demographic assumptions (6,710) 53,204
Arising from changes in financial assumptions (104,200) 8.456
Cash flows:
Benefits paid (by fund and Group) 22572 25178
Defined benefit obligation at end of the peried {615,610} (500375}
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period 473,413 480,479
Income staternent:
Interest income on plan assets 17514 1877
Other comprehensive income:
Return on plan assets less interest 69.806 {7.610)
Cash flows:
Carnpany contributions’ 9,724 8551
Benefits paid {by fund and Group) (22.572) (25178)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period 547875 473413
Net defined benefit pension deficit at end of period (67,725} (26.962)
Analysis of fair value of plan assets
51 Decomber 2 January
2016 20i6
£000 EO00
Equities 86342 76,162
Multi-asset credit N2.775 10,464
Diversified growth funds 202,247 167124
Liability-driven investments 141,93 N5625
Other? 4,608 4,038
Total fair value of plan assets 547,885 473,613

' Comprises annua) employer contributions of £97 enillion {2 January 2016 £8.9 million and plan expenses of £nil {2 Jaruary 2016: E43.000).
' Other mainly includes cash and insured benefits (annuities held in the name of the Trustees with various providers).
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22. Retirement Benefit Obligation continued

Characteristics of the Group’s pension related liabilities continued

Analysis of fair value of plan assets continued

The Johnston Press Pension Plan invests in leveraged Liability Driven Investment (LDI} funds in order to match a proportion of the

interest rate and infation sensitivity of the Plan’s liabilities.

Between June 2014 and July 2016, the Plan’s liability matching assets were solely invested in a range of leveraged (fixed interest and
inflation-linked) single gilt funds managed by State Street Global Advisors (SSGA).

- Between August 2016 and February 2017. the Plan’s investrment in liability matching assets was increased by introducing an allocation
to the Standard Life ILPS fund range alongside the SSGA LDI portfolio. The ILPS fund range provides leveraged interest rate and
inflation exposure using a mixture of gilt-based and swap-based derivatives. Together, the SSGA LDI portfolic and the Standard Life
ILPS allocation are expected to broadly hedge the Plan's funded liabilities {as measured on a gilts + 0.5%p.a. basis).

Analysis of financial assumptions

3 December 2 January

2016 2006

£000 £000

Discount rate 2.709% 3.75%
Future pension increases

Deferred revaluations (where linked to inflation {CPI)) - 2.40% 2.00%

Pensions in payment (where linked to inflation (RP1)} 3.40% 3.00%

Future life expectancy
Male currently aged 65 {years) 201 19.7
Female currently aged 65 (years) ny 213

Sensitivity analysis of significant assumptions
The following tables present a sensitivity analysis for each significant actuarial assumption showing how the defined benefit obligation
would have been affected, by changes in the relevant actuarial assumpitions that were reasonably possible at the reporting date:

Decrease/
{increase}in
definad benefit
obligation
£fm
Discount rate .
+0.10% discount rate 9737
Inflation rate
+010% inflation rate ’ (5197}
Mortality ’ .
+10.0% to base table mortality rates . 20715
Pension Increase exchange
Allowance for 25% take up for sections where automatically offered o (646)
The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in one assumption while holding all other assumptions constant, therefore
interdependencies between assurmnptions are excluded. The methodology applied is consistent to that used to determine the
recognised pension liability.
Five-year history
31 Decemnber 2 January 3lanuary . 28 December 29 December
2016 2016 2015 2013 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Fair value of scheme assets 547,885 473413 480479 420306 382792
Present value of defined benefit obligations {615,610) (500375) {567,509} {498,640} {504.M)
Additiona! obligation under IFRIC 14 - - (2.971) - -
Deficit in the plan (67,725) (26,962) {90,001} (78334) 121,319)
Experience adjustments on scheme liabilities :
Amount {£000} (5.013) 61660 (67.09%) 7357 {29,332}
Percentage of plan liabilities (36) 0.8% 123% (M.8%) 1.5% {5.89%)
Experience adjustments on scheme assets
Armounts (£000) 69,806 {7.610) 48120 39,055 8,257
Percentage of plan assets (96} 12.7% 1.69) 10.0% 9.3% 22%

The Rules of the Plan were revised during 2015 such that the Company has an unconditional right to any surplus on the eventual wind
up of the Plan. As such the additional IFRIC 14 liability has been reversed.
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Other pension-related obligations
The Group has agreed to pay the expenses of the Plan and the Pension Protection Fund (PPF) levy as they fall due.

The Plan has seen an increase in its obligations with respect to historic benefit equalisation for a specific group of members (the
‘Affected Mermbers’} for the Portsmouth & Sunderland section of the Plan. The Company made an application to the High Court (the
‘Court’} for a declaration that Normal Retirement Dates (NRDs) for the Affected Members were validly equalised between male and
female members. A court order dated 19 May 2016 was executed which revised the NRDs and this has been reflected as a past service
cost in the Income Statement for the year of £3.5 million.

News Media Association Pension Scheme

The Group is a member of the News Media Association (NMA) (formerly the Newspaper Society). an unincorporated body representing
the interests of local newspaper publishers, During 2014 the Newspaper Society incorporated itself as a company limited by guarantee
and entered into a merger with the Newspaper Publishers' Association {a body representing the interests of publishers of national
newspapers). As part of the merger, existing members entered into a deed of covenant in respect of the deficit to the Society's defined
benefit pension scheme. The members agreed to make contributions over a period of 25 years or until such time as the deficit has been
addressed. Applying a discount rate of 13.796, the Croup’s best estimate of this at present value is £0.7 million,

News Media Association Pension Scheme liabilities have been included within provisions (Note 24),
Qther pension-refated liabilities
The closing provision relating to unfunded pensions for senior employees was £0.5 million (2 January 2016: £0.8 million). The unfunded

pension provision is assessed by a qualified actuary at each peried end.

Post-retirernent medical beneft pension related liabilities for former Portsmouth and Sunderand mermbers of 0. miliion (2 January
2016; £0.1 million). The post-retirement medical benefits represent management’s best estimate of the liability concerned.

Other pension related liabilities have been included within provisions Note 24.

23. Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the Group and moverments thereon during the current and
prior reporting periods.

Accelerated Other
Share-based Properties tax Intangible lintanglble  Pension Bond timing
payments not eligible  depreciation assots! asset  balances’ balances differences + Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
At 3 January 2015 (139) 4764 (5909) 102316 - 8317 - 0363} 81352
Effect of change in tax rates on Income
Staterment - (443} 253 {9.529) - 855 (302) - (9366}
Effect of change in tax rates on equity - - - - - - {578} - - {578)
Charge to equity - - - - - N534 - - 1534
(Creditlficharge to income statement - (328) B44 {7.033) - 1224 4938 305 (50}
Adjustment to prior year charged to Income
Statement - - - - - - 1104 - 1104
At2January 2016 139) 3993 (4.812) 85754 - (5282) 5740 (1,058) 84,196
Effect of change in tax rates on Income
Statement - 193) 656 (875} - 17 - 21 (374)
Effect of change in tax rates on Statement
of Other Comprehensive Income - - - - - 1.348 - - 1348
Charge to Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income - - - - - [7.685) - - (7.685)
{Credit)/charge to income staterment - (518) 01156} {61.433) 122 - B445 198 (54342)
Adjustment to prior year charged to
Statement of Changes in Equity (5} - - - - - - - (5]
Adjustment to prior year charged to Income
Staterment 144 - (252) - - - - 709 601
At 31 December 2016 - 3282 (5564) 23,446 122 (1.602) 14,185 030) 23,739

' Intangible includes £3.2 million of deferred tax in relation to the Midlands publishing titles that have been reclassified to assets held for sale ahead of their digpasal
by the Group in January 2017,
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23. Deferred tax continued
including the effect of the change in tax rates. the deferred tax movements credited through the Income Staterment in the period total
£54.]1 million. Deferred tax movements charged to the Statement of Other Comprehensive Incorme in the period total £63 million.

The Group has £12.9 million of corporate tax losses and £63 million of capital {osses for which no deferred tax has been recognised.
due to uncertainty regarding the Group's ability to utilise these losses.

Temporary differences arising in connection with interests in associates are insignificant.

Certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (before offset)
for financial reporting purposes:

31 December 2 January
0 016
Deferred tax liabilities 41,035 95,487
Deferred tax assets (17.296) .2s)
23,739 84196
24, Provisions
Qnerous
taases Newrs Media
and Association Other pension
dilapidations Pension Scherme! related- liabilities* Total
£000 £000 £000 £000
At 2 January 2016 3.726 775 975 5476
Charge to Income Statement 801 15 - 816
Actuarial valuation loss - - 316} (316)
Utilisation of provision 0.290) . " (90} 07) 1.397)
At 31 December 2016 3,237 . 700 642 4579
The provisions are disclosed in the financial statements as:
Current provisions ‘ 2935 a1 - 3.026
Non-current provisions 302 609 639 1,550
Total provisions 3,237 700 639 4,576

' For detalls of pensions see Note 22

Onerous leases and dilapidations

Where the Group exits a rented property, an estimate of the anticipated total future cost payable under.the terms of the operating
lease, including rentals, rates and other related expenses is provided for at the point of exit as an cnerous lease,

Under the terms of a number of property leases, the Group is required to return the property to its original condition at the lease expiry
date. The Group has estimated the expected costs of leases expiring or expected te be terminated and has also assessed the entire
portfolio and made provisions depending on the state of the property and the duration of the lease and likely rectification requirements.

All amounts are expected to be utilised within the next 10 years.
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25. Share capital

1 Decernber 2 January
2016 2016
£0060 £000
Issued
Ordinary shares
105.877.777 ordinary shares of 1p each (2 January 2016 and 31 December 2016) 1,059 1.059
Total ordinary shares 1,059 1,059
Deferred shares
690,294,608 deferred shares of 9p each 62,126 62126
Second class deferred shares
5.293 888,850 deferred shares of 0.98p each 51,880 51,880
Total deferred shares and second class deferred shares 14,006 114,006
Preference shares
756,000 13.75% cumulative preference shares of £1 each 756 756
349,600 15.75% ‘A’ preference shares of £1 each 350 . 350
Total preference shares 1,106 1106
Total issued share capital ne1n N6

The Group has only one class of ardinary shares which has no right teo fixed income. All the preference shares carry the right. subject
to the discretion and ability of the Group to distribute profits, to a fixed dividend of 13.75% and rank in priority to the ordinary shares.
Given the discretionary nature of the dividend right, the preference shares are considered to be equity under 1AS 32.

Share warrants

The Company has issued share warrants over a total of 12.5% of its issued share capital to former lenders (with 5.09 issued 28 August
2009, 25% issued 24 April 2012 and 5.0% issued 2} Septembeér 2012). Each of the share warrants have the right to subscribe for 01533799
ordinary shares at an exercise price of £1.9745 per share and expire on 30 September 2017. The warrant instrurnents will be settled by the
Company delivering a fixed number of ordinary shares and receiving a fixed amount of cash in return and so qualify as equity under IAS
39. The Binomial Option pricing model was used to assess the fair value of the share warrants issued in the financial year that they were

issued. At the batance sheet date 30.359,979 warrants were outstanding.

26, Share premium

31 December 2 January

2016 2016

£000 £000

Opening and closing balance N2702 312702
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27. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement

31 December 2 January
2016 2016
Notes £000 £000
Operating (loss)profit (323,066} 1158
Adjustments for non-cash items:
Impairment of publishing titles 3 336,850 35234
Impairment of print presses 14 5539 -
Impairment of property 14 1,937 -
21,260 36392
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 866 1.815
Depreciation charges 14,18 6,550 6,551
Charge for share-based payments - 29 1832 2188
Profit on disposal of assets held for sale (401) -
Profit/{loss) on disposal of property. plant and equipment Qie) (968}
Profit on disposal of property : 159 -
Gain on disposal of intangibles (65) -
Past service cost 3,539 -
Disposal of interest in associates - 12
Currency differences (94) (249)
33,630 45741
Operating items before working capital changes:
Net pension funding contributions - cash 22 (9,722) {8.928)
Movement in long-term provisions (598) (29}
Cash generated from operations before workings capital changes 23310 36,784
Working capital changes:
Decrease in inventories ) V4| 160
{Increase)//decrease in receivables . Q81) 2,868
{Decreaselincrease in payables/including restnucturing payables. redundancy accruals
and LTIP Settlement! (6,982) 1275
Cash generated from operations . 16,268 41,087

! LTIP Settlernent refers to £3.9 million payrnent to senior managers relating to the 2014 refinancing (excluding executive Directors) that was payable in early 2016,
the cash for which was raised in 2014.

Cash and cash equivalents {which are presented as a single class of assets on the face of the Statement of Financial Position) comprise
cash at bank and other short-term highly liquid investrments with a maturity of three manths or |ess,

28. Commitments, guarantees and contingent liabilities

Lease commitments

The Group has entered into non-cancellable operating leases in respect of motor vehicles and land and buildings, the payrments for
which extend over a period of years.

51 Docembaor 2 January

2016 2016

Note £000 £000

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense in the year 5 4,904 8012

At the period end date, the Group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases which fall due as follows:

3 Decomber 2 January

2016 2016

£000 £000

Within one year 3.956 5347
In the second to fifth years inclusive 13,67 16,376
After five years 15,287 18324
Tota! future minimum lease payments 32,914 40,047
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Operating lease payments represent rentals payabie by the Group for certain of its office properties and motor vehicle fleet.

Property leases are negotiated for an average of ten years typically with a break after five years or in regard to smaller offices these are
negetiated under more flexible terms with an average length of one year. The Group pays insurance, maintenance and repairs of these
properties. Leases in the case of vehicles are negotiated over four years and are fixed for the full rental period.

Assets pledged as security

Under the new capital refinancing agreement completed on 23 June 2014, the Group and all its material subsidiaries have entered into
new security arrangements in connection with the new bond issued and the new revolving credit facility. The security provided includes
fixed and Roating charges over all or substantially all of the assets of certain members of the Group and share security over shares of
certain members of the Group.

Contingent liabilities

Iconic Newspapers Limited .

Oon 1 April 2014, the Group entered into a sale agreement with Iconic Newspaper Limited for the sale of the trade and assets of the
Group's regional newspapers in the Republic of Ireland, including its Donegal titles, for £7 million. As a condition to the sale, Johnston
Press plc agreed to provide a guarantee in respect of the performance of certain obligations of the entities within the Group making the
disposal of the trade and assets up to a maximum aggregate limit of £5 million. That guarantee will be effective for up to 36 months
following completion of the sale.

29. Share-based payments

Group Savings-Related Share Option Scheme

The Group operates a Savings-Related Share Option Scherme. This has been approved by the Inland Revenue and allows options to be
granted to eligible employees who save amounts deducted from post-tax income ronthly under arrangements with the relevant plan
rmanagers for a peried of either three, five or seven years. The Savings-Related Share Option Schemes up to and including 2010 are
operated by Computershare Plan Managers. The 2013 scheme is operated by Yorkshire Building Society and under a change in HMRC
rules is for a pericd of three or five years. The right to exercise is at the discretion of the employee within six months following the end
of the period of saving. .

Options outstanding under the Savings-Related Scheme at the period end with a weighted average exercise price of 3.3p:

31 Decomber 2016 2 January 2016
Number of Issuey price Number of Issue price
Optlon grant date sharey per sharo shares per share
26 September 2008 - - 4,691 54195p
25 September 2009 2,844 4512.22p 2844 412.22p
28 September 2010 . 4,856 227.01p 76167 22701p
27 September 2013 356,080 191.34p 812,728 19134p

The Group recognised a net charge of £0.03 miillion for the period ended 31 December 2016 (2 January 2016: charge of £0.1 million)
related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions for the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme,

The above options were granted at the closing mid-rmarket price on the day prior to the invitation being sent to employees on

1 September 2008, 1 September 20091 September 2010 and 30 August 2013 respectively. This follows the approval of the revised
Sharesave Scheme at the Annual General Meeting in April 2007. A discount of 209 to the average mid-market price was applied to
the issues up to and including 2009.

No discount was applied to the 2010 issue and a discount of 109% was applied to the 2013 issue,
There were ho options granted under the Savings-Related Share Option Scheme in either 2011, 2012, 2014, 2015 or 2016.

Performance Share Plan

The Group makes awards to Executive Directors and certain senior employees on an annual basis under the Performance Share Plan
{PSP). The awards vest after three years if certain performance criteria are met during that period. If the scheme conditions are met at
the vesting date participants have 10 years from the date of grant to exercise the option.

Grants were made under the PSP scherne on 24 March 2016 to certain senior employees, A total of 2,044,662 shares were granted at
an exercise price of £0.275 per share. The vesting of the shares is on the basis that two performance conditions are met. being EPS and
TSR on a 50:50 basis, on the same basis as the previous PSP awards. The fair value of the TSR/market-based condition of the award has
been determined using a stochastic model, The Black-Scholes model has been used to value the EPS/performance-based condition
of the award.
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29. Share-based payments continued
Performance Share Plan continued
Awards outstanding under the Performance Share Plan at the period end with a weighted average exercise price of 0.84p/share:

3 December 2016 2 January 2016

Numberof  Market price on Market price on
Grant date Vesting dates shares award Number of shares award
5 June 2013 S June 2016 - - 399621 250.79p
12 December 2014 12 December 2017 50,078 159.75p ’ 50078 159.75p
26 May 2015 26 May 2018 1,282,229 154.90p 1534374 154.80p
24 September 2015 24 September 2018 42,104 93.90p 42104 93.90p
24 March 2016 24 March 2019 2,044,662 4310p - -

The Group recognised a net charge of £0.4 million for the period ended 31 December 2016 (2 January 2016: net charge of £0.4 million)
related to equity-settied share-based payment transactions for the Performance Share Plan.

Company Share Option Plan
The Group granted options to certain senior managers to purchase shares in thé Group at a certain market price, under the Company
Share Option Plan. The awards vest after three years provided the employee remains employed by the Group.

Options outstanding under the Company Share Option Plan at the period end with a weighted average exercise price of 3.44p per/share:

31 Docember 2016 2 January 2016
Number of Market price Number of Market Price
Grant date Vesting dates shares on award shares on award
28 June 2012 27 June 2015 LT 192,229 73.00p 244367 73.00p
SJune 2013 4 June 2016 230,665 250.79p 317.796 250.79p

The Croup recognised a net charge of £0.06 million for the period ended 31 December 2016 {2 January 2016: net charge of £0.1 million)
related to equity-settled share-based payment transactions for the Company Share Option Plan.

Deferred Share Bonus Plan

It has been the Group’s policy that a proportion of any bonus paid to Executive Directors and certain senior employees is paid in shares
deferred for three years. These are deferred in the form of options under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan 2012. Awards which vest under
the plan may only be satisfied using shares purchased in the market. 366,979 options with a weighted average exercise price of 2.43p
per/share (2 January 2016: 425337} shares were outstanding in relation to Deferred Share Bonus Plan awards.

The Croup recognised a net charge of £nil for the pericd ended 31 December (2 January 2016; Enll) related to equity-settled bonus
payments for the Deferred Share Bonus Plan.

Value Creation Plan

A Value Creation Plan (VCP) scheme was approved by shareholders at the Company's Annual General Meeting on 27 June 2014,
Awards under the scheme were granted on 22 September 2014 to Executive Directors and certain senior employees, a further award
was granted on 26 May 2015 with a shortened vesting peried to coincide with the original scheme vesting dates, Subject to share price
performance. half.the awards will vest on 23 June 2017 with the other half vesting on 23 June 2018 (provided the employee remains
with the Company).

Options outstanding under the VCP at the period end with a weighted average exercise price of 0.45p perfshare:

Grant date Nurmber of shares Market price on award Vesting dates
22 September 2014 6412937 2308p 23 June 2017
26 May 2015 697,229 231.0p 23 June 2017

The Group recognised a net charge of £1.0 million for the period ended 31 December 2016 (2 January 2016: £1.0 million) refated to
equity-settled share-based payment transactions for the VCP.
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Restricted Share Plan

A new Restricted Share Plan (RSP) scheme was granted on 24 March 2016 to senior employees. The only condition of vesting is that the
employee remains in employment until 31 December 2017, A total of 2.635.630 shares were granted at an exercise price of £0.431 per
share. Half the shares vest on 31 December 2017 and half on 31 December 2018,

Further awards of 143198 shares was granted under the same scheme rules in April 2016 with a 31 December 2018 vesting date and are
conditional on the employees remaining in employment until vesting date. The Black-Scholes model has been used to value the award.

Options outstanding under the RSP at the period end with a weighted average exercise price of 0.429p per/share:

Grant date . Number of shares Market price on pward Vesting dates
24 March 2016 2.063.474 0.43p 31 December 201718
19 April 2006 143198 042p 3] Decemnber 2017/18

The Group recognised a net charge of £0.4 million for the period ended 31 Decernber 2016 related to equity-settled bonus payments
for the Restricted Share Plan.

30. Related party transactions
Associated parties _
The Group did not undertake any related party transactions during the current or preceding period.

Transactions with Directors
There were no material transactions with Directors of the Company during the year. except for those relating to remuneration and
shareholdings, disclosed in the Directors’ Remuneration Report

For the purposes of IAS 24, Related Party Disclosures, management below the level of the Company's Board are not regarded as
related parties.

The remuneration of the Directors at the year-end, who are the key management personnel of the Group. is set out in aggregate in the
audited part of the Directors’ Rernuneration Report on page 47. . ’ T

31. Financial instruments

a) Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concemns while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance, The Group's overall strategy remains unchanged.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 21. cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to equity holders of the parent, cornprising issued share capital, reserves and retained earnings as disclosed in Note
25 and in the Group Staterment of Changes in Equity.

b} Gearing ratio

The Board of Directors forrally reviews the capital structure of the Group when considering any major corporate transactions. As part of
these reviews, the Board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on the recommendations
of the Board, the Group will balance its overall capital structure when appropriate through new share issues and share buy-backs as well
as the issuye of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The gearing ratio at the period end is as follows:

31 Decembor 2 January

2006 2016

Debt 143,000 186,619
Cash and cash equivalents (16,058) {40,564)
Net debt (excluding the impact of cross-currency hedges} 126,942 146,055
{Deficitiequity (24.621) 259015
Gearing ratio nfa 361%

Debt is defined as long and shert-term borrowings as detailed in Note 21. Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group
attributable to equity holders of the parent

c) Externally imposed capital requirements
The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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31. Financial instruments continued

d) Significant accounting policies

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted. including the criteria for recognition. the basis of measurement
and the basis on which income arkd expenses are recognised, in respect of each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity
instrument are disclosed in Note 2 to the financial statements.

@) Categories of financial instruments

I December 2 January
2016 2006
£000 £000
Financial assets [current and non-current)
Trade receivables 23,089 22500
Cash and cash equivalents ) 16,058 40564
Available for sale financial assets 970 970
Prepayments 2,123 3836
Other debtors 5545 5292
Financial liabilities (current and non-current) . .
Trade payables : 7.482) 712}
Borrowings {143,000) (186,619)

f} Financial risk management objectives

The Group's treasury function supports the business and monitors and. with Group ﬁnance manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group through assessment of the exposures by degree and magnitude of risk. These risks include market risk
{including currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and cash fow interest rate risk.

The use of financial derivatives is governed by the Group's policies approved by the Board and guidelines agreed with the Group's
lenders that must be operated within. The Group does not enter into or trade in financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes. ' .

The Group finance function reports regularly to the Executive Directors and the Board.-

g) Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in interest mmtes (refer to section i} and foreign currency
exchange {refer to section h).

At a Group and Company level, market risk exposures are assessed using sensitivity analyses

There have been no significant changes to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the manner in wh:ch it manages and measures risk,
h} Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain operational transactions denominated in foreign currencies, hence exposures to exchange rate

fluctuations arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the reporting date are
as follows:

Llabilities Assets
31 December 2 January 31 Decembet 2 January
2016 2016 2016 2016
£000 £000 £000 £000
Euro

Trade receivables - - 350 384
Cash and cash equivalents - - 627 1473
Trade payables (108) (589} - -

us dollar
Cash and cash equivalents - - 54 o4
Trade payables (265) 182} - -
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Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% change in pounds sterling against the euro and a 5% change in pounds
sterling against the US dollar. These percentages are the rates used by management when assessing sensitivities internally and
represent management’s assessment of the possible change in foreign currency rates.

The Group does not hedge the euro income or deposits or trade payables because the risk of foreign exchange movements is not
deerned to be significant,

The Croup buys nevwsprint in Sterling through Daily Mail General Trust (DMCT], wha source the paper from the UK, Europe and the
North Americas. Newsprint pricing is inextricably linked te its global commeodity status and as a result the Group is exposed to foreign
currency risk on paper purchases.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the reporting date has been determined based on the change
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and held constant throughout the reporting period. A positive number indicates an
increase in profit or loss and other equity where pounds sterling strengthens against the respective currency. For a 5% weakening of the
sterling against the relevant currency, there is an equal and opposite impact on profit or loss and other equity. and the balances below
reverse signs.

Euro currency impact US dollar currency impact
31 Decomber 2 January 3] Docembor 2 January
2006 2016 2016 2016
59 strengthening of pounds sterling (CBP) £000 E£'000 £000 EQQ0
{Loss)/profit ({A)] (81 10 (6)

i) Interest rate risk management
As mentioned in Note 21 (Borrowings). the Group issued 8.625% senior secured notes (Bond) which has fixed the interest costs for the
Group borrowings. As a result the Group no longer has the need to use financial derivatives.

In addition the Group’s undrawn Revolving Credit Facility {(RCF) which carried a floating interest rate if utitised, was cancelled on the
completion of the sale of Johnston Publishing East Anglia Limited to lliffe Media Ltd, Refer to Note 32 for further details,

Measurement
Financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are grouped into three levels based on the extent
to which the fair value is observable, The levels are classified as follows:

Level 1; fair value is based on quoted prices in active markets for identified financial assets and liabilities.
Level 2: fair value is determined using directly observable inputs other than leve! 1 inputs.
Level 3: fair value is determined on inputs not based on cbservable market data.

The available for sale investments are classified as Level 3 inancial instruments. There have been no transfers between the various levels
of the fair value hierarchy during the period.

J) Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties as a way of mitigating the risk of financial loss from
defaults. The Group's policy on dealing with trade customers is described in Notes 2 and 20.

The Group's expeosure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored. As far as possible, the aggregate value
of transactions is spread across a number of approved counterparties.

Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

The Croup does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics, the latter being defined as connected entities, other than with some of the larger advertising agencies. In the case of the
latter, a close relationship exists between the Group and the agencies and appropriate allowances for doubtful debts are in place. The
credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instrurnents is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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31. Financial instruments continued
J) Credit risk management continued

The following table shows the total estimated exposure to credit risk for all of the Group's financial assets, excluding trade receivables
which are discussed in Note 20:

31 December 2016 2 January 2016
Carrying Exposure to Carrying Exposure to
value crodit dsk value credit risk
Note E000 £000 £000 EQO0
Available for sale investments 15 970 - 970 -
Cash and cash equivalents 16,058 - 40564 -
17,028 - 41,534 -

k) Liquidity risk management
Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Board of Directors, which has agreed an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework for the rmanagement of the Group's short. medium and long-term funding and liquidity managerent
requirements. The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and borréwing facilities by

continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity préfiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity risk is further discussed in the Financial Review on page 24.

32. Post balance sheet events
On 17 January 2017, the Group completed the disposal of the entire issued share capital of Johnston Publishing East Anglia Limited,
which owns 13 publishing titles and associated websites in East Anglia and the East Midlands, to lliffe Media Limited for a gross cash

consideration of £17 million less £1 miillion of associated costs.

At completion the Group entered in to a transitional services agreement [TSA) relating to the provision of transitional and content

services by the Group to lliffe Media Publishing Limited for a period of up to 12 months following completion,

The Croup's revolving credit facility was cancelled on completion of the above sale. refer Note 31(i).
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Group Five-Year Summary!

3 Decetnber 2 January 3 January 28 December 29 December
200612 2051 20151 2003 2012
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income statement
Revenue 222,699 242083 268.823 302,799 328,691
Operating {loss)/profit on ordinary activities® (323,066) 37 1073 {245.670) 40,441
Share of associates’ operating profit - - - 2 6
{Loss)/profit before interest and taxation (323,066) n7 1013 {245,668) 40447
Net finance costs 22,805 1.866 {34.629) (41167) (47.212)
{Loss)/profit before taxation . (300,261) 2183 (23.916) (286,835) (6.765)
Taxation ’ 533N 8,538 8580 74,869 12376
(Loss)/profit for the year (246.890) 10.721 (15336) (211.966) 5.6n
Net ({loss)/profit from discontinued operations 28 7o - - -
Consolidated (loss)profit for the year (246,862) 1.431 (15336) (211,966) S8
Statistics
{Loss)fearnings* (247104) n.279 (15.488) (21218) 5459
Weighted average number of shares* 105326 105, 281 3,520,000 647804 621,759
Basic (loss)fearnings per share (p} (234.55) 1071 {0.44) (32.74} 0.8
Operating profit? to turnover n/a 0.1% 4.09% (81.19¢) 12.3%
Balance sheet
Intangible assets ’ 152,050 479,047 S14324 541360 742,294
Property. plant and equipment 36,684 52713 53,334 54,181 127223
Investments . 970 970 a92 992 Q90
Derivative financial instruments - - - - 2742
Trade and other receivables 1 2 - - -
189,705 532732 568,650 596,533 873249
Net current assets/{liabilities) 14,812 21.010 15.824 014.737) 16829
Total assets and current assets/(liabilities) 204,517 553,742 584,474 581,796 890.078
Non-current liabilities . (229.175) (204.727) (215.439) (314.999) (334362)
Long-term provisions ’ (1.550) (3.641) 169,054) 169.714) (281,799)
Net {liabilities)/assets (24,658) 259.015 199,981 97.083 273977
Sharehelders’ funds
Ordinary shares ’ 115,065 15,065 N5.065 68435 63975
Preference shares 1,106 1106 1106 1106 1106
Reserves (140,829) 142,844 B3.810 27542 208835
Capital employed (24,658) 259,015 199,981 97.083 273917

All periods related to 52 trading weeks with the exception of 3 January 2015 which was a 53waek period.

Adjusted for the adoption of LAS13R and for the disposal of the Republic of freland business on 1 Aprl 2014,

Before exceptional and 1AS21/38 iterms.

inline with (AS 33, the preference dividend and the number of preference shares are excluded from the calculation of earmnings per share.

o -
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Company Balance Sheet
As at 31 December 2016

Restated’
T Dacotnber 2 January
2016 2016
Notes £000 £000
Fixed agsets
Tangible assets 34 156 187
Investments 35 108,013 353528
108,969 353,715
Current assets . .
Debtors - due within one year 36 213,513 455346
Debtors - due after more than one year 36 229 627
Cash at bank and in hand 1538 1006l
215,280 466,034
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 37 (86,033) {89.218)
Net current assets 129,247 376.816
Total assets less current liabilities 238,216 730531
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year 38 (216,212) (216287}
Provisions for liabilities 39 {523} (839)
Net assets 21,481 ' 613,405
Capital and reserves
Calted-up share capital
Ordinary 25 N5,065 115,065
Preference 25 1106 1106
n617N 116,17
Reserves (94,690) 367,234
Shareholders’ funds 21,481 513,405

' Prior year comparatives have been restated for current amounts ewed to and by subsidiary undertakings to provide more meaningful comparative information,

The comparative numbers are as at 2 January 2016.

The Company repornted a comprehensive loss for the financial year ended 31 December 2016 of £493.6 million (2 January 2016 £ 205m

million) largely comprising an impairment of the investrnent and write down in intercompany debtors,

The financial statements of Johnston Press plc, registered in Scotland {(number 15382). were approved by the Board of Directors on

29 March 2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

P ) J— @A

Ashley Highfield David King
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

Share-
basod
Share Share  payments own Retained
capital premium resorve shares eamings Total
€000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balances N6 32,702 6,968 {3.582) 81146 513,405
Total comprehensive (loss) for the period - - - - (493,604) (493,604)
Recognised directly In equity:
Preference share dividends {Note 11) - - - - (152) {152)
Share-based payments charge (Note 29) - - 1,832 - - 1,832
Release of SBP reserve for expired share schemes - - (533) - 533 -
Release of own shares - - - 251 (251) -
Deferred bonus plan exercised - - {64) - 64 -
Net changes directly in equity - - 1235 251 194 1,680
Totat movements - - 1,235 251 (493.410) (491,924)
Equity at the end of the period N6 32702 8,203 (3331) (472,262) 21,481
For the 52 week period ended 2 January 2016
Share-based
Share Share payments Own Retalned
capital prarmium reserve shares earnings Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balances N6l 587702 13,785 (5208} (179733} S3279
Total comprehensive (loss)/profit for the period - - - - (20472) (20472)
Recognised directly in equity:
Preference share dividends (Note 11) - - - - (152) n52)
Share-based payments charge (Note 29) - - 2188 - - 2188
Release of SBP reserve for expired share schermes - - {8.666} - 8,666 -
Share capital reduction (Note 40) - [275.000) - - 275000 -
Performance share plan exercised - - 321} 321 - -
Company share option plan exercised - - - 17 - 17
Deferred bonus plan exercised - - 8} 18 - -
Purchase of own shares - - - . (895). - (895}
Release of own shares - - - 2163 {2163} -
Net changes directly in equity - (275000) 6.817) 1,624 281351 1158
Total movements - (275.000) {6.817) 1624 260879 19314)
Equity at the end of the period nen 312,702 6,968 (3,582} 81,146 513,405
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
For the 52 week period ended 31 December 2016

33. Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of accounting and preparation

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. The company meets

the definition of a qualifying entity under FRS 100 {Financial Reporting Standard 100) issued by the Financial Reporting Council.
Accordingly. in the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2016 the company has decided to adopt FRS 102 and has undergone transition
from reporting under United Kingdom Accounting Standards to FRS 102 as issued by the Financial Reporting Council. Accordingly.
the financial statements have therefore been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 (Financial Reporting Standard 102) The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of ireland’ as issued by the Financial Reporting Council. This transition is not
considered to have had a material effect on the financial staternents.

The Company's result for the period, deterrmined in accordance with the Act, was a loss of £493.69 million (2 January 2016: loss of

£20.5 miilien}. including the actuarial gain on the unfunded pension. The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost
basis except for financial instruments, unlisted investments and share-based payments as explained in the principal accounting policies
adopted set out below.

The 2016 period was for the 52 weeks ended 31 December 2016 with the prior year being for the 52 weeks ended 2 January 2016.

Going concern

The Directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements. a reasonable expectation that both the Cornpany and the Group
have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting in preparing the financial statermants, Further detail is contained in Note 1 within the section on ‘going concern’.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed asset balances are shown at cost. net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation is provided on
all property, plant and equipment, excluding land, at varying rates calculated to write-off cost over the useful lives. The principal rates
employed are:

Plant and machinery 2096 straight-line basis

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment. Unlisted investments are shown at
Directors’ valuation, Upward revaluations are credited to the revaluation reserve, Downward revaluations in excess of any previous
upward revaluations are taken to the Profit and Loss Account.

Borrowings

Interest-bearing loans and bank overdrafts are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs, Finance charges. including
premium payable on settlement or redemption and direct issue costs, are charged to the Profit and Loss Account using the effective
interest method and are added to the carrying amount of the instrument to the extent that they are not settled in the period in which
they arise. Fees incurred in negotiating borrowings are held on the Balance Sheet and amortised to the Profit and Loss Account over the
term of the underlying debt

Taxation
Current tax, including UK corporation tax and foreign tax, is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates
and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax Is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated but not reversed at the period end date where
transactions or events that result in an cbligation to pay more tax in the future or a right to pay less tax in the futture have occurred at
the pericd end date. Tirning differences are differences between the Company's taxable profits and its results as stated in the financial
statements that arise from the inclusion of gains and losses in tax assessments in periods different from those in which they are
recognised in the financial staterments.

Deferred tax is measured at the average tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences are expected
to reverse, based on tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the period end date.

Share-based payments

The Company issues equity settled share-based benefits to certain employees. These share-based payments are measured at their fair
value at the date of grant and the fair value of expected shares is expensed to the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period. Fair value is measured by use of the Black-5choles model, as amended to take account of the Directors’ best
estirnate of probabie share vesting and exercise,

Dividends

Dividends payable to the Company's shareholders are recorded as a liability in the period in which the dividends are approved. In the
Company's financial staterments, dividends receivable from subsidiaries are recognised as assets in the period in which the dividends
are approved.
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Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of that instrument.

The Company's activities and funding structure give rise to some exposure to the financial risks of changes in interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates. The Company uses interest rate swaps and cross-currency interest mte swaps to manage these exposures,

The Company does not use derivative financial instruments for speculative purposes.

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised directly in the Profit and Loss Account.

34. Tangible fixed assets

Plant and
machinery
£000
Cost
At 2 January 2016 240
At 31 December 2016 ) 240
Depreciation
At 2 January 2016 53
Charge for the period 3
At 31 December 2016 84
Carrying amount
At 2 January 2016 187
At 31 December 2016 156
35. Investments
Subsldiary Unlisted
undentakings Investments Total
£000 £000 £000
Cost
At the start of the period h 1107.847 3526 1373 -
Disposal . ' - (3526} (3.526)
Amounts relating to share-based payments 653 - 653
At the end of the period 1,108,500 - 1,008,500
Provisions for impairment
At the start of the period (754,319} 3.526) (757.845)
Disposal o - 3526 3526
Provision for impairment of investment in subsidiaries (245368) - (245368)
At the end of the period {999.687) - {999,6487)
Net book value
At the start of the period . 353528 - 353528
At the end of the period 108,813 - 108,813

An impairment charge has been reflected in the financial staterments of the Group. Full details are explained in Note 13. Inevitably this
affects the value of the investments held by the parent company and the element of the impairment of intangible assets relating to the
investments held by the Company only has been processed as an impairment of investments.

In the pericd, the Company disposed of its fully impaired unlisted investment in Mirage plc.
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35. Investments continued
The Company’s subsidiary undertakings are as follows:

Subsidiaries incorporated in England, with a registered office of Unex House - Suite B, Bourges Boulevard, Peterborough,
Cambridgeshire. PE1 ING, England are as follows:

Country of

Incorporation Proportion of .

and operation ownership interest  Nature of business Status
Ackiill Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Anglia Newspapers Limited £ngland 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Bedfordshire Newspapers Limited England 10096 Newspaper publishers Dormant
Blackpool Gazette & Herald Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Central Counties Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Century Press and Publishing Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
East Lancashire Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
East Midlands Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Halifax Courier Holdings Limited gngland 100% Holding company Holding
Johnston Letterbox Direct Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Johnston Publishing {North) Limited England 1009% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Johnston Publishing Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Trading
Lancashire Evening Post Limited England 100% - Newspaper publishers Agency
Lancashire Publications Limited England 1009 Newspaper publishers Agency
Lancaster & Morecambe Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Lincolnshire Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers - Dormant
Love News Media Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Minthili Limited England 100% Holding company Dormant
North Notts Newspapers Lirited England 100% Newspaper publishers Oormant
Northampton Web Limited England 100% Contract printers Dormant
Northarmptonshire Newspapers Limited England 100% © Newspaper publishers Agency
NorthEast Press Limited England 1009 - Newspaper publishers Agency
Peterboro’ Web Limited X England 1009% - Contract printers Agency
Portsmouth & Sunderland Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Holding
Portsmouth Publishing & Printing Limited " England 100% Newspaper publishers and printer Dormant
Premier Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Regional Independent Media Acquisitions Lirnited England 10096 Newspaper publishers  ~ Dormant
Regional Independent Media Funding 1 Limited England 100% . Newspaper publishers Dormant
Regional Independent Media Funding 2 Limited England 1009 Newspaper publishers Dormant
Regional Independent Media Group Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Regional Independent Media Holdings Limited Engfand 100% ' . Newspaper publishers - Dormant
Regional Interactive Media Limited England 100% - Newspaper publishers Dormant
Sheffield Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
South Yorkshire Newspapers Limited England 1009 " Newspaper publishers Agency
Sussex Newspapers Limited England 1009% Newspaper publishers Agency
T R Beckelt Lirnited ' England 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
The Halifax Courier Limited © England 1009 Newspaper publishers Agency
The Reporter Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Welland Valley Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Wilfred Edmunds Limited England 10096 Newspaper publishers Agency
Yorkshire Post Newspapers Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Yorkshire Regional Newspapers Limited £England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Yorkshire Weekly Newspaper Group Limited England 100% Newspaper publishers Agency

Lincolnshire Standard Group Limited - struck off 06/i2/2016.
Johnston Publishing East Anglia Limited - incorporated 12/12/2016 sold 27/0)/2017.
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Subsidiaries incorporated in the Isle of Man and with a registered office of Publishing House, Peel Road, Douglas, Isle of Man. IM1 5PZ are

as follows:
Country of
incorporation Proportion of
ard operation ownership interest Nature of business Status
Isle of Man Courier Holdings Limited Isle of Man 100% Investment holding company  Holding
Isle of Man Newspapers Limited
{disposed of in August 2016 to Tindles
Newspapers Limited, refer to Note 10} Isle of Man nfa Newspaper publishers Trading

Subsidiaries incorporated in England and with a registered office of 2 Cavendish Square, London, WIG OPU, England are as follows:

Country of

incorporation Propartion of

and operation ownership interest Nature of business Status
Johnston Press Bond plc England 100% Financing Trading
Johnston Publications Limited " England 100% Newspaper pubtishers Trading

Subsidiaries incorporated in Scotland and with a registered office of 8th Floor. Orchard Brae House, 30 Queensferry-noad. Edfnburgh.

EH4 2HS, Scotland are as follows:

Country of
Incorporation Proponion of
and operation ownership interest Nature of business Status
Angus County Press Limited Scotland 1009 Newspaper publishers Agency
Caledonian Offset Limited Scotland 1009% Newspaper publishers Dormant
F Johnston & Co Limited Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Johnston (Falkirk) Limited Scotland 10056 Newspaper publishers Agency
Montrose Review Press Limited Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
MRP Holdings Limited Scotland 100% Hoelding company Dormant
Score Press Limited Scotland 100% Holding company Holding
Stornoway Gazette Limited - Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Strachan & Livingston Limited Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
The Galloway Gazette Limited Scotland 1009 Newspaper publishers Agency
- The Scotsman Publications Limited Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
- . The Tweeddale Press Limited Scotland 100% Newspaper publishers Agency

Subsidiaries incorporated in Northern Ireland and with a registered office of 2 Esky Drive. Carn Industrial Area. Pertadown, Craigavon,
County Armagh, BT63 5YY. Northern Ireland are as follows:

Country of

Incorporation Proportion of

and operatlon ownership intarest MNature of business ° Status
Century Newspapers Limited Northern treland  100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Detry Journal Limited Northern ireland  100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Local Press Limited Northern Ireland 1009 Holding company Dormant
Morton Newspapers Limited Northern Ireland  100% Newspaper publishers Agency

and printer
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35. Investments continued
Subsidiaries incorporated in Ireland and with a registered office of Riverside One, Sir John Rogerson's Quay, Dublin 2, lreland are
as follows:

Country of Incorporation Proportion of ownarshlp

and operation fnterest . MNature of business Status
Limerick Leader Limited Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Wellbrook Press Unlimited Company Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant

Subsidiaries incorporated in Ireland and with a registered office of Riverside One, 37-42 Sir John Rogerson’s Quay. Dublin 2. Ireland are
as follows:

Country of Proportion

incorporation of ewwnership

and operation Interest Nature of business Status
Carsrock Limited' Ireland 100% " Newspaper publishers Dormant
Clonnad Limited? Iretand 1009% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Donegal Democrat Printing Unlimited Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant

Company'

Dundalk Democrat Limited, The! Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Agency
Johnston Press Ireland Limited Ireland 1009% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Kilkenny People Holdings Limited Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Kilkenny People Printing Limited" Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Kilkenny People Publishing Limited Ireland 1009% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Leader Print Limited Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Leinster Express Newspapers Limited Ireland 1009% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Leinster Express Printing Unlimited Compary  Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Leinster Leader Limited. The Irefand 1009% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Leitrim Observer Limited Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers - Dormant
Limerickman Unlimited Company Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Longford Leader Limited, The Irefand 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Nationalist Newspaper Unlimited Company Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Score Press Ireland Unlimited Company Ireland 100% - Holding company Dormant
The Donegal Cemocrat Limited Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
The Munster Triburie Unlimited Company Ireland 1009% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Thomas Roe Unlimited Corpany Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant
Twinlink Heldings Unlimited Company? Ireland 100% Newspaper publishers Dormant

1 Irish entities were struck off on 25 January 2017.

Irish entities struck off during 2016 include:
Lynoset Limited - struck off 23 March 2016

Woest Limerickman Limited - struck off 23 March 2016
Kalamalka Limited - struck off 30 March 2016
Kitzbuhel Limited - struck off 30 March 2016

There is no difference in the proportions of ownership interest shown above and the voting power held. All investments in subsidiary
undertakings are held at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment.

All subsidiaries have been included within the consolidated accounts.
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36. Debtors
Restated?
31 December 2 January
2016 20i6
£000 £000
Amounts falling due within one year
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 193,498 439797
Group relief receivable 18,967 14516
Trade and other debtors and prepayments 1,048 1033
213,513 455346
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Deferred tax asset - see below 229 627

' Prior year comparatives for current armounts owed to and by subsidiary undertakings has been restated to provide more meaningful comparative information.

The foliowing are the major deferred téx assets recognised by the Company and movements thereon during the year:

Accelerated tax Penslon Other timing

depreciation balances differences Total

£000 £000 £000 £000

At the start of the period (3} 159 47 627
Charge to equity relating to unfunded pensions - (60) - (60)
Charge to profit and loss account (6} - 318) (324)
Prior year adjustment {4) - - {4)
Effect of change in tax rates on profit and loss account 1 a7} - (ig)
Effect of change in tax rates on equity - 6 - )
At the end of the period 0z2) 88 153 229

37. Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

Restated’

5 December 2 January

2016 2016

foco £000

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings B2,939 85198
Other taxes and social security costs 96 147
Trade creditors . 1,978 1334
Accruals 4ty 2539
Other creditors 76 -
86,033 89.218

! Prior year comparatives for cumment amounts owed to and by subsidiary undertakings has been restated to provide more meaningful comparative information. *

38. Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year

B becember 2 January

2016 2006

£000 £000

Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 215,600 215600
Accruals 612 687
216,212 216.287
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39. Provisions for liabilities
Il December 2 January

2016 2016
£000 £000
Unfunded pensions 523 839

The unfunded pension provision is assessed by a qualified actuary at each period end. Refer to Note 22 for further details.

40.Reserves

Share-based
Share payments Retalned own
premium resarve earnings shares Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Opening balance 312,702 6968 81146 (3.582}) 397.234
Loss for the period : - - (493604) - (493,604)
Preference share dividends (Note 11} - . - (152) - (152)
Provision for share-based payments - 1.832 . R - 1832
Release of share-based payments reserve for expired . .
share schemes - (533) 533 - -
Release of own shares - - (251) 25 -
Deferred bonus shares exercised - (64) 64 - -

At the end of the period 312,702 8.203 (412,264) (333) (94,690)

The own shares reserve represents the cost of shares in Johnston Press plc purchased in the market and held by the Johnston Press plc
Employee Share Trust (the JP EST } to satisfy options under the Group's share options schemes (see Note 29). The number of ordinary
shares held by the JP EST as at 31 December 2016 was 552.272 (2 January 2016: 596,388).

At the Company's Annual General Meeting on 27 June 2014, a special resolution was approved to initiate a process to reduce the
Company's share premium account by £275 million, This was approved by the Court of Session in May 2015. The capital reduction
eliminated the accumulated deficit of £179.7 million on the Company's profit and loss account and create positive distributable reserves
of £95.3 million. This enabled the Company to pay out dividends in respect of its two ¢lasses of preference shares in the 2015 year and in
respect of unpaid dividends from 2014, Refer to the table below for further details.

Capital reduction - Share premium

3 January Capital Past-capital

2015 reduction reductlon

£000 £000 £000

Share premium . 587,702 (275,000} nz70z
Retained earnings ) Co - 179.733) 275000 95,267
407,969 - 407969

41. Statement of changes in equity ‘

X Dacember 2lanuary

2016 2016

£000 £000
(Loss) for the year after taxation (493,866) {20.,955)
Actuarial gain on defined benefit pension schemes 262 483
Comprehensive loss for the period .. (493,604) (20.472)
Preference share dividends (Note 11) ’ (52} (152)
Provision for share-based payments (Note 29} 1.832 2188
Options exercised - 17
Own shares purchased - (895)
Net increase/{decrease) in shareholders’ funds o ]491.924} (19314)
Opening shareholders’ funds . 513,405 532719
Closing shareholders' funds 21,481 513,405
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Non-GAAP Measures

Adjusting Items - Other supplementary information
Consolidated Income Statement - Reconciliation of Statutory and Adjusted Numbers

52 weaks ended 31 Decomber 2016 52 weeks ended 2 January 2015
Adjusting Adjusting
Statutory ftems Adjusted Statutory iremns Adjusted
Notes £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s £000s
Advertising revenue
Print advertising A 95674 (684) 94,950 117,598 {2.979) 114619
Digital advertising A 26,950 {379) 26,57 3,423 {2363) 29.060
Total advertising revenue 122,624 0,063) 121,56t 149.021 (5342) 143,679
Non advertising revenue
Newspaper sales A 79,849 104) 79.745 7,964 (337) 71.627
Contract printing A 12,788 @) 12,779 12625 (8) 12,607
Leaflet, sundry and other A 7.438 @ie) 7422 8473 (644) 7829
Total other revenue " 100,075 (129} 99,946 93.062 (999) 92,063
Total continuing revenues’ - 222,699 0192) 221507 242083 (6341) 235742
Cost of sales : B 135.639) 1,258 (134,38Y) (131.570) 5782 (125.788)
Operating costs - (402,711} - {402,M) m.827) - 101,827)
Restructuring costs c - 9,299 9,299 - 9362 9362
Impairment of publishing tittes D. - 344326 344,326 - 35234 38234
Other E - 11,005 11,005 - 3262 3262
‘Total adjustments - 364,630 364,630 - 47.858 47858
Total operating costs {(402,M) 364,630 (38,081) (101,827) 47858 {53.969)
Total costs {538350) 365888 {172.462) (233.397) 53,640 179757
EBMDA . n/a nfa 49,045 n/a nfa 55985
Depreciation and amortisation £ (7.415) 498 {6,977) (8.369) 1,668 (6.701)
Operating (loss)/profit : (323,066} 365194 42128 n7 48967 49284
Investment income. 73 - 73 854 - 854
Net finance expense on pension
assets/liabilities . c (83) 83 - {2.933) 2933 -
Fair value gain on borrowings t H 43,619 (43,619) - 23918 {23.918) -
Finance cost ] (20,056) 487 (19,569) 19,973} 84 (19.889)
Finance costs 22,805 {42.301) (19.496) 1866 {20.901) 19.035)
Loss)/profit before tax T (300261) 322,893 22,632 2183 28,066 30.249
Tax creditficharge) 5337 {58,275} {4,904) 8538 (14,522) [5.984)
(Loss)/profit from continuing operations {246,890) 264,618 17.728 10721 13544 24,265
Net profit from discontinued operations 28 - 28 m - m
Consolidated (loss)/profit for the period (246,862) 264,618 17,756 1432 13544 24,976
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Non - GAAP Measures continued

A Revenue
Revenue adjustment split for 52 weeks ending 31 December 2016
Oigital
Closed dtles brands Motors Other Total
Stotutory £000s £000s £000s £000s  adjusting  Adjusted
£000s A A2 A3 Ab £000s £000s
Advertising revenue
Print advertising 95.674 (684) - - - {(684) 94,990
Digital advertising 26,950 (60) - (319) - (379) 2657
Total advertising revenue 122,624 (744) - =y - 1,063} 121,561
Non advertising revenue
Newspaper sales 79,849 f104) - - - (lo4) 79,745
Contract printing 12,788 )] - - - 9) 12,779
Qther 7438 {16) - - - 16) 7,422
Total other revenue 100,075 129) - - - 129) 99946
Total continuing revenues 222 699 (873) - (319} - 1.192) 2n507
Revenue adjustment split for 52 weeks ending 2 January 2016
Digital
Closed titles brands Motors Other Total
Statutary £000s £000s £000s £000s  adjusting Adjusted
£000s Al a2 A3 43 £000s £000s

Advertising revenue '
Print advertising n7598 {2.979) - - - {2.979) N4.618
Digital advertising 31423 (104) (761) (1,268} (230) (2363) 29.060
Total advertising revenue 142,021 (3.083) - {761) (1.268) {230) (5342} 143679
Non-advertising revenue )
Newspaper sales 71,964 (337) - - - (337) 71627
Contract printing 12625 n8) - - - (18) 12,607
Other 8473 ms) - - (526) (644) 7829
Total other revenue 93.062 (473). - - (526) (999} ' 92,063
Total continuing revenues 242083 (3.556) (761) {(1.268} {756} {6341} 235742
Al Closed titles

As part of the ongoing review of the Group's portfolio, 13 underperforming titles (2015 17 titles) were closed durlng the year. Total
revenue of £0.9 million {2015: £3.6 million) has been adjusted on a like for like basis. The prior year adjustment has also been restated

to include title revenue for those tities closed in 2016,

A2 Digital brands

Revenue in the prior period has been adjusted in respect of DealMonster and Business Dlrectory {2015: £0.6 miillion and £0.1 million

respectively), both of which were ¢closed in the second half of 2015.

A3 Motors

Revenue of £03 million (2015; £13 million) reflecting the wind down of motors.couk has been adjusted for. The contract with motors.
co.uk for online motor sales expired at the end of March 2016. The full Motor internet revenue has been removed to provide a like for
like position. Any remaining click revenue is immaterial and has been excluded.

AL Other revenue

included within Other are adjustments in the prior period of Launch fees of £0.2 million recognised upfront on a digital contract and
fees assocciated with the transitional services agreement (TSA) of £0.5 million. Launch fees were initially received on the execution of
digital contracts categorised as one-off revenue and has been adjusted for in the prior financial period to represent revenue on a
like-for-like basis. TSA fees were received in relation to the disposal of the Group's trish business to Iconic Newspapers Limited where
services were provided by the Croup under the TSA fora 12 month period from April 2014,
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B Cost of sales
Cost of sales assaciated with Closed Titles of £1.0 million (2015: £3.8 million), Digital Brands £nil {2015: £0.7 million} and Motors £0.3 million
(2015: £1.3 million) have been adjusted for.

C Restructuring costs

Business transfarmation and restructuring costs have been adjusted for the period of £9.3 million as they are non-core costs. Included
in the £93 million are business transformation costs of £1.5 million (2015: £1.6 miillion), portfolio review costs of £1.7 million {2015: £23
million) and redundancy costs of £5.6 million (2015: £4.5 million of which £1.3 million refated to the streamlining of the digital &
marketing functions, £1.7 million related to the sales force transformation, £0.7 million related to redundancies in production and
£0.8 million on corporate restructuring) and other restructuring costs of £0.5 million (2Z015; £1.0 million) which include early lease
terrnination costs, empty property costs, dilapidations and dual-running office costs.

D Impairment of assets

An impairment of £3443 million (2015; £35.2 million) has been recognised in the period, in relation to publishing titles of £336.9 million
{2015: £35.2 million), print presses of £5.5 million (2015: £5.4 million) and property (print sites) of £1.9 million (2015: £nil). £223.9 million

of the impairment write-down was charged at the half-year, with a further write-down of £120.4 million booked at the year-end.

E Other costs

Other costs of £11.0 million (2015: £33 million) include pension-related costs of £6.0 million (2015: £23 million} which are discussed
further below, LTIP of £1.8 million (2015: £1.6 million), (loss} on disposal of assets of £0.2 million (2015: gain on disposal of £0.7 million),
the i acquisition-related costs of £1.8 million (2015: £ nil). business development costs of £0.6 million (2015 £0.4 million), RCF reset costs
of £03 million (2015: £ nil} and refinancing costs of £0.2 miillion {2015: £ nil).

Pension-related costs of £6.0 million (2015: £1.5 million) included the impact of the Portsmouth and Sunderland {P&S) pension
equalisation court order of £3.5 rmillion [2015: £ nil) that has been accounted for as a past service cost in the Income Staternent with
no short term cash impact and related legal costs of £0.6 million (2015: £ nil). pension admin costs of £0.6 million (2015; £0.6 miillion)
and the PPF levy of £0.4 miilion (2015 £1.2 million} and pension deficit management costs of £0.9 million (2015: £0.6 million).

These iterms have been adjusted as they are not considered to be retated to normal trading conditions,

F Depreciation and amortisation
Includes accelerated depreciation and amortisation of £0.5 million arising as a result of a review of websites held within the Group
{2015: £1.7 million included accelerated depreciation and amortisation on the consumer database).

G Net finance expense on pension assets/liabilities
Net pension interest expense of £0.8 million (2015: £2.9 million} required under 1AS 19 relating to the net interest on the pension scherne
assets and liakilities has been adjusted on the basis that it does not relate to current trading activities (see Note 21).

H Fair value gain on borrowings
Fair value market movement adjustments on external bonds held of £43.6 million (2015; £23.9 millien) required under IAS 39 were
adjusted for.

I Finance cost
An adjustment of £0.5 million has been made in the current year in relation to unrecoverable VAT on the 2014 refinancing fees. In 2014,
refinancing fees totalling £19.9 million were incurred and treated as adjusting items in that petiod.
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